Public Document Pack

Contact: Brent Cross
Direct Dial: 01275 888 078

E-mail:
Date:

brent.cross@n-somerset.gov.uk
Wednesday, 11 October 2023

Dear Sir or Madam

The Children and Young People's Services Policy and Scrutiny Panel — Thursday, 19
October 2023, 10.00 am — New Council Chamber - Town Hall

A meeting of the Children and Young People's Services Policy and Scrutiny Panel will take
place as indicated above.

The agenda is set out overleaf.

Yours faithfully

Assistant Director Legal & Governance and Monitoring Officer

To:

Members of the Children and Young People's Services Policy and Scrutiny Panel
Councillors:

Joe Tristram (Chairperson), Wendy Griggs (Vice-Chairperson), Marc Aplin,
Annabelle Chard, Stuart Davies, Nicola Holland, Clare Hunt, Sue Mason, Tom
Nicholson, Michael Pryke and Martin Williams.

Added Members: Claire Hudson (Church of England Representative),
Vacancies: Primary and Secondary/Special School Parent Governor
Representative

Right to Speak: Fiona Waters (Weston College), Kenton Mee, North Somerset
Parent Carers Working Together, Vacancy: North Somerset Youth Parliament

This document and associated papers can be made available in a different
format on request.

Page 1



Agenda

1.

Public Discussion (Standing Order SS09)

To receive and hear any person who wishes to address the Panel on matters
which affect the District and fall within the remit of the Panel. The Chairman will
select the order of the matters to be heard. Members of the Panel may ask
questions of the member of the public and a dialogue between the parties can be
undertaken.

Requests to speak must be submitted in writing to the Head of Legal and
Democratic Services, or the officer mentioned at the top of this agenda letter, by
noon on the day before.

Apologies for Absence and Notifications for Substitutes

Declaration of disclosable pecuniary interest (Standing Order 37)

A Member must declare any disclosable pecuniary interest where it relates to any
matter being considered at the meeting. A declaration of a disclosable pecuniary
interest should indicate the interest and the agenda item to which it relates. A
Member is not permitted to participate in this agenda item by law and should
immediately leave the meeting before the start of any debate.

If the Member leaves the Chamber in respect of a declaration, he or she should
ensure that the Chairman is aware of this before he or she leaves to enable their
exit from the meeting to be recorded in the minutes in accordance with Standing
Order 37.

Minutes (Pages 7 - 12)

Minutes of the Panel meeting held on 29 June 2023 — to approve as a correct
record.

Matters referred by Council, the Executive, other Committees and Panels (if
any)

SEND Self Evaluation (Pages 13 - 94)

Report of the Assistant Director, Education Partnerships.

Annual Report of Adoption West 2022-23 (Pages 95 - 128)

Report of the Interim Director, Children’s Services.

Children's Safeguarding Partnership Annual Report (Pages 129 - 162)
Report of the Interim Director, Children’s Services.

Panel's Work Plan (Pages 163 - 166)

Report of the Policy and Scrutiny Senior Officer.

Page 2



Exempt Items

Should the Children and Young People's Services Policy and Scrutiny Panel wish
to consider a matter as an Exempt Item, the following resolution should be passed

“(1) That the press, public, and officers not required by the Members, the Chief
Executive or the Director, to remain during the exempt session, be excluded from
the meeting during consideration of the following item of business on the ground
that its consideration will involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in
Section 100l of the Local Government Act 1972.”

Also, if appropriate, the following resolution should be passed —

“(2) That members of the Council who are not members of the Children and Young
People's Services Policy and Scrutiny Panel be invited to remain.”

Mobile phones and other mobile devices

All persons attending the meeting are requested to ensure that these devices are
switched to silent mode. The chairman may approve an exception to this request
in special circumstances.

Filming and recording of meetings
The proceedings of this meeting may be recorded for broadcasting purposes.

Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press
and public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to
do so, as directed by the Chairman. Any filming must be done as unobtrusively as
possible from a single fixed position without the use of any additional lighting,
focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and having regard to
the wishes of any members of the public present who may not wish to be filmed.
As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the
Chairman or the Assistant Director Legal & Governance and Monitoring Officer’s
representative before the start of the meeting so that all those present may be
made aware that it is happening.

Members of the public may also use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social
media to report on proceedings at this meeting.

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
On hearing the alarm — (a continuous two tone siren)
Leave the room by the nearest exit door. Ensure that windows are closed.

Last person out to close the door.

Page 3



Do not stop to collect personal belongings.

Do not use the lifts.

Follow the green and white exit signs and make your way to the assembly point.
Do not re-enter the building until authorised to do so by the Fire Authority.

Go to Assembly Point C — Outside the offices formerly occupied by Stephen
& Co

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

\ North

merset

COUNCIL

Minutes
of the Meeting of

The Children and Young People's Services Policy
and Scrutiny Panel
Thursday, 29 June 2023

New Council Chamber - Town Hall
Meeting Commenced: 10.00 am Meeting Concluded: 12.09 pm
Councillors:

Joe Tristram (Chairperson)

Wendy Griggs
Nicola Holland
Clare Hunt
Sue Mason
Richard Tucker
Martin Williams

Apologies: Councillor Michael Pryke.

Absent: Councillors Marc Aplin, Annabelle Chard and Tom Nicholson.

Also in attendance: Councillor Catherine Gibbons; Kenton Mee; Angie Griggs.

Officers in attendance: Sheila Smith (Director of Children's Services), Pip Hesketh
(Assistant Director, Education Partnerships), Becky Hopkins (Assistant Director, Family
Support & Safeguarding), Matt Greenhalgh (Head of Service - Improvement Lead for CWD
and SEND), Mark Jarvis (Senior/Principal Accountant (Childrens)), Brent Cross (Policy and
Scrutiny Senior Officer), Philippa Penney (Head of Democratic and Electoral Services),

and Liz Godfrey-Day (Scrutiny Services Support Officer).

CAY Election of the Vice-Chairperson for the 2023/24 Municipal Year
1

The Chairperson welcomed Members and officers to the meeting, explained the
role of the Panel, gave an overview of Children’s Services from the scrutiny
perspective, and gave his thoughts on the direction of travel of the Service.

The Panel then nominated for the position of Vice-Chairman.

Recommended: that Councillor Wendy Griggs be elected as Vice-Chairman for
the 2023/24 municipal year.

Brent Cross, 01275 888 078 Page 5 CAY minutes 290623



CAY

CAY

CAY

CAY

CAY

CAY

CAY

Addresses by Members of the Public (SSO 9)

None.

Apologies for Absence and Notifications for Substitutes

Apologies received from Councillor Michael Pryke.

Declaration of disclosable pecuniary interest (Standing Order 37)

None.

Minutes

Minutes of the Panel meeting held on 20 October 2022 — to approve as a correct
record.
Notes of the informal panel meeting held on 24 February 2023 — for noting.

Recommended: that

i) the minutes of the meeting of 20 October 2022 be approved as a
correct record; and that

ii) the notes of the informal meeting of 24 February 2023 be noted.

Matters referred by Council, the Executive, other Committees and Panels (if
any)

None.

Role, Remit and Work Plan of the CYPS Policy and Scrutiny Panel

The Senior Policy and Scrutiny Officer presented the report detailing the Panel’s
role and allowing the opportunity for Members to discuss the work plan. Members
were referred to the appendices for guidance on how best to utilise the Panel’s
resources to obtain meaningful outcomes.

Members considered the working groups of the Panel under the previous
administration and would discuss and form working groups before the next

meeting following further discussion.

Recommended: that Members of the Panel develop the Work Plan before the
next meeting.

Performance Monitoring

2
Brent Cross, 01275 888 078 Page 6 CAY minutes 290623



The Performance Monitoring report was presented by the Assistant Director,
Children’s Family Support and Safeguarding, and included an update on the
Ofsted inspection of Children’s Services on 13 March 2023, a performance
analysis of relevant Key Corporate Performance Indicators for quarter 4 of
2022/23, and an overview of the performance of relevant key service measures for
support and safeguarding services.

The challenges of recruiting and retaining social workers were highlighted along
with the news that ten new social workers had been recruited and would be
starting work in the weeks following the meeting.

Members requested clarification on the following (officer responses in italics):

¢ Who could refer a case to Children’s Social Care? These could be partner
agencies, such as schools, the police, hospital / medical services, or even
families, children wishing to refer themselves, and anonymous referrers.

e The statistical neighbours mentioned in the report seemed to be both larger
and more rural than North Somerset, and there was concern that the
disparities between experiences in Weston and the rural areas were not
reflected in these statistical neighbours. The statistical neighbours had the
same proportion of rural and town populations as North Somerset, and
Children’s Services had internal ward-level details on the differences
between the rural and urban centres.

Following these, Members engaged in more general discussion about whether
some of the reported rises in Child Criminal Exploitation, Domestic Abuse and
Child Sexual Exploitation were a result of an increase in reporting or an increase
in incidence; how parents with poor mental health were supported through the
Whole Family approach; the feedback from care leavers now in employment,
education or training on what worked for them and how to support those not in
employment, education or training; and the possible reasons for social workers not
being retained.

Recommended: that the report be received, and that Members’ comments be
forwarded to officers in the form of minutes.

CAY Ofsted Inspection Update

The Director, Children’s Services, introduced the report which gave a summary of
the findings of the Ofsted inspection of North Somerset Children’s Services in
March 2023. The overall outcome of the inspection was that the service was
judged Requires Improvement to be Good.

The inspection found progress in several key areas, and judged the service
provided to care leavers in North Somerset as Good, but it was noted that not all
areas of improvement identified at the last inspection in March 2020 had been
addressed and that progress had not been sufficient. The service received the
Requires Improvement to be Good judgement in the following: the impact of
leaders on social work practice with children and families, the experiences and
progress of children who need help and protection, and the experience and
progress of children in care.

3
Brent Cross, 01275 888 078 Page 7 CAY minutes 290623



CAY
10

CAY
11

The service was in the process of updating the Service Plan to ensure that all of
the areas for improvement were fully addressed, and this would be submitted to
Ofsted in August 2023.

In discussion, the following topics were addressed:

e That the service was aware of areas of weakness going into the inspection
and that the fragility of the workforce a big factor in, and a key determinant
of, the improvement journey.

e That there were Central Leadership Team discussions ongoing to provide
stability to the workforce in the context of the financial pressure on North
Somerset Council generally, and that the cost of failure was many times
higher than the financial cost.

e That the Mockingbird Programme for fostering would be explained to new
Members in a Children’s Directorate briefing, and that there were only two
authorities in the country with more Mockingbird hubs than North Somerset.

Recommended: that the report be received, and that Members’ comments be
forwarded to officers in the form of minutes.

SEND Improvement Plan and Safety Valve

The Assistant Director for Education Partnerships presented the report on the
SEND Improvement Plan and Safety Valve projects and included details on the
eight areas of significant weakness that had been identified in the 2017 inspection
by the Department for Education which following revisits had now been reduced to
four. Officers were waiting to hear back on the remaining four areas of weakness
imminently, and were preparing for the next inspection.

The details of the Safety Valve funding were discussed, and it was shared that the
directorate had received about £20m of funding to spend towards this over five
years. Members were also informed of the new school for children with SEMH
(Social, Emotional and Mental Health) needs that was to open in 2024, were
reminded of the second site for Baytree School, that the very successful Nurture
groups used profiles devised by Marjorie Boxall, and that North Somerset now had
the only fully staffed Educational Psychology team in the South West.

In discussion, it was pointed out that the conditions for the Safety Valve funding
had been negotiated, rather than imposed, in a very productive set of discussions
with the Department for Education. The key to reducing the shortfall in the Special
Needs Block was to improve quality of providers, so that North Somerset’s offers
could successfully compete with the independent sector. The comparative
performance of the independent sector was also being scrutinised.

Recommended: that the report be received, and that Members’ comments be
forwarded to officers in the form of minutes.

Month 12 Children's Services Budget Monitor

The Principal Accountant (Children’s) presented the year-end budget monitor for
Children’s Services. There had been an overspend of £2.256m, caused mainly by

4
Brent Cross, 01275 888 078 Page 8 CAY minutes 290623



the cost pressures of placements for Children Looked After and support for
Children with Disabilities. Contrasting with this, there had also been a reduction in
staffing costs, although this had been a result of unfilled vacancies which were
now being addressed.

The additional growth (£3.023m) of the Children’s Services budget in the Medium
Term Financial Plan (MTFP) for 2023-24 was highlighted, along with projected
cost savings of £764 000 that would need to be made.

In discussion it was clarified that the Direct Payments mentioned in paragraph
3.17 referred to payments made directly to parents following a social care
assessment. Members noted that dissatisfaction with the way these were
administered had been expressed by some parents in the past, and suggested
that an officer could report to the Panel on this.

Recommended: that the report be received, and that Members’ comments be
forwarded to officers in the form of minutes.

Following a brief further discussion of the Work Plan, the Chairperson thanked the
outgoing Director, Children’s Services (Sheila Smith) and the Associate Director,
Children’s Family Support and Safeguarding (Becky Hopkins) on behalf of the Children
and Young People’s Policy and Scrutiny Panel for all the work that they had done for
Children’s Services and North Somerset Council and wished them well in their future
endeavours.

Chairman

5
Brent Cross, 01275 888 078 Page 9 CAY minutes 290623



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

North Somerset Council

Report to the Children & Young People Policy & Scrutiny Panel
Date of Meeting: October 19th 2023

Subject of Report: SEND Self Evaluation

Town or Parish:

Officer/Member Presenting: Pip Hesketh

Key Decision: NO

Reason:

This report updates members of the Scutiny Panel on the North Somerset Local Area on
progress on SEND via the Self Evaluation which we complete as part of the Ofsted/CQC
Inspection Framework.

Recommendations
The report is for information only and for Panel members to note.

1. Summary of Report

The most recent SEND Self Evaluation is attached to this report. It represents the
combined input from across the wide and diverse SEND system and communities through
workshops and focused meetings.

The Self Evaluation faithfully follows the structure set out within the Inspection Framework
under 12 key areas of evaluation. Five of the areas focus on the leadership of the system
and four areas are new areas of focus within this inspection framework, including the
visibility of children and young people with SEND within their local communities and the
extent to which children, young people and their families have a say in the decisions that
are made for them.

In each of areas of the Self Evaluation, we have followed the same format and evaluated
the extent to which we know about and can evidence our impact and our plans and
priorities for the year ahead.

It is important to note that the Local Area for SEND includes all statutory agencies (health,

children’s social care and education) as well as schools, settings, voluntary and community
partners and parents and carers organisations.

2. Policy

Local Area SEND Strategy

3. Details

Please see Self Evaluation attached.

Page 11



4. Consultation

No formal consultation is required but the production of the SEF has been a highly
consultative process over several months and represents the contributions of a large
number of organisations.

5. Financial Implications
None

Costs
None

Funding
None

6. Legal Powers and Implications
N/A

7. Climate Change and Environmental Implications
N/A

8. Risk Management

North Somerset has recently had it's SEND Improvement Notice under the previous
Inspection Framework lifted. The recovery of our position has been a very positive boost to
the Local Authorities reputation. All Authorities will be inspected under the new Framework
and this re-introduces the reputational risk to North Somerset.

9. Equality Implications
No

10. Corporate Implications
None

11. Options Considered
N/A
Author:

Pip Hesketh, Assistant Director for Education Parternerships

Appendices:
[Click here to enter Appendices]

Background Papers:
SEND Self Evaluation

Page 12



Ofsted/CQC
SEND
cngagement e

CEO, North Somerset Council

- CEO, Integrated Care Board

October 24 2023 - CEO, North Somerset Parents and Carers Working

Together (NSPCWT)

- Interim Director of Children’s Services

- Director of Nursing and Quality

- Assistant Director, Education Partnerships
n[]R'I'H PC > North m : : : :
'I'} § \ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset - Assistant Director, Children’s Social Care
-

SOMERSET COUHCH a?egraggjucgg S)L%ucestershire



Contents

Our Self-Evaluation Our overall strengths

Our Vision

Summary of 12-month

Our governance
plan

T abed

Our context Evaluation Criteria

Increase in heeds and
demand Glossary

Outcomes for children




Evaluation

GT obed

Criter

ld

Children and young people’s needs
are identified accurately and assessed
in a timely way

Children, Young People, and their
Families participate in decision-
making about their individual plans
and support

Children and young people receive
the right help and support at the right
time

Children and Young People are well
prepared for their next steps and
achieve strong outcomes

Children and Young People with SEND
are valued, visible and included in
their communities

Leaders are ambitious for children
and young people with SEND

POOOOO

Leaders actively engage and work
with children, young people, and
families

Leaders have an accurate, shared
understanding of the needs of
children and young people in their
local area

Leaders commission services and
provision to meet the needs and
aspirations of children and young
people

Leaders evaluate services and make
improvements

Leaders create an environment for
effective practice and multi-agency
working to flourish

Alternative provision



Our SEF is developed with input from across our partnership

and is owned by us all. It represents the work of our Local n ORT H pC}

Area Partnership, which includes the six statutory partners

of SOMERSET LT

T h e Health
e Children’s and Adult’s Social Care

deVelOpment e Education

e Our Parent Carer Forum (NSPCWT) (\,' North
e SAY: SEND and You (SENDIAS) >
of O u r S e lf e Schools and settings % \ Somerset
: N Councl|
E V a I. U at | O ﬂ Our Local Area Partnership governance has supported this

process through regular scrutiny, review, and support in
addition to a range of activities including:

e Stakeholder and partner workshops m
e Presentations Bristol, North Somerset
e Surveys and South Gloucestershire

e Engagement of children, young people, and their families IDtEgraEd CareiEosia



e North Somerset’s work in SEND is a strategic priority for all partners in the local area. Our system is
rapidly improving and is characterised by innovation, commitment, and partnerships

e Between receiving a SEND Improvement Notice in November 2021 and having this lifted in full
by the Minister in July 2023, there has been determination within North Somerset to shift the
existing paradigm

T h e e Our ownership, leadership, partnership, and capacity in SEND services have changed
significantly through an intensive programme of improvement work and close and regular
b a C kg r O u n d internal scrutiny from system leaders
e Our ambitions for our children and young are high and we are committed to achieving
t O O u r- S e lf these by working alongside parents, carers, and children and young people
e The new SEND Inspection Framework provides opportunities to review and evaluate our
practices through a new lens

Evaluation

e We have learnt a great deal through our engagement; going forward, we want to hear
more about stakeholder experiences, from more stakeholders, more frequently

e Our self-evaluation has highlighted areas of strength alongside the need for further improvement
work underpinned by strong and visible leadership, robust and healthy partnerships, a deep
understanding of our system, and a resolve to succeed

h Gl hi
SOMERSET COUﬂCI| 2233;&';9 E(;.:ujacrtiucesters ire

ﬂ ORTH pc} \Sh ggrrr‘:re‘rset Bristol, North Somerset



O u I Ambitious
s W pathways,
Vision

Active, high quality
w accurate, timely destinations,
We want all children and young ®

Inclusive communication  meaningful

: systems rticipation
people with SEND to be safe and : d ; pa .t|C|pa.t|o
= ) ") Children and services, and in society
valued, ambitious for their i
young communities

futures, and to achieve their full Needs-led

. . people’s
potential. (Source: North services needs
Somerset 2021 SEND Strategy) identified

and met at

the earliest
opportunity

: and South Gloucestershire
COUOC' | Integrated Care Board

5 > North NHS

\ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

9
Resilient,
flexible, and
cooperative
partnership
working


https://n-somerset.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-09/send_strategy_-_page_plan_acc.pdf

Our Vision

The outcomes we are committed to for our children and young people:

Strong and system-wide ownership of our SEND
Strategy enables implementation of SEND reforms.
These reforms are driven by committed leadership
across the local area which is well coordinated and
effective

All agencies contribute fully and in a timely way
to Education Health & Care Plans which are high
quality and aspirational, with processes in place
for monitoring the quality of plans

abed

There is enough capacity within the local area to
recognise need, and provide support,
implementing the SEND reforms effectively

Arrangements for joint commissioning are well
developed

The standards achieved by Children and Young
People with SEND are in line with statistical
neighbours. Increased parental confidence of
parents and carers that mainstream school will
meet their child or young person’s needs

There are robust systems to track outcomes for
children and young people with SEND across the
partnership. These outcomes and associated targets
are regularly reviewed by senior leaders




0z abed

Morth Somerset Council Executive

Health and Wellbeing Board

Morth Somerset Council Executive
Children & Young People’s Policy & Scrutiny Panel

Children & Young People’s Partnership Board

Local Authority Chief Executive Officer chairs, Directors from Local

Authaority, Integrated Care Bosrd, Police, 5choals et

Systermn Chief Executives

MN5C — Corporate Leadership Team

Team

M5C — Children’s Directorate Leadership

Regular Reports by AD EP

w

SEND Improvement Board:
CEQs of NSC, ICB, Sirona

Exec Member for Children’s Services & Lifelong Learning
Fip Hesketh, Assistant Director, Education Partnerships, Advisor to the Board
Caralyn Fair, Interim Assistant Director, Children's Ssfeguarding & Support, Advisor to the Board
Rosi Shepherd, Director of Nursing and Ousality, Advisor to the Board

Kenton Mae, NSPOWT, Advisor to the Board
Jim Zmith, Secondary 5choal, Advisor to the Board

Ed Bowen Roberts, Specizl 5chool, Advisor to the Board

Emma Bray, Primary S2chool, Advisor to the Bosrd

F

SEMD Community of Practice Group
Local partnersincl. SENDIAS,
MEPCWT, Local Authority Elected
Members

Delegzted Chairs

M5C and
School
mieatings
DCS/AD
EP/ Head
of L&A /
Head
Teachers

F 9

L 3

MSPCWT and MN5C
Leadership Team:
Eenton Mae — MSFOWNT
Director, Childran's
Jervices
Clir Catherine Gibbonz
Aszistant Director,
Education Partrierships

F

Children and Young People’s SEMD Council

Improving the Lives of Gur Children
Health and Care Improvement Group

!

Integrated Care Board (ICB)

¥

SEMD Engine Room:
All six Arez Leads

L 3

MSPCWT and Integrated
Care Board Leadership
Team
Kenton Mee — NSPOWT
Director, Children's
Services
Mark Hemmings,
Children’'s Performance
Manager
Annz Clark, Children’s

FPerformance Manager

loint Commissioning Group:
Commissioners and Finance Leads from North
Somerset Council and Integrated Care Board —
jointly chaired by Kenton Mee, NSPCWT/Alison
StonefAnna Clark




Y = -

42 846 children 1,957 children 64 primary schools 12 libraries
and young people with an EHCP 11 secondary schools
O u r in North 3,542 SEN 4 Special Schools

Somerset Support 1 PRU

context in m @
P\l or t h 35 parks and open 8% of children with r

95 languages

spaces English as an

- spoken !
S O m e rS e t 5 nature reserves additional language /\,R_j
50 play grou nds Distribution of children with SEND in North Somerset
y\
16% of children 7% of children 14 Children’s 85% of our schools
eligible for free from Black, Asian, Centres graded Good or
school meals and other ethnic Outstanding

communities



Increase in heed and demand

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities

Like other authorities, the incidence of special educational
need has increased significantly in recent years. Our greatest

North Somerset’s growth in demand in SEMH is over 4 times that of
the national picture, as shown by the table below it has increased

increases are the incidence of Autism and Social, Emotional by 290%.
and Mental Health. SEMH accounts for about 29.3% of all EHC
@lans. Demand for EHCPs has increased by 14.7%
D
N
N)
Snapshot in January England Southwest North Somerset ASD HI MLD | MSI PD | PMLD | SEMH | SLCN | SLD | SpLD VI | Unknown
2017 287.290 26.471 637 Jan-18 1 yer | 20 | 108 | 2 31 30 | 134 | 9% | 71| 19 5 27
2018 319,819 29,196 856 Jan-19 | 488 | 18 | 1168 | 2 3 | 34 | 173 | 124 | 69 | 15 9 :
2019 393,995 33,098 900 Jan-20 | 513 | 23 | 114 | 2 33 | 33 | 195 | 118 | 106 | 16 | 10 2
20 390,109 37,997 1,022 Jan-21 | o7 | 27 | 149 | 3 34 35 | 206 | 140 | 104 | 16 | 12 1
2021 430,697 42 160 1,287 Jan2
5025 7325 16,557 1 55 302 | 27 190 3 39 41 415 | 171 94 17 14 1
2023 (January) 517 026 50,887 1785 ;J;n-zs 421 33 | 270 4 49 51 523 | 264 | 116 | 32 15 7
2023 (August) Not available Not available 1,918 increase
cro qa. | 152% | 65% | 155% | 100% | 58% | 70% ) | 175% | 63% | 68% | 200%
% increase - 2017 to 2023 79.96% (Jan 23) 92.23% (Jan 23) | 180.2% (Jan 23) 23




Increase in need and demand

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities

The proportion of pupils with an EHC Plan has remained at SEMH need has grown by 290% and is 29.3% of the overall need.

around 3% of the total school-age population. Fewer pupils in (Data in graph below is January 2023 census)
North Somerset schools receive SEND support than their

national counterparts and this gap has increased in 2023. This
Is inversely proportionate to the increase in EHCPs.

T
Q
%
Bg % of Pupils with Special Educational Needs (SEN) Support EHCP pupils per primary needs in North Somerset
Schools - 2022/23
==North Somerset =e=England
14.00 Multi- Sensory Impairment | 0075
200 1180 1170 11.80 1210 Visuval Impairment l L ::‘.’.,_.L_'
- - Other Difficulty/Disabiiity [’ 555
= Hearing Impailrmment y29
B 100 103 103 s
é Physical Disability [ i G
E 0.00 Frofound & Mulliple Learning Difficulty r __'1...
'§ 8.00 Specific Learning Difficulty - T
- Severe Learning Difficulty _‘ ¢
F 3
im Moderate Learning l:,‘.lilin:_"ll,,vI!‘1|.|I t
300 Speech. Language and Communications needs
Avutistc ._"..I':u'.-clrur'n Ditorcder
0.00 - social. Emotional and Mental Health
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
O, DOV O 20,00 Z25.00M 3000 35,000
B North Soimierset W England




Health Services

e Despite additional investment, services remain under
pressure and demand is leading to longer waiting

o
Increase In
need and , . “
times for some services. We forecast that our waiting
d e m a n d ::ii?gvglililc)izntinue to grow across BNSSG despite the

e The ICB Transformation Hub is reviewing Autism
service delivery to develop a service that is able to

meet the needs of the BNSSG population moving

BriStOI, North Somerset e Further system discussion is required to review the
and South G |oucestershire provision of Community Paediatric services to ensure

that this service is future proofed
Integrated Care Board P

e A number of projects are taking place to support the
efficiency of the services and support the longest
waiters in the system. In Health services, this includes:
waiting list initiatives; demand and capacity reviews;
waiting list and caseload analysis; harm reviews; and a
review service skill mix alongside recruiting trainees




Increase in heed and demand

Mental Health Services

The increase in referrals to Children & Adolescent Mental
Health Services (CAMHS) have been well managed by
transferring CAMHS from Weston General Hospital to Avon and
Wlltshlre Partnership NHS Trust (AWP). We have reduced
&valtlng lists from ~500 to ~40 young people.

N
ol

There is a high demand for children’s community mental health
services. Over 38 schools have Mental Health Support Teams in
place, working with a school population of 16,000.

Between April and July we received 130 referrals for therapeutic
work with students and we delivered workshops titled ‘Coping with
Transition’ to 500 year 6 students, plus many other whole school
approach activities. Mental Health Support Teams work in
partnership with Front Door services, Off the Record Bristol,
School Nurses, and CAMHS.

Number of referrals to CAMHS
1200
1000

940
814
800
600 504
400
200 135
o ]

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

1049

Total number of young people waiting for
assessment by quater

600

400

200

0
O PN A A L
A

& & &
K o & @'b*s*}cﬂ



e End of Early Years Foundation Stage: North Somerset children performed worse than national
averages from 2015 to 2022. In 2023, the percentage of children achieving the good level of
development has increased from O to 3%

Educational | | | | |
e End of Key Stage 1: children performed slightly better in 2023 than the previous year in
ou tco mes fo r writing, but worse in reading and mathematics. When comparing with the national
. figures in 2022, North Somerset children performed worse than their counterparts in all
children and subjects

yo un g p €o p le e End of Key Stage 2: the percentage of North Somerset children achieving the expected
Children and young standard in reading, writing, and mathematics combined has increased between 2022-

people with EHCPs 2023 from 2% to 6%. When comparing with previous years, North Somerset children
tend to perform worse than their counterparts nationally from 2017 to 2022

e End of Key Stage 4: data is not yet available for 2023. In 2022, North Somerset children
and young people achieved similar attainment 8 scores to the national figures (14.20
compared to 14.30 nationally)

: and South Gloucestershire
COUOC” Integrated Care Board

v NHS
HOHTH pc (} North Bristol, North Somerset
SOMERSET "':1' § \ Somerset



North Somerset SEND data and performance dashboard \(ELNO{I'[llérset

Attainment COUNCIL

Select SEND category
This page gives information on attainment across key stages. Note that 2022/2023 data is provisional.

EHCP v
KS1 Percentage of pupils achieving reading expected KS1 Percentage of pupils achieving writing expected KS1 Percentage of pupils achieving Mathematics KS1 Percentage of pupils achieving Science expected
standard - pupils with SEN statement/EHCP standard - pupils with SEN statement/EHCP expected standard - pupils with SEN statement/EHCP standard - pupils with SEN statement/EHCP
@ North Somerset @South West @ England @ North Somerset @South West @ England @ North Somerset @South West @ England @ North Somerset @ South West @ England
40% a 20%

33% 9 9
14% 14% 4% 14%
Q,
) ] ) I I I - h I I ] ' -
0% 0% 0%
© A ® 9 g > © A ® y’ ’5 © A ® 0 g >
OOREINRO MR S {L‘:’j’ ,L@’?f ORI ﬁﬁ“‘ N\ «LQ:TL @1 oS oS H*::a" OSNEIR aRN
ROLLGNS LAVR\ COIC S LI SRNPRC R LR L A\ SR R (L P R A L
"1.“1‘ 1‘1‘ OSNEE SNE  ME N M A P DT P P P 9P PP P P P P
FS - Percentage of pupils achieving a good KS2 attainment of statemented/EHCP Attainment 8 score - pupils with SEN Progress 8 score - pupils with SEN
level of development - pupils with SEN children RWM combined statement/EHCP statement/EHCP
statement/EHCP
@ North Somerset @ South West @England @ North So... @South W... @5Stat Neig... @ England @ North So... @South W... @Stat Neig... @ England
@ North Somerset @South West @England 0.0

(¥

o

11%
5% 5%
10% 9%
4% 4% -0.
4% 9 7%
5% -1.
2% 3¢
0% : -1.5
0% 0%

A @ WO ar D @ WO N D & WO N
'\ ' “\ " % "\ M, M

AT Y N l«ﬂf@ ,I;L\’b“l o ,\bﬂf“ AP o ,L«,x’b“q" ,ﬁﬁf@ ,\«:ﬁ“ ,\bﬂ“ ,\q\lﬁ o o ,Lgx’if@l»\ﬂf@ R S S S
0>\ S S S VA WO BV O QT S O WY AT BN ST AN O 9 @,&@ lﬁﬂbﬂ lﬁ,\ﬂ@ qp"‘%@ 1@«‘@



e End of Early Years Foundation Stage: North Somerset children performed worse than national
averages from 2015 to 2022. In 2023, the percentage of children achieving the good level of
development remained similar to 2022 (21% compared to 22%)

Educational
outcomes for
children and
young people

e End of Key Stage 1: children performed slightly better in 2023 than the previous year in
writing and mathematics, but slightly worse in reading. When comparing with the
national figures in 2022, North Somerset children performed better than their
counterparts in all subjects

e End of Key Stage 2: the percentage of North Somerset children achieving the expected

Children and young standard in reading, writing, and mathematics combined has remained the same

people Ta receipt of between 2022-2023. When comparmg with prewou.s years, North Somerset children
tend to perform worse than their counterparts nationally

SEND support

e End of Key Stage 4: data is not yet available for 2023. In 2022, North Somerset children
achieved higher attainment 8 scores than national figures (36.7 compared to 34.9
nationally)

- and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

° NHS
HOHTH pc (} North Bristol, North Somerset
SOMERSET T4 § \ Somerset



Select SEND category

SEN school support N

KS1 Percentage of pupils achieving reading expected

standard - pupils with SEN support

@ North Somerset @South West @ England

40% 36%34% 3% 32%

29%
B I EL%I I I

I\ A9 b a»
Q V) r'l_':) fLQI

v v v
,\cj‘n N AD!
fl\D}ﬁ o o o *:.a SV

FS - Percentage of pupils achieving a good
level of development - With SEN Support

@ North Somerset @South West @England
21%

30% 565,27% 28%
22 22%
20%
10% |
0%

n\‘i‘) A9 Q;'fb ’Lgf}

'l-ﬁ
@ﬂ\ mﬁﬂ%\ ’bﬁlﬁ Q}’ﬂ

©
QO N
u‘\%ﬁ" ﬁ’\bﬂ’
g 0

North Somerset SEND data and performance dashboard \(ELNorth

Attainment

omerset

COUNCIL

This page gives information on attainment across key stages. Note that 2022/2023 data is provisional.

KS1 Percentage of pupils achieving writing expected
standard - pupils with SEN support

@ North Somerset @South West @ England

25%
22% 22%

20% 17%

QW

"0 7 >
L S o (191

{L
'ﬂ‘l‘& SN\

KS2 attainment of SEN non
statemented/EHCP children RWM combined

@ North Somerset @ South West @England

qop 2%
21%
20% 9% gu 19%
16%
10% I
J\

1
AD o 2
o fb“ OO o) “7’ @@'
CD -\';D {"L :\?} r'l:\
WAV Y A Y 0

KS1 Percentage of pupils achieving Mathematics
expected standard - pupils with SEN support

@ North Somerset @South West @Englar

Attainment 8 score - pupils with SEN support

@ North So... @South W... @Stat Neig... @ Eng

KS1 Percentage of pupils achieving Science expected
standard - pupils with SEN support

@ North Somerset @ South West @ England

57%

51%
°46%

O% I

0%

’ N N Q’\%
Ui ,\11

° 1 °

A5 b
N?J"-lﬁ 11{}

o
S g

Progress 8 score - pupils with SEN Support

@ North So... @South W... @Stat Neig... @ England

0.0

-0.2

-0.4

-0.38
43 " -0.43 :
O® 047
-0.6 €
0.7
-0.7
0.8

-0.8

o & D O 1
Q ﬂ @Q ﬂﬁ 0 d?-»
-\Q:J -{ql. -\% z-l,:\

1 © ° ° oy



There is strong, committed,
and visible leadership of the
system across the local area

We have shifted the SEND culture
together and secured meaningful
change. We have no intention of

slowing down N

There is a robust partnership between
services and we increasingly work

together with common purpose and €_§

s%ared goals at all levels of the system

w
o

There is a positive relationship with parents and
carers. We regularly work with parents and carers
as equal partners in non-hierarchical forums and
NSPCWT is central to shaping future plans,
practice review, and governance arrangements

SEND has become a high priority for
all parts of the system and is the focus
for the collaborative and individual
work undertaken by partners such as

schools and settings

/

—S are committed to increasing our

Our overall
strengths

AN

We know where we are going.
We have a clear vision and
everyone understands their
role in making this a reality

Our ambition for our children and
younhg people is high. We are
passionate, focused, and determined

We are hearing children and young
people’s voices more clearly and

dialogue with them

\ There is arigorous use of data and

performance monitoring regimes. System
leaders have a good grip on performance
and hold practitioners to account

There are high levels of innovation in

our practice. Practitioners are

engaged, energised, and empowered

to be solution focused



Areas of
focus -
emerging
strengths

AORTHPS+

SOMERSET

Councll

%(% glgrrrtigrset

NHS

Bristol, North Somerset

and South Gloucestershire
Integrated Care Board

Our communication with parents and carers is improving but every parent and
carer must have the same positive experience of communication with us -
wherever and whenever they contact the SEND system

Our children and young people are influential in our strategic thinking; we will
build a regular dialogue with a much larger and more diverse cohort of children
and young people

We have felt the benefits of working across agencies through the system changes
we have made; we are resolved to fully embed this culture in all aspects of our
work

We have created additional resources to respond to the requests for statutory
assessments, including 500 proactive assessments through our Safety Valve
agreement

Improving timeliness is a priority - our Educational Psychologists have doubled
the rate of assessments from 30 to 60 per month

We are committed to improving Children’s Support and Safeguarding
contributions to needs assessments and participation in decision making in
SEND with a coordinated input into each Panel. We have created a dedicated
resource to manage this

We are developing a place-based CPD programme for schools with the Multi
Academy Trusts and the Teaching Schools Alliance to close the gaps for
children with SEND



Areas of
focus -
emerging
strengths

AORTHPSy,

SOMERSET

Councll

%(% glgrrrtigrset

000O0H6006

NHS

Bristol, North Somerset

and South Gloucestershire
Integrated Care Board

We want to engage parents, carers, children, and young people to
understand whether our investment continues to be aligned with their own
priorities in the £40m annual joint commissioining activity

We are addressing pressures in Community Mental Health Services by
increasing resources available and developing further support for those
children and young people in crisis

We are reshaping the Children with Disabilities service to ensure that they
provide the right service at the right time in a continuum of support

Services which have recruitment challenges will continue to adapt and
review their current delivery model and skill mixes to mitigate against and
reduce the risk of harm where waiting lists for services are lengthy

A Transformation Programme for Autism Services is taking place to design
services that will meet the needs of the local community

We are developing a new Pathways to Adulthood programme to include travel
training, independence training, community participation, and career and
further/higher education support and advice for all young people with SEND

Our Pupil Referral Unit and Special Schools are creating a new preventative
approach to Alternative Provision which increases availability of support to a
wider group of children and young people, including those with health needs



Summary of 12-month plan to improve the
experiences and outcomes of children and young
people with SEND

Pathways to
Adulthood

e Build on existing work

Tackling resourcing

challenges
e Use all means

Early Help and support

Communication

e Progress a comprehensive e Strengthen the offer

cc abed

Engagement/Participation
Plan to ensure we listen
and respond to voices from
the widest possible group
of parents, carers, and
children and young people
Greatly improve day to day
communication with
parents and carers

Build on the strengths of
our communication with
children and young people
to understand the lived
experiences of a bigger and
more diverse group of
children

through our Early
Help services for
children and young
people

Improve timeliness of
SEND Needs
Assessments and re-
establish a
performance of >70%
Understand the
delivery capacity
within the community
paediatrics service
and review/re-design
the health offer to
support the
neurodivergence

possible to secure and
sustain the specialist
resources we need in
health and other

disciplines such as

EPs

Where we cannot
attract the resources,
we will keep our
delivery models under
review and provide
support for those on
waiting lists

to develop a new plan
for Preparing for
Adulthood for all
children with SEND in
Year 9

NHS

transformation plan

: and South Gloucestershire
COUﬂCl | Integrated Care Board

> North .
\ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



Summary of 12-month plan to improve the
experiences and outcomes of children and young
people with SEND

Joint Commissioning Improved Children’s Inclusive Settings and Schools

e Launch the Early Years and Education
strategies and build a culture of
relational practice in schools
Develop placed based CPD programmes
to close the gaps for our most
vulnerable children
Consolidate the work of Nurture Groups
and develop an Early Years Nurture Pilot
to meet emerging needs
Create a new alternative provision (AP)
pathway via the Voyage Learning
Campus
Rescope the offer of our Pupil Referral
Unit to make preventative and outreach
services available earlier to a wider
group of children and young people, and
drive the commissioning and quality
assurance of AP via this model

e Recalibrate our approach
to joint commissioning,
including governance
arrangements

e Embed joint commissioning
of Speech and Language
and Occupational Therapy
services through single
provider

Support and
Safeguarding Services

e Embed the lead role
for coordinating
Children’s Support
and Safeguarding
contributions to EHC
Needs Assessments
Provide a more
comprehensive Short
Breaks offer

7€ obed

> North NHS
\ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
COUOC' | Integrated Care Board



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

Increased training in SEND delivered for practitioners in all disciplines across the system.
Within the last two years:
e 18 sessions of SEND-focused training in the last year accessed by 266 Early Years

1. Children and oractitioners
young people’s

e New Inclusion Co-ordinator (INCCO) training to 23 new SEND Coordinators (SENDCO)
e 28 Child minders undertook specialist SEND training to enable earlier identification of

N eed S are need and appropriate support for children with SEND as part of our SEND Childminder
. .« o Programme
identified e Health Visitors and Community Nursery Nurses (CNNs) have all received training in the

accurate ly and last yea}cr including identification of risk factors that may mean families require additional
! suppor

assessed In a e Health Visitors trained in delivering Maternal Early Childhood Sustained Home-visiting
° and CNNs trained on attachment and early brain development

time ly Way e Health visitor staff trained in the use of Early Language Identification Measure (ELIM)
assessment tool which is universally completed at the 2-year review

e All schools have had access to SEND training this year and our Teaching Schools Alliance
has embedded SEND and Inclusion into mandatory training for all Early Career Teachers
and for leaders. In 2022/2023, 75 out of 80 schools engaged with the training

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND
Tools to support the identification of need
e A new version of the Graduated Response was co-produced by the Community of Practice and
launched in March 2023 with the Parent Carer Forum alongside training sessions for schools and

settings
1. Children and e We have introduced AANT (Analysis of Additional Needs Tool) within our Front Door to enable rapid
y assessment of need by the Education Psychology Service
yO un g p €0 p l-e S e Over 40 schools are now using the Nurture UK model of assessing needs through the Boxall Profile.
N eed S are After 2 ter.ms of Nurture Group attendance, children and young people can return to the classroom
and learn independently
|d en t|f| e d e We have published a Right Service, Right Time pathway document across our partnership to support
professionals working with children and young people and signpost them to the most appropriate
aCCU rately aﬂd Support

e We have created 6 training videos for Early Years Practitioners to support the identification and
support for children with SEMH

assessed In a
timely way

Resumed regular services:

e Our Health Visiting Services have improved, and we are meeting targets for 2-year reviews to provide
families with timely care - Health Visitors, who often first identify needs at 2-year-old checks, are
achieving 90% timeliness post COVID

e Services in all therapy areas in North Somerset have been levelled up and aligned to the other areas in
BNSSG to create a consistent and equitable regional service offer

e Families, education partners, and more children are now offered services in line with iThrive

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board


https://www.nurtureuk.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/Boxall-Profile-Leaflet-2019.pdf

The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

Timeliness

1. C h | ld ren an d e Timeliness has been greatly impacted by a rise in demand nationally and in North
young people’s somerset . |

e |n addition to increases to regular system demand, we are assessing over 500 children
needs are who are in receipt of Top Up Funding but have no EHCP to regulate the system in line

with other authorities
e Thereis a backlog of 134 unallocated Education, Health, and Care Needs Assessments

identified

accurately ana (EHCNAS)
i e Of the 500+ children, we have had new requests to assess 138 of them ahead of our
dSSESSE d N a schedule, thus increasing our total number of EHCNA requests for the year by 29% to

468 (01.08.23)

e This has put extra pressure on agencies who provide the assessments and advice

e Without these extra EHCNA requests, our timeliness would have been in the region of
60%

e Further resources for the EP and SEND services are due to take up posts later in 2023 to
help improve this figure further

timely way

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
QI%I?R]S.!-TI p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

Quality Assurance
e EHCPs are quality assured in a two-stage process. In September 2022 a Quality Assurance

1. Children and Officer joined the SEND Team to lead on the improvement of the quality of EHC Plans

e The number of plans rated good increased from 50% to 73% and parent/carer contributions
increased from 53% to 82%

e Thereis improved evidence of the child’s voice throughout their plan, but this is an area
where we need to do better

young people’s
needs are
identified

N Impact
accurate I*y and e Springboard, our commissioned specialist Early Years provision, has received an increase in
assessed In a referrals for support and now supports 85 children with sessions and an additional 12
. children in their mainstream settings. We have had a 65% increase in presentations of Autism
time ly Way at Springboard since the beginning of the academic year

e Area SENDCO Visits are all running to schedule — new visits have increased by 66%. These
visits lead to applications for Top Up Funding to support children in Early Years

e Qutcomes from children discussed at MAISEY included support from social care and
appropriate preschool and school placements being secured

e Early identification of need by Health Visitors has led to 96 children referred into, and
attending, the CNN led Tiny Talkers speech and language group since May 2022

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board



Our plans for the next 12 months to improve the experience and outcomes
of children and young people with SEND

We will:
1. Children and e Increase Education Psychologist capacity and address the backlog of EHCPs
yo un g p eo p le’s e Strengthen the offer through our Early Help services for children and young
people with SEND
needs are e Provide more consistent advice at SEND Decision Panels by Children’s Support

and Safeguarding - especially for children with SEMH needs
e Improve performance of our Community Paediatric and Autism services

identified

accurate [y and e Continue to improve the children’s community health service offer
i e Build on the implementation of Mental Health Support Teams (MHSTs) in North
assessed in a Somerset to increase capacity of the teams in place

e Continue to strengthen and improve access to CAMHS services alongside
reviewing the offer in North Somerset to ensure there is equitable access
across the region

e Embed our joined-up approach to SaLT and OT commissioning

e Embed a consistent approach to Graduated Response support

timely way

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
QI%I?R]S.!-TI p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



Focus on practice - Nurture Group feedback

“I would like to say how grateful | am that [my child] has had this
opportunity to attend [Nurture Groupl]. This has helped him feel so
confident and proud of himself, he comes home saying he has done

. independent learning and doing great with his phonics. Thank you again.”
1. Children and

)
Nn
yo U g p €0 p l‘e = “If they had had something like this when | was at
nee d S are school, things could have turned out differently for

dentified

dcCu rat € l'y an d “The [Nurture Group] has provided a consistent, calm, and most importantly safe

- " environment for my son. With the consistency of the two teachers in the nurture
dSSESSE d In a provision he has been able to establish attachments which has been essential to
his feeling safe in school. The separation anxiety which was a massive struggle for
us both at his previous school disappeared very early days as he knew exactly
what his day looked like and formed relationships with the same teachers. This
calming environment and the routine have been able to help him regulate but
most importantly learn. | was previously told that he could not learn in a school
environment and certainly not work unsupported, this has been proven to be
untrue as | have never known him to talk and share so much about what he's
learned but also is working unsupported in many areas. Where school had
previously felt unsafe the nurture provision has been an essential part of him
settling in and being happy in a new school environment.”

timely way

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
\ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

e All requests for Inclusion Support in Early Years and for Early Years Top Up Funding offer
young children and their families the opportunity to fully participate
e The "A Picture of Me" is a child-centred one page profile used consistently in applications for

2. Children,

Youn g Peo p le’ Ezir(l:);Years Top Up Funding and through the Inclusion Link Programme to capture the child's
Y

an d th ei I e Our ICB and health care providers involve children and young people with co-production

Fam | |.| es through several channels including Barnardos, who empower young people to use their voice
and experience to create positive change in local health services

parti Cl pate Ta e The voice of the child is a key tenet and measure of the quality of practice across all 6

. . . Fundamentals with Children’s Support and Safeguarding and is especially evident in our

dacision-maki ng work around Language that Cares

ab out t h e ir e Our Young Director (a Care Experienced Young Person) is supporting us to be more inclusive,
have a better understanding of children and young people’s needs, and ensuring we involve

individual P lans children and young people in how services are shaped

e Our Engagement & Participation Worker for SEND manages our SEND Council and is
managing MAT-based SEND Councils to create a direct dialogue between leadership and
children and young people with SEND

and support

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
\ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

2. Children,
Young People,
and their
Families

participate in
decision-making
about their
iIndividual plans
and support

(é North
\ Somerset

Councill

NHS

We have not always been successful in engaging parents and carers in the statutory Needs
Assessment process but have improved our performance over recent months with a 31%
Increase in participation
o In October 2022, the percentage of parents fully contributing to their child/young
person’s EHC plan was 53% compared with 82% in April 2023
The EHCP Portal (introduced in 2021) offers parents, carers, children, and young people the
opportunity to comment on the assessments of needs and the plans as they are developed
o A further workshop at the Day of SEND on October 18 2023 has been arranged
Within the last year we have greatly improved our quality assurance process and one of the
key measures has been the participation of children and young people in their own plans. A
recent sample of 100 EHC plans showed that children's views were captured in each plan
To improve engagement, we have recently introduced an expectation that SEND officers
speak to every parent/carer immediately following a request for assessment of their child,
and again when we agree to assess
o This structured conversation centres on their aspirations for their child and what they
hope to gain from the assessment
We have created a Parent/Carer Liaison Officer post to help respond to parent and carer
concerns, identify themes in the difficulties and challenges parents and carers have with the
process and work with the team to address these

Bristol, North Somerset
and South Gloucestershire

Integrated Care Board



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

e Our SENDIAS Service is active and popular with parents and carers. 95% of respondents said
they found the help received from SAY: Send And You helpful or very helpful
2 Children ’ e Last year we commissioned SENDIAS to provide brokerage and support for parents and
carers who felt their child wasn’t getting what they needed from school
Youn 8 Peo p le, o This service has supported 77 families receiving SEN Support

and their o 43 of those families have received support with preparing for meetings with their school,
" including 3 children who were supported to prepare their own views for the meetings
Fami |,| es o 4 service users required a higher level of support and increased hours of support due to

their own access needs
e We have a close working relationship with North Somerset Parents and Carers Working

participate in

dacision-makin g Together (NSPCWT), our Parent Carer Forum and routinely work collaboratively with them
: on the development of policy and important changes which affect outcomes for them and
about their their children
. o They have supported the development of a number of useful face to face meetings with
individual plans ° ey PP © ceverop . N
parents and carers to discuss important issues for them such as placement decisions and
and su pport transitions

o We regularly attend NSPCWT events to meet parents and carers including the Transitions
event in November 2022 where we saw in excess of 100 parents and 10 young people.
Our NS Lead delivered a joint presentation with the Jack Hazeldene Foundation (AP
provider) on practical skills for parents/understanding processes during transition

> North NHS
\ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board




The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

e Our SEND Council of children and young people is now well established and new
membership from September 2023 has increased the representation from a more diverse

2. Children, cohort

Youn g Peo P le: e The SEND Council regularly meets with system leaders and sets its own agenda, reflecting
an d t h ei r the priorities of children and young people. This years agenda includes:

Fam | |_| es o How to reach other children and young people
o The use of language and terminology that is neutral and respectful
o Upskilling professionals to improve their ability to understand needs and the impact of

participate in
decision-making their actions

o The environment: making this more accessible to more children and young people,
including low arousal spaces

about their

o .« o OQur ambitions for children and young people with SEND - are they high enough?
individual P lans o Help to understand your own additional needs, making judgements about what and how
and support much to share

o Social lives: creating ways to connect with others and taking up leisure opportunities
o How to manage assessments and exams

> North NHS
\ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board




Our plans for the next 12 months to improve the experience and outcomes
of children and young people with SEND

We will:

2.C hi ld ren, e Improve clarity about what can be provided through the universal offer for
Younsg Peo le children and young people with SEND

g : p ’ e Promote engagement and development of our re-launched Local Offer
an d t h elr e Improve our reach with parents and carers to include represwentatives of more
diverse communities

Families e Introduce a plan for Preparing for Adulthood for every young person at year 9
parti Ci pate Ta e Improve awareness among parents and carers who elect to home educate their
. . children
dacision-makin g e Support parents and carers with direct payments information
ab out t h e ir e Increase our brokerage and support offer fqr parent§ and carers from SENDIAS
e Improve our careers opportunities and advice for children and young people
iIndividual plans with SEND
e Review our use of advocates to ensure everyone who needs one has one
an d Su p p ort e Achieve consistency in listening to the child/young person’s voice from schools

e Develop a plan and narrative to address the backlog of EHC timeliness and the
autism pathway

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
QI%I?R]S.!-TI p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



Focus on practice - SEND Council

2. Children,
Young People,
and their
Families

participate in
decision-making
about their
iIndividual plans
and support

The SEND Council is a group of children and young people from primary, secondary, and Special
Schools with a range of needs. They meet monthly to share their voice and experiences with
senior leaders in the local authority and are provided with the opportunity to discuss what
positive changes they would like to see for people with SEND in North Somerset.

They have spoken to councillors about:
e the use and impact of language
e mental health in schools
e health care
e post-16 opportunities

The SEND Council is instrumental in developing and challenging our services to continually
improve and meet the needs of children and young people with SEND. Plans are in place to
expand the cohort of students to include a wider range of additional needs in more schools and
settings. They have met with the SEND Improvement Board, including DfE/NHSE representatives,
and consulted on key strategies and policies — most recently, the Education Strategy, Local Offer
changes, and Pathways to Adulthood. The Community of Practice has invited the SEND Council to
talk to them about this during the Autumn Term.

The Council has created an awareness video of their lived experience and what matters to them.
It discusses the hurdles and challenges they face having hidden needs, as well as their strengths
and aspirations. This film is being used in training across the North Somerset Partnership.



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

3. Children and
young people
receive the right

halp and support
at the right time

Every Early Years setting has an Inclusion Officer who receives specialist SEND training to
support children with SEND

In Early Years, as soon as needs are identified which require a multi-agency approach
children are supported by MAISEY until they have successfully transitioned to school. There
are currently 143 children supported by MAISEY

When SEND needs exceed the support that can be provided within their Early Years setting,
they are supported through a specialist provider: Springboard. There are 97 children
currently receiving services from Springboard

There are 28 SEND childminders who had 19 children with SEND in their provision in 2022/23
59 children currently receive support from Portage services

We have supported 164 Early Years children with Top Up Funding and 1,427 school age
children

Each school has a trained SENDCO and there are 64 Emotional Literacy Support Officers
working across our schools

22 young people are receiving funded support through academy schools, 987 through
academies, 43 through Resource Bases, 12 through Special Schools, 345 through post-16
providers and 49 through the Voyage Learning Campus (PRU)

Block funding is also provided to Weston College and place funding is provided to all Special
Schools, including independent and out of area schools

and South Gloucestershire

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

3. Children and
young people
receive the right

halp and support
at the right time

This year, we have introduced 3 new Nurture Groups and 2 additional Resource Bases,
each supporting 8-10 pupils at any one time

We are mid delivery of 130 additional Special School places at Baytree School and
Lime Hills School

Significant improvements have been made in many areas which result in reduced
waiting times, for instance, in our Children and Young People’s Mental Health Services
In other areas, we have worked with parents and carers to support families on waiting
lists

Continuous review of risk of harm guides the management of the waiting lists for those
services where there are recruitment challenges such as Community Paediatrics

We have re-shaped some of our support services - SENDCAS, Buddying, Sitting
Service, and Portage and located them within the Children with Disabilities service.
This will improve the offer and reduce the need for children to be passed between
service areas

We have increased the uptake in the use of Direct Payments, which is linked to an
increase in the number of social care assessments for children with SEND

and South Gloucestershire

> North NHS
QI%I?R]S.!-TI p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board



Performance in SaLT, and Physiotherapy services have both exceeded their targets for appointment times. CAMHS and Health
Visitor Checks have both met their targets and Community Paediatrics and Occupational Therapy are below target. This situation
is being monitored closely by the ICB and the SEND Improvement Board.

Key Performance
Indicators — How
we will measure

Baseline

February Key
Performance
Indicator (3 months)

Actual progress February

May Key Performance
Indicator (6 months)

Actual progress May

12 months —November

Actual progress August 23

Monitored through monthly Monitored through monthly NOT MET
week referral to contract data contract data
treatment target for
Paediatrics &
Therapies
KPI: Paediatric92%  Paediatric 6% Paediatric 15% 9.4% Paediatric 25% 15% Paediatric 30% 11.8% (May 23)
KPI: Speech and Speech & Language  Speech & Language  60% Speech & Language 92% 80% Speech & Language 80% 98.1% (May 23) —exceeded
Language 92% 56% 92% predicted trajectory
KPI: Physiotherapy  Physiotherapy 88% Physiotherapy 80% 46% Physiotherapy 50% 60% Physiotherapy 45% 100% (May 23) —exceeded
92% predicted trajectory
KPI: Occupational Occupational Occupational 8.2% Occupational Therapy 50% 15% Occupational Therapy 35% 0% (March 23) —did not
Therapy 92% Therapy 8% Therapy 50% reach predicted trajectory
KPI: Health Visitor Health Visitor 2- Health Visitor 2- 87% Health Visitor 2-2.5year 80% Health Visitor 2-2.5year 87.43%(Q123/24)—met
checks 90% within 2.5year checks 79% 2.5year checks 90% checks 90% checks 90% November predicted
2.5 year trajectory
KPI: Child & Adult Specialised CAMHS Specialised CAMHS 100% Specialised CAMHS 100% Specialised CAMHS
Mental Health Emergency Service Emergency Service Emergency Service 100% Emergency Service 100% MET
Service emergency 100% 100% 100% met target

within 24 hours
100%

> North NHS
QJ%I?R]S.!-TI %} %{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

Council and South Gloucestershire

PARENT CARERS WORKING TOGETHER Integrated Care Board



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

3. Children and
young people
receive the right

halp and support
at the right time

> North

3

Somerset
Councll

NHS

Bristol, North Somerset

Children’s Centres offer activities for children under 5 (term time) and up to 8-10 (holiday)
activities delivered by Senior Children Centre Workers and Children Centre Workers who are
qualified to level 3 in early years child development

Planning and delivery of activities includes:
e Sensory
e Physical
e Tactile
e Social, emotional, mental health

These focus on ensuring that every child, including those with SEND, can access the activities.
The team provides activities on the floor for non-mobile children and toddlers, and multi-level
for those that are cruising, walking, or in wheelchairs. We offer summer activities for our older
children aged 5+. Singing and stories are always delivered with Makaton (where possible) and
this includes welcome and tidying up songs.

Activities delivered include:
e Sensory play
e Five To Thrive
e Boogie Beat
e Rhyme and Sign
e Let’s Play
e Tiny Talkers

and South Gloucestershire

Integrated Care Board



Our plans for the next 12 months to improve the experience and outcomes

3. Children and
young people
receive the right

halp and support
at the right time

> North

3

Somerset
Councll

NHS

of children and young people with SEND

We will:

Improve waiting list positions wherever possible and keep them under close scrutiny
Continue to invest in specialist provision to meet needs earlier through the delivery
of Nurture, Resource Bases, and Special School places

Deliver Trauma-Informed Practice Training for all schools and create a sustainable
network of lead practitioners

Deliver needs-led training in schools and settings

Launch the Education Strategy, Early Help Strategy, and Early Years Strategy and
embed these over the course of the year

Fully embed the Graduated Response and use mechanisms such as AANT and Nurture
Groups to meet needs before a diagnosis is made

Get better at taking a holistic view of the family through increased working together
by multi-agency professionals

Establish an Early Help network across health, education, and social care to improve
communication between services and reduce the number of times parents need to
tell their story

Extend outreach from Special Schools and the Voyage Learning Campus (PRU) to
support children and young people at an earlier stage and within their own schools

Bristol, North Somerset
and South Gloucestershire

Integrated Care Board



Focus on practice - Training for parent carers and professionals

Our Parent Carer Forum have filled 1000+ Training / Workshops places for parents, carers, and professionals alike.
Many of our training sessions are co-facilitated by a Peer Trainer from the Parent Carer Community

SENDIAS and NSPCWT have provided Peer Support in Schools & community settings (221 Parent Carers in 45
Schools / 568 Parent Carers at 105 coffee / engagement events)

Some examples of the courses for parent carers include:

3 C h | l.d ren an d e Incredible Years Autism and Speech Delay (14 weeks) for parents and carers with children 2-7 years
- e Parent Plus Special Needs (PPSN) Group (8 weeks) for parents and carers of children 11-25 years

e Non-Violent Resistance (NVR) (12 weeks) for parents and carers of children 9-18 years

young people

: : Other topics covered for parent carers and professionals include:
receive the right . buberty in Girts
2 e Dyslexia, Dyscalculia, and Dyspraxia
h"'l'p and SU pport e Anintroduction to FASD
at t h e ri g h t t| me e “How can | be a strong advocate for the child in my care

e “How to become confident for YOU”

e Parent/Carers Financial Advice Toolkit

e How to support your child with SEN with sleep
o Attachment and Childhood Trauma

e De-escalation in Challenging

Early Help staff training (including Children’s Centre Staff) includes:
e Trauma in Children and Young People
e Five to Thrive
e Co-producing accessible and inclusive Family Hubs

HUHTH pPC (&North e How Family Hubs can improve the lives of children and young people with SEND and those around them
SOMERSET T:' § \ ggmgirlset e Early Years Trauma and Repair

e Behaviour
e Early Years Makaton



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

Supporting transitions in early years and education

e h | ld ren an d e All children who are supported by MAISEY have transition plans which help them move
from Early Years provision into Reception

Youn g Peo P le are e MAISEY support does not stop until the team is confident that they have settled into their
new school

WE l.l p re p are d fO r e EYFS staff are supported by SENDCO’s and the council’s Early Years Team to work quickly

th e | r next ste pS to understand children’s needs and to put in place appropriate support and resources

' e Children with SEND begin their transition to secondary school during Year 6 when
ar d dC h NSAVAS transferring from a mainstream school to another mainstream school
stron g outcomes e Children and their parents and carers visit their new school and meet key staff. Work

between their existing school and their new school continues until the point of transfer.
Courses for parents and carers are provided

e Some children requiring additional support have a Re-Integration Worker working alongside
them throughout the transition process between schools and the support continues after
transition and phases out over the first two terms of secondary school

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
QI%I?R]S.!-TI p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

Supporting transitions in education

: e Our secondary schools already routinely offer Preparation for Adulthood training,
4. C hi ld ren an d information and advice to students with SEND, though the offer varies between

schools. We know that there are examples of schools working hard with students so
Youn g Peo p l'e are that they receive additional help and support from Year 9 onwards

well prepare d for o Students with SEND access a range of additional support so that they can partake fully
. in careers related trips and visits and work experience. When they move into post-16
L h eir next ste pS they have been well advised and are well equipped for next steps
ar d ac Ni eye e Our audit systems developed to quality assure our EHCPs evaluate whether outcomes
and aspirations that have been voiced by children and their families are embedded in
stron g ou tcomes plans and can be seen in the outcomes that have been agreed

e We are currently working across agencies to develop a package of transition
entitlements for every young person with SEND beginning with the Year 9 Annual
Review where an EHCP is in place and a planning meeting for young people with SEND
Support

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
QI%I?R]S.!-TI p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

Transitions to adulthood

g e Our SEND Hub (Local Offer) has been redesigned to offer guidance for young people
4.C h | ld ren an d and their parents and carers to access services to help them prepare for adulthood.
Youn g Peo P le are This includes advice on health, relationships, transport, further education,
employment, supported internships, housing, and community support
We ll p re pared fO I e Children’s Support and Safeguarding has improved the identification of young

people at 14 years old who may require services as adults
e The Short Breaks package of support in the 17th year is generally transferable to

their next steps
arid achieve Adult Services post 18

e No young person open to the Children with Disabilities Team is left without support
on their 18th birthday. Packages continue until a transition to Adult Social Care is
achieved

e Independent Travel Training offered to 68 young people

strong outcomes

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
QI%I?R]S.!-TI p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

4. Children and
Young People are
well prepared for

their next steps
arid achieve
strong outcomes

> North

3

Somerset
Councll

NHS

The Transitions Team
e The Transitions Team works with adults who are

trasferring into Adults Social Care services up to the
age of 25 or until a transition to a long-term adult
service is achieved (which is often before the adult
turns 25)

There is a single point of contact for transitions to
Adult Social Care and we have built good
relationships across services with regular contact
with schools / children’s teams

We develop creative solutions to supporting young
people to find the right accommodation and services
The Transitions Team attends transition workshops
for parents and have built specific skills (for
example: Talking Mats, use of Social Stories, PECS,
Makaton, legislation, trauma-informed work)

Bristol, North Somerset

and South Gloucestershire

Integrated Care Board

25

Children and young people with EHCPs transitioning to
Adult's Social Services

1063

Children and young people aged 13 (Year 9) to 25
with EHCPs

1930

Total number of children and young people with EHCPs

9949

The total SEND Cohort including children and young people on
EHCPs



Our plans for the next 12 months to improve the experience and outcomes

4. Children and
Young People are
well prepared for
their next steps

arid achieve
strong outcomes

> North

3

Somerset
Councll

NHS

of children and young people with SEND

We will:

Review quality assurance systems for EHCPs to further improve the
experiences of our children with a focus on impact, transitions, and outcomes
Ensure children’s wishes and aspirations are captured in their plans and
children are supported to achieve these

Submit annual reviews on the EHC Portal to closely monitor EHC outcome
progression

Develop the Post-16 Entitlement package to ensure every child with SEND has a
comprehensive range of services, support, advice, and training to help them
prepare for adulthood

Start using the Mind of My Own App within Adult Social Care and the Transition
Team

All Pathway to Adulthood assessments will consistently begin when the young
person is 16 with a long term goal of improving this to assess young people in
year 9

Bristol, North Somerset
and South Gloucestershire

Integrated Care Board



8G abed

Pathway to Adulthood: Post-16 \(} North
N

Somerset
pathways map Council
Education internships apprenticeships Employed

Year 11 Annual Review

Career skills and

SUPE.O rted training
workin
Employment J special post-16 .
education providers ngher
| education
sixth form/college
Yeal' 9 support for long
Independent living Annual term conditions Fulfilling life
Review access to healthcare
Mental health
physical
money .
. matters activities wellbelng
Communlty housing and
inclusion accommodation travel
Independent
support for
personal parents and S t . bl
goals carers ustainapie
sex and holidays Confident

relationshsips

Health



Focus on practice - Multi-Agency Information and Support in Early Years

4. Children and
Young People are
well prepared for

their next steps
and achieve
strong outcomes

MAISEY supports provision planning from early identification of need until school entry for children with SEND
who need a multi-agency approach to meeting their needs.

MAISEY referrals can be made by any professional working with the child and family. Children can be referred at
any age from birth to school age. Children can remain on MAISEY until the meeting is confident that children are
placed in school following transition. Children who have agreed delayed school entry can also remain on MAISEY.
MAISEY ensures where possible that transfers to pre-school and school are successful for every child.

Children are only removed from MAISEY following a meetings agreement to remove, for example when a move
out of the area is confirmed or when a child no longer need a multi-agency approach to meeting their needs.
MAISEY ensures that children’s needs are looked at holistically and that appropriate support is offered to the
child and family. It is the place where one profession can question and challenge the involvement of another. It is
where services can problem solve together to ensure that children’s individual needs are met.

The group meets monthly, excepting August, and all children on MAISEY are reviewed once a term. All Children in
Care, Children in Need and Children on a Child Protection Plan are discussed monthly. Any children on Early
Help can be looked at as “urgent cases” and can be brought monthly. Agencies highlight children for discussion
that month a week in advance to the panel chair. Any “urgent cases” can also be discussed at panel.

The following agencies are regularly represented at MAISEY: Specialist community children’s services (SaLT, OT
Physio), Health Visiting, Sensory Support Services, NSC Portage, Springboard Opportunity Group, Baytree School
Outreach, NSC SEND team, NSC Educational Psychology, NSC Early Years and Childcare Team. Other services
who are represented more occasionally are NSC Disabled Children’s Team, Community Paediatrics, Lifetime
Service.

There are currently 114 children on MAISEY including 8 Children in Care or on a Child Protection Plan. The
geographical split of children is 1/3 North and 2/3 South. This split is consistent.



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

e Our increase in specialist provision enables over 300 children to attend local schools
e Our Education and SEND Strategies intentionally focus on children learning and living within
their communities

5. Children and

Youn g Peo p [e e Head Teachers of North Somerset Schools are in direct dialogue with their own SEND pupils to
' understand their lived experience. This a new commitment as part of our headteacher forums,
Wlth SEND are and we have asked both our primary and secondary heads to meet with groups of SEND

children and young people to hear from them directly about their experience in schools
e Asurvey has been completed by 88 children and young people with SEND to ask about how

valued, visible

and included in safe they feel at school and the support they receive. Another survey is planned to ask them

- about the support they receive to progress educationally
their e All our special schools and many mainstream schools work to provide social experiences which
communities mirror those of other children

e There are closer links between Engagement and Participation Worker and School SENDCOs to
gain greater input

e Visits will be on a termly basis and drop-in sessions will be held for children and young people
with SEND to request information, ask questions so their voices and opinions can be recorded.

e Our SEND Council has prioritised a review and promotion of opportunities to participate in
social activities

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

5. Children and
Young People

with SEND are
valued, visible

and included In
their
communities

(é North
\ Somerset

Councill

NHS

Bristol, North Somerset

and South Gloucestershire
[nteg rated Care Board @ North Somerset @ South West @England i Mainstream school target

Our Short Breaks Statement outlines the opportunities for children and young people with
SEND to engage in community-based activities, including universal Short Breaks which
require no assessment to access. Staff use a range of communication aids to ensure that
children and young people are active in shaping their support plan

There are currently 222 children and young people who receive support under Short Breaks
Health settings and Children’s Centres have been developed so they are welcoming spaces
for families in local venues such as schools and health centres

A number of local shops and leisure providers are developing accessible services to welcome
children and their families

We have recently opened an accessible Play Park in Weston-super-Mare

The number of children with EHCPs placed in mainstream schools has increased by 12% since
2018

% in mainstream school - children and young peopl...



https://n-somerset.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2023-09/short%20breaks%20statement.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=VFB9W9Q2Q-k

Our plans for the next 12 months to improve the experience and outcomes

5. Children and
Young People

with SEND are
valued, visible

and included in
their
communities

(é North
\ Somerset

Councill

NHS

of children and young people with SEND

We will:

Continue to challenge schools and settings to meet needs in mainstream schools
Identify suitable placements in local schools at transition points

Develop our Engagement Plan which will have a strong focus on the engagement of
children and young people

Create safe social activities and spaces to help children and young people with
SEND make friends and community connections

Develop our Preparing for Adulthood Strategy to promote full inclusion and
independence

Promote the SEND Council's awareness-raising video among professionals
Increase the number of children and young people who understand their rights and
entitlements

Meet with Town Councils to seek their support to make the local environment
accessible

Bristol, North Somerset
and South Gloucestershire

Integrated Care Board



Focus on practice - Lucinda and her
mum Nicky

At the start of the Covid-19 pandemic, Lucinda and her mum Nicky
started a series of Makaton lessons online.

The videos which continue to this day were widely popular with
thousands of viewers, including Jacqueline Wilson, the acclaimed
children’s author who discovered Lucinda while researching her lasted
book in the Sleepovers series. She was so inspired by Lucinda that she
has dedicated the book to her. Lucinda will now help millions of readers
understand that it is possible to thrive and help and inspire others (and
have a sleep over like everyone else).

Nicky has been determined to have Lucinda attend a mainstream
school, and Lucinda currently attends Uphill Primary.

Meet Lucinda and her mum Nicky by clicking this link:
https://youtu.be/MTu 60rCHBwW



https://youtu.be/MTu_60rCHBw

The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

e We have a clear Vision for children, young people and their families and an ambitious SEND
Strategy that is shared across the Local Area Partnership. Our SEND Strategy includes

0. Lead ers are specific annual targets for this work

_ e There are effective multi-agency forums in which SEND is the main focus including the SEND

ambitious for Improvement Board which remains in place following the lifting of our improvement notice
and other SEND workshops throughout the year

e |[n our respective agencies, strategic meetings of system leaders prioritise SEND as the main

yO un g Peop le theme of the discussions and are fully engaged with our improvement journey

. e We have increased the number of children attending local schools and settings by and 2%

Wit h SISD 278 attend Weston College which is an exemplar college for students with SEND

e Most of our schools now receive positive feedback for their work in SEND within their Ofsted
Inspections. We need to ensure that all schools have the same high ambitions for children
with SEND

e The ambition for children with SEND is a key characteristic of our Special Schools as
evidenced in recent inspections. We have expanded our Special School provision to provide
more children with the opportunity to attend them

children and

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

e The attainment gap for our children and young people with SEND has improved. In some
areas, our performance is higher than the regional and national scores but it is very much a
concern for us at every educational stage

e We are working with school leaders and our Teaching Schools Alliance to identify and close

6 . Lead ers are gaps in development, progress, and attainment for our children and young people with
_ SEND
am b ITious fO r e Children who have been supported by Nurture Groups are consistently acquiring the skills
children and and confidence to successfully return to their classrooms and learn independently after
two terms
ycung peop le e Similarly, the increase in Resource Bases allows children and young people to attend local

schools and learn alongside their peers

e We have reduced the number of young people who are Not in Education, Employment, or
Training (NEET) or have no placement post-16 by 25% within the last year and by half
within an 18-month period

with SEND

EHCP students EHE, NEET and no placement per snapshot

HTH } \S(E ggrrr‘:re‘rset Bristol, North Somerset

and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board




Our plans for the next 12 months to improve the experience and outcomes
of children and young people with SEND

We will:

e Work with education leaders to build ambition for children and young people
with SEND consistently in every school and setting
6. Leaders are e Work with parents and carers to ensure that they are receiving sufficient
. gy information about what is possible for their children to achieve
alm b Itious fO r e Work with children and young people to understand more about their

children and aspirations for the future and what success looks like for them

e Create a CPD programme to systematically close the progress and attainment
yO un g PEOP le gaps for our children and young people with SEND
With SEND e Develop new pathways for children and young people with SEND and equip

them with the skills and confidence to live as full and independent a life as
possible through a transition entitlement

e Place a greater focus on the destinations of our children and young people with
SEND

e Conduct a deep dive via the SEND Improvement Board on our ambitions for
children

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
QI%I?R]S.!-TI p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



Focus on practice - Extracts from recent Ofsted reports

Out of 13 Ofsted inspections of primary schools since the start of 2023, there

were 12 positive references to the provision of SEND. These include the way Leaders are ambitious for what pupils
that schools adapt learning so that students with SEND can access an with SEND can achieve. Staff know
ambitious curriculum in line with their peers. SEND provision is referred to as pupils well. This is particularly the case
highly effective, students are well supported, and teachers have specialist for pUp'.lS.W'th SOC'_al and emotlona.l
knowledge because of the appropriate training. Overall, there is a strong sense needs. Individual pupil plans are precise.

that students with SEND have their needs considered, feel included, and thrive Staff work. well with parents to ensure
6. Lead ers in their schools that pupils are well supported. As a

.. . result, most pupils with SEND learn the
dare am b | tl Ous “ Leaders identify pupils’ needs effectively. Staff same curriculum as their peers

- have the necessary training and support to
fO e h | I'd ren ensure that they meet these needs. As a result,
and young

pupils with SEND learn the full curriculum
people with

successfully. There is a highly inclusive
S E N D ‘6 Two Special School inspections 66 This is an inclusive school that has high

“ There is no ceiling on the aspirations that staff have for
pupils. The education of pupils is highly ambitious and
skilfully designed to meet pupils’ academic, social and

emotional needs. This offer is for all pupils, whether they
are in school or part of the highly effective outreach

provision ”

environment for pupils to thrive in ”

showed strong SEND provision: aspirations for all pupils. Leaders have set . .
Ravenswood was described as “an about creating an ambitious curriculum. It ~ Pupils with SEND are
inclusive school that has high precisely pinpoints the building blocks of included fully in the school
aspirations for all pupils”. learning, the order to be taught and when curriculum and their
At Baytree, “there is no ceiling on learning should be revisited. Quite rightly, individual needs are
the aspirations that staff have for leaders have focussed on getting the core effectively met. Where
pupils 59 areas of the curriculum where they want appropriate, children receive
them to be. Detailed, yet manageable further tailored support to
C ., North NHS assessment systems reveal how enable them to learn with
NORTH p'l'} % N\ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset successfully pupils learn the intended success and confidence
SOMERSET N \ Council 32333‘252 Eola?ducesmmh're curriculum ” across the curriculum ”



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

e There is strong political buy in and our children with SEND are a high priority. Our politicians
are visible and regularly visiting local schools, settings, and the Parent Carer Forum

e Our Executive Member meets regularly with children, young people with SEND, and their
families. She makes herself available for any child, young person, parent, or carer who needs

/. I_ead ers active [y additional advice, support, or intervention and works closely with officers to find
appropriate solutions
en gage and work e Elected members regularly meet with parents and carers at events that the Parent/Carer

Forum hold including workshops and the Day of SEND
e Our former Children’s Scrutiny Panel Members visited parents and carers to understand
y-i) un g p eo p le, their lived experience and a schedule is in place for the new panel to do the same
. e e The Chief Executives for North Somerset Council and ICB regularly meet with parents/carers
ail d fam | I'I €5 via our Parent Carer Forum and have also met with children and young people
e Following the engagement with the ICB, a transformation plan has been co-produced with
parents and carers to agree the pathway into health services including Autism and
Neurodiversity pathways
e Our SEND Council of children and young people meet each month with senior leaders from
Education and Social Care. The SEND Council have told us that participating in this makes
them feel valued and by connecting with each other they are able to offer peer support

with children,

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

e Qur children and our families contribute to and inform high-profile decision
making on policy and practice. Our Parent Carer Forum co-chairs the Community
of Practice and our Joint Commissioning Group. The Chair of the Forum also

7. Lead ers active ly advises the SEND Improvement Board and meets regularly with Directors, Chief
Executives, and our Executive Member
en gage and work e Both children, young people, parents, and carers have a say in the selection of
. . candidates for key SEND leadership appointments
WIT h C hi ld ren, e Key projects are created in partnership with the Parent Carer Forum and the SEND
yD un g p eo p le, Council. Examples of this include SEND Hub (Local Offer), Graduated Response,
o Education Strategy, and the Early Help Workshop
and families e The local partnership is sustaining the participation of parents and carers by

investing in both the forum and SAY (SENDIAS) with higher sums than in previous
years and also by providing a permanent base for their office premises and
meeting space

e There is strong evidence that parent and carers are driving change — this is
evidenced in NSPCWT Impact Reports

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
QI%I?R]S.!-TI p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



Our plans for the next 12 months to improve the experience and outcomes
of children and young people with SEND

We will:

e Improve the consistency and quality of communication with parents and carers

. over the next 12 months

/. I—ead ers active ly e Develop an Engagement Plan to ensure that we are hearing and reaching parent
and carers, children, and young people

= gage el d R k e Measure the extent to which leaders and practitioners regularly meet with

Wit h C h | ld Fen , children and young people themselves and the adaptation to their practices
and policies that follows

young people, .

Seek mechanisms for rapid and short feedback through buttons on the Local

and famllles Offer and emails

e Continue to use the EHC Portal to harness the direct participation and
feedback from parents, carers, children, and young people within their EHCPs

e Increase the number of annual reviews which are uploaded and updated on the
Portal. This will give us greater oversight of changes that occur during the year
for the individual

e Further the work of the new Parent/Carer Liaison Officer role

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
\ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



Focus on practice - Day of SEND

/.Leaders actively
engage and work
with children,

young people,
and families

The Day of SEND brings together parents, carers,
children, young people, system leaders, specialist
practitioners, and community members in a 10-hour
packed programme of clinics, workshops, stalls, and
drop-in clinics. Senior leaders and Council Members
are joining to directly engage with the community
about their priorities and concerns.

Details about the Day of SEND and other events via
the parent carer forum can be found through the
following link: https://www.nspcwt.org/news

NHS

C (} North .
il it §§ ) Somerset Zritel e ensanhir

Councill

PARENT CARERS WORKING TOGETHER

Integrated Care Board

08I A5 Y bl

|:||._

omerset!

Free e

. .-|-.:

What makes this

« The largest SEND event we have ever arranged! .
day different from

« First of its kind to ever be held in North Somerset!
« A fantastic opportunity to gain access to support!

our other events?

* Keynote speakers all day for some amazing inspiration!
« DOver 60 stall holders from organisations across North
Somerset that offer SEND support.
Over 50 training sessions, including: What is autism?,
Anxiety & Additional Needs and ADHD.
. Drop in clinics with professionals to get specific 1-1
support.
» Practical workshops for you and your children including
a chance to try out the sensory equipment from
Gympanzees, and a chilli workshop hosted by Uncle
Paul's Chilli Farm.

What can you
expect to see at
the event?

Book in advance for quicker entry on the day

https://www.nspcwt.org/events-1/event-a-day-of-send



https://www.nspcwt.org/news

The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

e Our SEND Improvement Board meeting is integral to providing solution-focused
responses and practically addressing identified pressures across the Local Area
Partnership. Headteachers from primary, secondary, and special attend this board

3. I—ead ers h aVeE e Strong quality assurance and governance arrangements are in place, including:

an accurate o Monthly multi-agency audit and quality assurance sessions which enables us to
’ share learning from individual children’s experiences

S h ared o Weekly multi-agency SEND Engine Room meeting for Heads of Service to stay in

touch and ensure SEND improvement is fast paced
o Regular meetings with SENCO network on data trends and demand

understanding of

thhe needs of o Meetings with the NSPCPF network chairs and senior leaders to ensure that the
: experience of families is fed into ensure that parents are involved in improvement
Ch'ld ren aﬂd p[anning
- o Quality assurance processes with regular multiagency QA panels to review EHCPs
yO " ng peo p l'e 1 o Data Dashboards and an updated JSNA
t h elr lO Cal_ area o Monthly multi-agency Community of Practice meetings to look at areas of

improvement for SEND
o Regular meetings and ongoing dialogue with schools and settings staff
o The SEND newsletter which is disseminated bi-monthly across the SEND Partnership

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

Multi-disciplinary advice and guidance panels
e |[n 2022-23, 143 children were known to Multi Agency Information and Support

(MAISEY)
8 |Leaders have o 44 children were supported in depth throughout the year
o An additional 7 children were discussed each month due to their social care
S h are d o Together, this is 35% of the children on MAISEY
: o All the children not previously discussed were raised for discussion during the
understanding of year
e Inclusion Panel in schools have supported 384 referrals of children and youn
thhe needs of | SHPP a9 16 youns
people. Underlying SEND need is always one of the first lines of enquiry by the
C h | I_d Fen an d Panels. Panels comprise: Interventions Reception | Yr1 | Y2 | vr3 | vra | vr5 | vrs | Total
. o CAMHS Iﬁﬁiﬁ'ﬂ:’ﬁ' 11 11 | 15 | 21 | 27| 24 | 41 | 150
young people in > Health Visitors e R
their local area > Children’s Social Care Peraneot Exciusions 0| o | o |+ [ 2| 2 | 1 [
o Education professionals B o lolololol 1+ | 4
Re-integration Worker 0 0 3 1 3 0 3 10
SPS 6 5 10 6 12 5 7 51
Y6-7 Transition 0 0 0 0 0 0 31 31
ITrltg‘vent;:I; o e Yr7 ¥r8 Yr9 Yr10 Yri1 Total
o . e
NORTHP Sy \(FNOTh e S ort somere - HHERARE
somenst T N ) 2OMEISEL  and South Gloucestershire e P ] N B
Integrated Care Boar ::;mr:’ir:’t Ll 0 0 3 1 1 5
Off-site Direction/Managed
Moved 3 3] 13 6 1 29




Our plans for the next 12 months to improve the experience and outcomes
of children and young people with SEND

We will:

e Continue and extend our commitment to seek the views of young people within
the SEND Council and develop processes so that the young people have more

8. Leaders have

an accu rate, input in setting the agenda for work for the year ahead and contribute to the
refresh of the SEND Partnership Strategy
S h dle d e Continue to expand the range of young people’s voices we hear from through
: face-to-face meetings, and utilise digital-friendly methods of gathering their
=il d erstan d I g Of voice such as Mind of My Own, online surveys, and feedback buttons on our
thhe needs of SEND Hub (Local Offer)
3 e Redevelop the scope and function of Disabled Children’s Register so that we
C h | ld ren an d can further understand and respond to the specific needs of the local area
yO un g p eo p |_e | N e Continue the use the SEND Data Dashboard to inform service developments
: and provided tailored support in our community by triangulating qualitative
their local area and quantitative data

e Work closely with SENDCOs to maintain effective communication with schools
and settings

e Extend our reach to parents and carers from diverse communities and with
children with different needs

> North NHS
\ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board



Focus on practice - SEND Data Dashboard

e Our data management was one of the first Areas of Serious Weakness to be signed off by

8 |LLeaders have DfE through their monitoring of the SEND Improvement Plan in July 2022. The SEND Data
Dashboard has created an evidence-based and needs-led system that provides an

an acCcu rate: accurate oversight and response to the specific needs of our authority

S h are d e Our SEND Data Dashboard provides a comprehensive summary of needs, experiences,
and outcomes for our children with SEND

understandin g of e The Data Dashboard is reviewed regularly by system leaders and staff including our

CEOs, Executive Member, and all senior leaders who advise them at the SEND
Improvement Board and the data itself is actively used by senior leaders in their service

thhe needs of

children and management meetings

: e The data from the Dashboard is triangulated to inform practice-based decisions in all
yO un g p €O p l-e 1N areas of Children’s Services. For example, the Dashboard revealed that the increased
their local area referrals into the Front Door in Children’s Support and Safeguarding were driven by the

local area’s extraordinary rise in SEMH - evidenced by the increase in support services
requested for this area of need. This analysis has informed discussions with school
leaders and identified a key target area for the local authority

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

e The Joint Commissioning Group contains representatives from the leadership teams of North

9 |_ d Somerset Council, the ICB, and North Somerset Parent Carers Working Together. It is co-
. Leaders N . -
chaired in rotation by the three organisations
comm iSS | on e Thereis arevised SEND Commissioning Strategy - We currently commission £42m of services
' for children and young people with SEND which includes a breadth of provision
services an d e We have an agreement in place to commission SaLT and OT services through Sirona Health
c and Care
p rovision tO e We are creating 130 new specialist school places

e There are 8 new Nurture Groups and 5 Resource Bases, all of which will come on stream in
September 2023

meet the needs

1 1 e A further 23 Nurture Groups are being commissioned by Multi-Academy Trusts
an d as p | ratl ons e The Dyslexia and Autism Education Partnership Board Sub-Group is co-produced with parents
of children and e Our Co-production Charter has been consulted on with parents/carers, children, young
people, and professionals
y oun g p eo p I.e e Bournville Primary School has focus on creating low arousal classrooms in response to the

rise in autism and other sensory needs. We will be rolling out a template for low arousal
classrooms this year

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset


https://n-somerset.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2023-05/31476%20SEND%20Partnership%20co-production%20charter%20C.pdf

Our plans for the next 12 months to improve the experience and outcomes
of children and young people with SEND

e Increase the number of children with SEND in mainstream schools through Resource Bases

9 . Le ad ers e Increase Nurture groups in a further 6 local schools alongside Nurture training for a number of
. . other schools across the area
commission e Habilitation and Sensory Support offer within North Somerset being re-commissioned to join up
. the offer across Children’s and Adult’s into one referral route
Services an d e Recommission Short Break services by March 2024
¢ o e Increase the Family link Service offer
p rovision tO e Increase personalisation, including the update of personal budgets and integrated personal

commissioning
e Continue to inwardly commission provision from local providers to create a more resilient market

meet the needs

- - e Rectify the unregulated placements for children and young people and place them locally
an d dsS p | rat 10NS e Review the current spend with parents and carers to ensure our plans align with their priorities
Of C h | ld ren an d and develop a new strategy from this
e Build an improved local market to meet the needs of young people with SEND as they move into
y oun g p eo p le adulthood focusing on: employment opportunities, building independence, and local peer-based

activities through an extended Local Offer
e Alternative Learning Provision Framework operational and implemented across the local area
e Use MOMO to support the capturing of the child’s and young person’s voice across a range of
children and young people

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board



Focus on practice - Mental Health Support Teams (MHSTSs)

9. Leaders

commission
services and
provision to

meet the needs
and aspirations
of children and
young people

This has been the first year of operational delivery of Mental Health Support Teams (MHSTs) in North Somerset.
Our focus has been to build relationships with our key stakeholders and partners and embed our practitioners in
their allocated schools. We have two teams working in the NS.

This year:

e 8 EMHP's have passed the IJAPTUS Course

e 3 Supervisors have passed their IAPTUS course

e We are building smoother pathways between CAMHS and School Nurses

e 12 Young people in Winterstoke Academy were asked to joint chair the South West MHST Conference in
Taunton

e We delivered (in partnership with CAMHS) training to Mental Health Leads in schools on the topic of making a
good referral into mental health services

e 36 schools are actively referring into MHST

e We are developing our Whole School Approach (WSA) offer with Alternative Learning Providers (ALP)

In the coming year:
e Thereis afocus on increasing our offer of young people accessing therapeutic groups
e We will build our relationships with North Somerset GPs
e We will focus our work with parents/carers who face challenges in engaging with mental health services via
our WSA and 1:1 interventions

6‘Thank you for everything you have done for me it means a lot. | will
miss you [...] You were very annoying but that’s what was fun about

NHS you. You always made me smile. I’'m gonna miss you a lot. Even if it
HTH } \Shggggrset Bristol, North Somerset dOesn’t seem l|ke |t, |t genUinely d|d help me a l.Ot ”
SOMERSET CoumcH f:::‘;",ai‘;‘éﬁll . — a handwritten note from a young person to their MHST


https://iaptus.co.uk/

The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

e The North Somerset SEND Improvement Board has been in place since Autumn 2021. It

1 O . Le ad ers is chaired by the Executive Member for Children’s Services, Families and Lifelong
Learning and Chief Executives from the ICB and the LA who also sit on the board. The
eva l U ate board is advised by the Parent Carer Forum, schools, and senior leaders from all areas
' of delivery
services an d e The SEND Improvement Board meets monthly and reviews the area’s progress against

our SEND Improvement Plan, using both objectives and KPI’s agreed with the DfE and
NHSE and a comprehensive data dashboard

e The board meets each month and requests periodic deep-dive sessions in areas which
give cause for concern

e The board offers support and challenge to enable officers to identify solutions to
improve services

e Children and young people have attended the SEND Improvement Board and feedback
from the SEND Council is offered to the board and its advisers on a regular basis

make
Improvements

> North NHS
\ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

e The SEND Improvement Plan was agreed in February 2022 and has been monitored
d by the DfE/NHSE since then. In July 2023, the Minister lifted our SEND Improvement

10. Leaders | C . |

Notice and noted that sufficient progress had been made in all areas of serious

evaluate weakness

e All staff involved in providing SEND services have objectives that relate to SEND

services and

improvement and are measured through formal performance reviews

YA ke e Live data dashboards are reviewed in senior management meetings in both the ICB

. and the Council on aregular basis

Im p rovemen tS e The performance dashboards are supplemented by service specific performance
monitoring and these support performance discussions with, for example, schools at

strategic leadership meetings

: and South Gloucestershire
COUOC' | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
g] %IER]SIII;TI p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



Our plans for the next 12 months to improve the experience and outcomes
of children and young people with SEND

e Add targets to our performance dashboard so that it is easier for system leaders and our
stakeholders to have visibility of our performance against our goals
e Work closely with Schools Standards Board and the Teaching Schools Alliance to analyse

1 O . |_ e ad ers children’s educational performance and develop area-based training programmes to close gaps
e Create a new model of preventative and outreach services delivered by our PRU to reach more
eva l. uate children with health and behaviour needs and to help them remain in their existing school

. e Work in multi-disciplinary leadership teams to share information about children who are high

services an d priority in more than one aspect and to work together to find solutions
: k e Audit children’s records in forums of multi-agency professionals

MaKke e Publish outcomes from independent schools alongside those who are state funded to give

. parents and carers a true comparative picture

Im p rovemen tS e Review service provision for Autism as there is recognition that wide scale transformation is
required to ensure that services are delivering and can meet the demands of the local
population

e Work with the SEND Council and our parents and carers to ensure they are seeing and feeling
the impact of the changes being made

e Ensure that compliments and complaints are formally included in the QA framework to ensure
learning, service development, and the identification of training needs across the Partnership

> North NHS
\ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board



Focus on practice - investment in our services

e In 2021, North Somerset Council began making significant investments in its SEND capacity,
beginning with the leadership of SEND Services and the SEND Improvement journey.

e Since then, the Council has invested almost £2m in SEND and other staff to improve the
1 O - I_ e ad ers services that children, young people and their families receive.

SAVAG l- U ate e Over £20m has been invested in specialist school provision through the expansion of Baytree
services and

School, 8 Nurture Groups and 3 additional Resource Bases

a ke e CAMHS crisis and outreach services have been developed and are now well established. The
‘ Outreach Team is now provided BNSSG wide and additional Off the Record workers have been
i Im p rovemen tS appointed to provide support within North Somerset.

e 2 Mental Health Support Teams in schools are now operational with an additional 0.5 team in
2024 are supporting 20,000 children & young people. This represents 66% of all pupils
covered which is the highest across BNSSG and reflects the drive to increase capacity in
North Somerset

e Both SENDIAS and NPCWT have had their core funding increased to provide better support
for parents and carers; additional non-recurrent funding has also been invested in project
based work commissioned from them such as the SEN Support work by SENDIAS

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

11. Leaders e We have greatly strengthened multi agency working in North Somerset and our understanding
of each other's pressures and strengths; this is now widely recognised by others
Cre ate al e Innovation, challenge, and joint problem solving are all actively encouraged within our SEND

0 partnership
environmen t fO I e SEND is regularly reviewed by the Children and Young People’s Partnership Board, whose
effe Ct | Ve membership is made up of eight different agencies (Education Partnerships, Schools, Social
Care, Public Health, Police, PRU, Weston College, Voluntary Action North Somerset) as well as
Councillors, DfE, and an external adviser
e The multi-agency nature of our partnership working is exemplified by the SEND Improvement

practice and

mu I_t | - age N Cy Board and the Community of Practice, which have high levels of participation and advice from
' lead practitioners from a diverse range of agencies
WOTI kl N g to e Operationally, a team of leaders from health, social care, education, and business intelligence

meet in a SEND ‘Engine Room’ to drive progress together against our objectives within the
Improvement Plan and prepare performance reports. Engine Room manages the operational
transition to the new SEND Inspection Framework

flourish

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

11 I_e ad ers e MAISEY has been previously recognised by inspectors and the National Association for SEN
: for the strong, well-established, and effective approach to supporting our youngest
children through agencies working in partnership
cre ate an e Strategies such as the SEND Strategy, the Early Years Strategy, and the Education Strategy
en Vi ronmen t fo I have all been developed with consistently strong multi-agency input and discussion as well
: as input from parents, carers and children and young people. This gives us the confidence
effe ctive that the strategies are widely owned across the local area
. e |Inclusion Panels are routinely supported by Children’s Support and Safeguarding and

practice and CAMHS

e CAMHS, Children’s Support and Safeguarding, and the Virtual School also form part of the
multi-agency group who work together to increase children’s hours of participation in
education and intervene together via the most appropriate agency

e Heads of Service from Children’s Services meet 3 times per week to problem solve when

multi-agency

working to

ﬂ.O U riS h children’s pathways become stuck. Through this work, 23 children and young people
returned to full time education after a period of non-participation in September 2023

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



Our plans for the next 12 months to improve the experience and outcomes
of children and young people with SEND

1 1 |_ d During 2023, the Partnership will co-develop and launch:
. Leaders e The Early Years Strategy
e The Education Strategy
create an e A new approach to Pathways to Adulthood
en Vi ronment fO r e A new approach to Joint Commissioning
e Anew Early Help Strategy
effe CtiVe e The Engagement Plan

e The Day of SEND

practice and
multi-agency

We are also revising and/or relaunching

e The Local Offer
. e Anew SaLT and OT offer for schools
WOr kl N g tO e Multi Agency Audits and Quality Assurance

flourish

: and South Gloucestershire
COUOC' | Integrated Care Board

C (} North m
g!] %IER]SIII;TI ELHT} § \ Somerset Bristol, North Somerset



Focus on practice - Community of Practice

11. Leaders
create an
environment for
effective

practice and
multi-agency
working to
flourish

(é North
\ Somerset

Councill

NHS

The Community of Practice was initiated by our Lead Member for Children’s Services. Itis a
multi-agency group where system leaders push each other to improve practice. It is a space
where challenge and new perspectives are positively encouraged and models of practice
from across the world inspire discussions.

It comprises leaders who are: politicians, health professionals, headteachers, children’s
support and safeguarding practitioners, SEND officers, parent and carer organisations, early
years practitioners, education leaders

A recent focus of the Community of Practice was ‘Are we Ambitious Enough for Children and
Young People with SEND?’ Other sessions have included:

o Diagnosis - is it needed and by whom?

o Attracting and retaining the right staff

o Language and it’s importance to young people

Membership is voluntary but the Community consistently attracts high levels of attendance
(40 plus) at each meeting

Our Community of Practice was commended by NASEN when they visited North Somerset
practitioners and has since been adopted by them in their own practice.

Bristol, North Somerset
and South Gloucestershire

Integrated Care Board



12.
Alternative

The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

Provision

> North

3

Somerset
Councll

NHS

120 children and young people with EHCPs are receiving Alternative Provision
commissioned by North Somerset Council

23 young people with EHC plans started back in a school this September for the first time
in a long time. A further 10 have plans in place to re-engage them with education via AP
with the aim to return them back to a formal education setting

All children known to be on part-time timetables or receiving fewer than 25 hours of
education a week are monitored by a multi-agency group to improve their participation
rates and enable them to re-engage with full-time education

Each young person who is monitored has an individual intervention and support plan
which details how they will return to full-time education.

We have a monitoring process in place to quality assure all AP providers where children
are placed which has an ongoing emphasis on capturing and responding to the voice of
children, young people, and families

Our mid to long-term plans for AP are to redevelop the scope for the Voyage Learning
Campus (our PRU and medical tuition) to make support available for a wider cohort of
children and young people and to route all AP provision through them. We are working
with Islington Council on the development of this model

Our Special Schools and PRU are working towards an area-wide offer of outreach services
to support children to remain in their schools

Bristol, North Somerset
and South Gloucestershire

Integrated Care Board



The impact of our arrangements for children and young people with SEND

We are part of an Alternative Provision Framework in partnership with Bristol and South
Gloucestershire which ensures providers are subject to a rigorous evaluation process before being
permitted to join. We now only approve new AP placements for children with SEND with providers
that are on the framework, and encourage our schools to share this approach.

1 2 . The framework commissions three types of AP to meet the unique needs of children and young
people:
A l't e r n a‘t I V e 1.Full-Time: aspirational and challenging curriculum delivered in long-term placements (up to 1-2
k e o years) or short-term ‘revolving door’ interventions (up to 12 weeks)
P r O V | S | O n 2.Part-Time: additional and complimentary support that varies according to pupil needs,

aspirations, and preferences
3.In-School: early intervention approach to enable schools to be more inclusive and help keep

pupils in mainstream school wherever possible

Our regional joint commissioning arrangements allow us to pool our resources and enable closer
monitoring of providers and greater expertise in evaluating their applications. We have refreshed
our Guidance on Alternative Learning Provision in schools to ensure schools are supported in
commissioning high quality, outcomes-focused provision with an emphasis on re-engaging pupils
back into full-time education.

> North NHS
&%Bﬂ!!}l p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board



Our plans for the next 12 months to improve the experience and outcomes
of children and young people with SEND

We will:

e Embed the role of the new SEND Placement Commissioning Manager who will be

1 2 responsible for ongoing monitoring and quality assurance of AP placements to ensure
. providers are consistently delivering good outcomes for children and young people

e Develop the offer from the VLC and our Special Schools; this is central to our long-

Alternative torm plans

e Deliver a schedule of monitoring visits to our AP providers which uses a risk-based

P r O V i S i O n matrix to prioritise visits
e Uphold stringent quality assurance processes so that providers know what to expect

and become used to gathering and reporting feedback from children and families as a
standard part of their practice

e Work closely with children and families to understand who might benefit from moving
out of independent provision when spaces become available in our newly
commissioning Resource Bases, our expanding Special School, and our re-defined
PRU

e Increase the diversity of the AP offer to ensure it has currency with young people and
leads to meaningful pathways

> North NHS
QI%I?R]S.!-TI p$} g{? Somerset Bristol, North Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
CO UNCI | Integrated Care Board



Focus on practice - Keeper’s Gate

“At Keepers Gate Forest School we will encourage
children to explore and be at one with nature, giving
them a sense of freedom and belonging. They will
spend uninterrupted time outdoors, immersed in our
natural world. Playing, investigating, exploring,
learning to take risks, making friends, showing
curiosity and building resilience.

Children will learn to care for their environment, gain
& great knowledge and understanding of our eco-

%ystem and why the wildlife is so important to their
future.

The outdoor environment is vitally important to a
child’s mental health and well-being. To live and
breathe these experiences every day will be an
amazing opportunity for any child.”

NHS

pc (é North Bristol, North Somerset
T § \ Somerset

: and South Gloucestershire
COUOC' | Integrated Care Board




Glossary

AANT - Analysis of Additional Needs Tool

ADHD - Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder

AP - Alternative Provision

AWP - Avon and Wiltshire Partnership

BNSSG - Bristol, North Somerset, South Gloucestershire
CAMHS - Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services
CNNs - Community Nursery Nurses

EHCNA - Education, Health, and Care Needs Assessment
EHCP - Education, Health, and Care Plan

ELIM - Early Language Identification Measure

EP - Educational Psychologist

EYFS - Early Years Foundation Stage

FASD - Foetal alcohol spectrum disorder

ICB - Integrated Care Board

INCCO - Inclusion Coordinator

MAISEY - Multi-Agency Information and
Support in Early Years

MOMO - Mind of My Own

NSC - North Somerset Council

NSPCWT - North Somerset Parent Carers
Working Together

OT - Occupational Therapy/ist

PRU - Pupil Referral Unit

SalLT - Speech and Language Therapy
SEMH - Social, Emotional, Mental Health
SEND - Special Education Needs and Disability
SENDCO - SEND Coordinator

SEND Hub - our Local Offer

SENDIAS - SEND Information and Advice
Service
VLC - Voyage Learning Campus


https://n-somerset.gov.uk/my-services/children-young-people-families/send-hub-local-offer

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

North Somerset Council

Report to the Children and Young People Policy and Scrutiny Panel
Date of Meeting: 19t October 2023

Subject of Report: Annual Report of Adoption West 2022/23

Town or Parish: All

Officer/Member Presenting: Carolyn Fair, Interim Director Children’s
Services

Key Decision: No

Reason: The Council has entered into a contract with Adoption West and
this is a report outlining their activity during 2022/23.

Recommendations
That Members note the report and advise officers of any areas about which they would like
further information.

1. Summary of Report

Adoption West is a Regional Adoption Agency (RAA) commissioned by Bath and North
East Somerset Council, Bristol City Council, Gloucestershire County Council, North
Somerset Council, South Gloucestershire Council and Wiltshire Council. The agency is a
local authority company wholly owned by the aforementioned local authorities. As a
separate legal entity from the local authorities Adoption West is registered with Ofsted as a
Voluntary Adoption Agency.

2. Policy
A council which empowers and cares about people

3. Details

The report comes at the end of Adoption West’s fourth year of operating as a Regional
Adoption Agency. Adoption West is now an established agency with a clear identity across
the region. The service has continued to respond to growing support needs alongside a
continued focus on the key priorities of improving the timeliness for children by recruiting
sufficient adopters who are prepared and understand the needs of the children. There
remain challenges in relation to improving and providing a more consistent adoption
support offer. The focus on improving the Adoption Support offer has been boosted by
increased investment and a new structure that enable the continued development of in-
house therapeutic services. The agency remains committed to improving the support
available to children, adopters and birth families. Over the course of 2022/23 there were
two ILACS, and both inspections noted the strength of the work of Adoption West.

Page 93



As an adoption agency that is funded by public finances to provide statutory adoption
services it is crucial that there is effective scrutiny of Adoption West. The Joint Scrutiny
Panel has been established to provide this function. The panel meets quarterly and each
meeting includes a briefing about adoption issues. In this period adopters have met with
councillors and shared their experience of support via the Adoption Support Fund and being
an Early Permanence carer. Joint Scrutiny Panel comprises elected Members from each of
the local authorities: North Somerset’s representative is now ClIr Tristram.

Each of the priorities identified for the coming year is subject to a number of specific actions
to ensure the priority is delivered:

* To improve timeliness of Stage 1 and Stage 2 assessments 29

* Ensure that placements are timely either through placing children as soon as they are
subject to a Placement Order or through an early placement scheme, in order to promote
positive attachment - improved children's performance data across the region

* To increase the number of children placed in Early Permanence placements

* To obtain the CORAM BAAF EP Quality Mark

» The long term needs of adopted children in the region to be understood and reflected in a
regional adoption support offer

» Promoting children's positive identity, so that they have a positive self-view, emotional
resilience and understanding of their background

» Adopted adults and birth relatives are assisted to obtain information in relation to adoption
» To improve the consistency of the adoption support offer.

4. Consultation
In compiling the report Adoption West have included feedback from staff and adopters.

5. Financial Implications
None

Costs
None

Funding
None

6. Legal Powers and Implications
N/A

7. Climate Change and Environmental Implications

Adoption West staff are based in three hubs, each within a local authority office building.
They undertake significant amounts of mileage through the use of public transport or
pool/lease cars wherever possible. They have moved to a hybrid way of working but face to
face visits to adopters are critical to ensure they are supported and children are seen.

8. Risk Management
Adoption West maintain a Risk Register which is scrutinised by the Board of Directors.

9. Equality Implications
Not as part of producing this annual report.

10. Corporate Implications
None.

Page 94



11. Options Considered
N/A

Author:
Carolyn Fair, Interim Director Childrens Services

Appendices:
Annual Report from Adoption West 2022/23

Background Papers:
None.

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



April 2022 to March 2023

Annual Report

Prepared by Alison Lewis, Service Director

\S T

$ O . I t X
¢ PV — ] rshire
Bath & North East North \\'|I[sh|rc ey = go.':!;.@é 7e.
c . j ~ SO’“(‘IS(( Council %Somcm(:t South G)?:l::sl,lmhlrc é Sosldd o

“

cov®




Contents

Page 3
Page 3
Page 4
Page 4
Page 8
Page 8
Page 9
Page 12
Page 13
Page 14
Page 15
Page 16
Page 21
Page 23
Page 25
Page 26
Page 26
Page 27
Page 29

Introduction

Working with the local authorities
Ofsted

The Children

Early Permanence

Marketing and Recruitment
Adopters

Adopter Preparation Training
Adoption Panels

Adoption Disruptions

Non-Agency Partner Adoption
Adoption Support

Birth Links/Adopted Adult/Birth Parent Support
National and Regional Developments
People

Finance

Complaints & Data Breaches

Moving Forward

Appendix— Governance and Scrutiny

Page2 98



This is Adoption West’s fourth Annual report and provides the agency’s performance data
across family finding, adopter recruitment, adoption panels and adoption support services.
An important aspect of the report is the focus on the practice of the agency and experience
of people who have been involved with Adoption West in the year.

Adoption West is a Regional Adoption Agency (RAA) commissioned by Bath and North East
Somerset Council, Bristol City Council, Gloucestershire County Council, North Somerset
Council, South Gloucestershire Council and Wiltshire Council. The agency is a local authority
company wholly owned by the aforementioned local authorities. As a separate legal entity
from the local authorities Adoption West is registered with Ofsted as a Voluntary Adoption
Agency.

This report is produced in accordance with National Minimum Standard 25.6, which details
that the Voluntary Adoption Agency Board Members should:

o Receive a written report on the management, outcomes and financial state of the agency,
every six months.

o Monitor the management and outcomes of the services provided, in order to satisfy
themselves that the service is effective and is achieving good outcomes for children and/or
service users.

o Satisfy themselves that the agency is complying with the conditions of registration.

It is also a requirement of the Social Care Common Inspection Framework (SCCIF): voluntary
adoption agencies, that the six-monthly reports are shared with Ofsted on an annual basis.

Appendix A provides details the governance, commissioning, and local government scrutiny
arrangements.

Adoption West works closely with our local authority partners. We have monthly tracking
meetings with each, on order to support our local authority colleagues to progress plans for
children who are unable to live with their birth parents and adoption is being considers as a
permanence option for them. Lead managers for adoption in each area meets with senior
managers in Adoption West every two months to develop policy and practice across the
region for the six local authorities. Each quarter there is a liaison meeting with each individual
local authority to review performance, practice development and working together
arrangements. These meetings ensure that we are working together across the region to
achieve positive outcomes for children who have a plan for adoption or are living with their
adopted family.

Page 99



Two of our partners have had an Inspection of Local Authority Children’s Services this year.
Adoption West supported the authorities in this process including staff, panel chairs and
adopters all speaking with the inspectors. These are the comments in relation to the work
with Adoption West and adoption services:

“Prospective and approved adopters receive good support. They are positive about their experience of
the adoption process.”

“The local authority approach to securing permanence for children who can benefit from adoption is
strong. Adoption is secured for a relatively high number of children early on through foster to adopt
carers. Effective working with the regional adoption agency (Adoption West RAA) helps to promptly
secure the best outcomes for children. The RAA comments positively on joint working with North
Somerset, as do adopters about the quality of the support they receive. Life-story work is consistently
completed and appropriate.”

This year,125 children have had plans for adoption, noticeably higher than the year-end figure of
107 children in the previous year. The number of children with a ‘best interest decision’ had dropped
in Q4 21/22 due to some children’s plans being paused due to medical compliance issues, and the
increase in the current year suggests that those children who were previously delayed are now
progressing. However, the number of ADMs has remained largely consistent across all four quarters,
which suggests that the increase may not be due entirely to medical compliance issues reducing the
number of ‘best interest decisions’ made in the previous year and increasing it in this year. If this
trend continues it could suggest that Adoption West may not be reflecting the national picture, which
indicates a reduction in the number of ‘best interest’ decisions being made.

Placement orders were granted for 100 children and 78 children have been placed for
adoption. 84 children were adopted in this period, which is 6 less than last. Some families
have experienced delays in gaining adoption orders due to medical compliance issues with
regards to seeking birth parent consent to access medical records being addressed when the
court has considered the application for an adoption order. This does now seem to be
improving with quarter 4 having a significantly higher number of orders made and the number
of children placed for adoption haven fallen to 84 from 110 after quarter 2,

This year has seen a significant increase in early permanence activity with an increase in
referrals from the local authorities and 36 children placed with adopters temporarily
approved as foster carers. This is an increase of 64% from 2021-2022.

Page }OO



The number of children placed with Adoption
West adopters has increased for the third year to
82%. This means that more children are being
placed with in the region and therefore their
provision of adoption support services will remain
with Adoption West.

Adoption West Adopters 64 External Adopters 14

Family Finding

Children with a Placement Order currently waiting for adoption at 31/03/23.

0-3 3-6 6-12 12 -18 18+ Total by LA 2;1;;2
Months | Months | Months | Months | Months
By LA

Number of
Children 31 18 13 2 3 66\ 69
Q4 21/22
Number of
Children 25 21 12 3 8 69

There were 66 children with Placement Orders without a match at 31/03/23. This is slightly
lower than the 69 children at the same period last year. This figure does not include children
with a placement order who had a ‘change of plan away from adoption’ which is being
progressed by the local authority, with regards to a recission of the plan and revocation of the
placement order.

Of these 66 children with placement orders, 29 were linked with adoptive placements and
progressing to adoption panel for a match and another 9 had plans in place for adoption by
their foster carers. Of the 28 children with Placement Orders who were not linked at the end of the
year, there are only 12 children with a Placement Order who do not yet have a potential link being
pursued.

There are currently 18 children waiting longer than six months. The five children waiting
more than 12 months all have foster carers who are making direct applications to the court
for an adoption order. On 31t March there were 3 children waiting longer than six months
who did not have a link or match being progressed.

It is positive to report that there have only been 8 children for whom family finding has
stopped as their plans have changed a way from adoption. This is a decrease of 56% from
the 18 children who had their plans changed last year.

Page 101



The national CORAM | data 2022-23, shows that the average time in the Adoption West region
between the six local authorities for the child’s journey (A 10) continues to be quicker than
the England average 412 days compared to 480. The time between placement order and
match (period of family finding activity) is continuing to improve at 173 days, 24 days quicker
than the England average of 197.

These improvements in numbers of children placed and timeliness can only be achieved by
the commitment, tenacity and proactive approach of the family finding team in their joint
work with children’s social workers.

The team supported by the Recruitment and Marketing Officer have continued to hold virtual
family finding events throughout the year. Each session profiles 5-6 children with their social
workers in attendance to answer adopter’s questions. Generally, 10 sets of adopters attend
each session. We have also started to have the return of in person events, with the first
South West Adoption Consortium Adoption Exchange held for over three years.

In addition, national children’s activity days hosted by Coram are also utilised if the distance
and logistics are appropriate for a child.

, Adoption West held their first Activity Day since
Activity Day I e/ January 2020, on March 4, 2023, this event was

We are offering adopters the

opportunity to interact with a limited

i of Ak e & el sty designed to allow prospective adopters, and children

‘ awaiting adoption to come together in a calm, relaxed
way, with the support of social workers available. The
main objective of this event was to find adopters for
harder to place children; sibling groups and older
children, by allowing them to meet in a controlled and
safe environment.

The day was a great success with children and adults
being entertained with lots of activities, including bubbles, play doh, cake decorating and
soft play.

Eleven children attended this family finding event and at this time, 6 children in 3 sibling
pairs are progressing links or interviews with adopters and there is a potential match for
another child.

Page éLOZ



Feedback from prospective adopters

“We wanted to let you know what a magical day we had at the activity day today

We are so thankful that we were able to speak to both foster carers about the boys at length
and spend time with them. We felt a strong connection with the boys. We had the space to play
and chat over Lego and balloon making - so much fun! We think the boys are incredible. . .We
wanted to pass on a huge thank you to foster carers for offering us time to discuss the boys.
We are in awe of the amazing care they are giving them.

Finally, thanks to the family finder who facilitated an invaluable conversation with foster dad,
allowing us to get a better picture of the boys’ needs.”

The Family Finding Team have successfully placed a number of older, complex children.
Transitions in those circumstances are often challenging and require thoughtful and
collaborative practice, the team feel proud of the work achieved and the outcomes for those
children.

“Whilst being pleased that we have been able to place so many children and many in EP
placements the Children who have really stood out to us this year are:

Brothers 6yrs & 3yrs of age who had had multiple foster placements, therefore significant
concerns about the impact of this instability.

Brothers 5yrs & 7yrs one of these children has a genetic condition, learning difficulty and
global delay.

Page 103



Brother and sister 5yrs & 4yrs with global developmental delay and concerns about
emotional regulation and sibling relationship.

A 7yrs old boy who having lived with his carer for two years needed very carefully supported
transitions.” -  The Family Finding Team

It is positive that there is an increased number of children being referred for EP placements
which has resulted in 36 children being placed. This is the highest number achieved across
the Adoption West region. With 78 children placed for adoption this year this means that
nearly half of the children are being placed with their adoptive family at the earliest possible
stage and we are ensuring the first placement is the only placement. Currently, over 50% of
approved adopters are offering an EP placement. EP carers are currently being matched quite
quickly after approval so having approved 45 adopters providing 36 placements this year,
when the complexities of matching and location are considered, it is essential that Adoption
West provides a constant flow of potential EP carers to have choice of placements for
children.

The level of placement activity reflects the work and commitment of social workers in both
the Family Finding and recruitment and assessment teams working together to match
children and families and provide the support to the placement.

To increase the number of children placed in Early Permanence placements (NMS 13)

This is detailed in the Adoption West Recruitment Strategy 2022-23

Recruitment activity during this period focussed on social media and updating the website
content, centred around these objectives.

e To recruit enough adopters willing to consider children who wait the longest
for adoptive parent/s (specifically siblings and those children with complex
needs)

e To make potential adopters’ aware early in their journey of the need for
adopters for siblings and what this might look like

e To provide and promote support to enable people to adopt siblings and
children with complex needs.

Page éLO4



Adoption West Online Coffee Mornings

nd ask as many

X a chat, @
Join us for u like.

quesﬁon535V°

National recruitment Campaigns

You Can Adopt launched a new campaign for
National Adoption Week 2022, which focused on the
theme of identity. You Can Adopt explored adopted
people’s memories and relationships from before,
during, and after they were adopted, and how these
A toolkit of

make them who they are today.

There's NO such thing asa @
silly question‘.
odopkion

We run an online chat for anyone
interested in adoption these are
advertised on the Adoption West website
and via social media. Each eventis hosted
by Becky Myers Recruitment and
Marketing Officer and another member
of staff.

WEEK

promotional material was shared with all Regional
Adoption Agencies telling lived experiences of
adoption. In Adoption West this material was shared

on our social media pages and website

Adopters

Adopter recruitment has been slightly lower this year with the number of people attending
Information Sessions being 12% down on last year. The conversion rate from info session to
ROl accepted is the same as for last year at 33%. Due to the lower number of people enquiring
about adoption the number of prospective adopters starting stage 1 is 30% down compared

to last year.

User feedback of their experience of the Information Sessions has had a response rate of 11%
with respondents giving an overall satisfaction of 8.45/10. The information from this first year
of user evaluation will help us to review the processes as Adoption West restructures and

operates with a regional Recruitment and Assessment Team from 15t April 2023.

The national data (Q4 2022-23) indicates a falling number of applicants in the adoption system

across England.

Pa9e105

NATION{\L
adophon



80 adopter households have been

approved in 2022-23, which is also Adopter Recruitment Data
slightly lower than the 87

70

below shows that we continue to
recruit adopters to meet the e “
needs of children waiting for Stage 2 Started -
families and that Adoption West

has sustained the improvements  Adopterapprovals “
in the recruitment of adopters for
siblings made last year, with 39%
of applicants being open to
providing adoption for siblings.

5

56% of adopters will consider early

Adopters approved permanence with an increase in children
80 placed for early permanence during this
period.
60
40 There are currently 91 approved

. adopters, with 53 (58%) waiting more
20 . . than six months to be matched.
E B B B 25 of these household

0 . I owever, of these households are
currently providing an EP placement and
we are finding that many children are
placed more than 26 weeks prior to a
placement order and then the placement
progressing to an adoption placement. We have seen a decrease in approved adopters on-
hold so the number of adopters available at 315t March 2023 was 59

EP siblings age 0-2 age 2-4 age 4-6

EQl mQ2 Q4

Analysis of adopter sufficiency which considers the demographic information and numbers of
children with a plan for adoption in 2022-23 highlights the following recruitment priorities.

e Maintain the number of adopters who will offer an early permanence placement at
50 - 60 %.

e 40% of adopters for siblings

e Increase the number of adopters from the Black community.

e Overall to recruit 80-90 adopters a year.

This will be a challenge for all adoption agencies in the current socio — economic climate.

Whilst Adoption West has currently positive sufficiency levels, we are actively developing our
recruitment strategy for the longer term and to address the priorities highlighted.

Page 1%06



67 Adopters have been matched and 76 children have been placed with Adoption West
adopters. The percentage of adopters providing homes for children within the Adoption West
region is 87%.

Adoption West aims to establish a process that captures feedback from Adopters at each
stage of the process in a way that is straight forward and accessible for adopter. In addition
to establishing feedback following an information session we have introduced an evaluation
for prospective adopters to complete via a link provided to them in their Stage 1 Review
Report.

This year we have had a response rate of 25%, respondents gave their experience of the stage
1 process an overall rating of 8.79/10

Here are some comments that we are using to inform the service we provide:

“We enjoyed the new format of the workbooks and the variety of tasks and documents
to complete e.g. the eco map of support and the useful family tree website”.

“Everyone we have had contact with has been pleasant, helpful and supportive and
has made us feel at ease with what could be a stressful process. Many thanks to all!”

“Only comment is the documents sent to complete and return don’t seem to work well
on a mobile device. The workbook in particular proved difficult for us as my laptop is a
work device so cannot email confidential details such as addresses.”

“Unfortunately, due to recruitment issues we had to wait a long time from registration
of interest to allocation of a social worker, approx 8 weeks. Though this was through
no fault of anyone, it was disheartening to initially have had a long wait. Since then
the process has been efficient and really smooth.”

“Really impressed with the knowledge, support and guidance that we have received
from our Social Worker and the training staff.”

“To make the admin/documents collection for stage 1 easier and more efficient,
providing a written checklist of documents, including options of suitable documents,
to the applicants would likely speed up the process.”

The following compliments have been given to staff:

I am writing to highlight to you how well (social worker) supported us through the
adoption. She put us at ease and explained everything very clearly. She was friendly,
open and approachable. She was great with the children, they enjoyed talking with her.
I felt i could talk openly with her without judgement. Her support was excellent and
made the process so much easier to cope with. "Thank you so much, your eternal
optimism and ability to find the humour in difficult situations has been a lifeline to us
all”.

Page 107



We just feel it is really important for us to share how absolutely fantastic (social worker)
has been along the way. From the moment we met her we felt at complete ease with
her, she has such a friendly, kind and caring manner which meant it was so easy to talk
to her. She made every effort to really get to know us and allowed us to get to know
her too whilst maintaining complete professionalism along the way. Thank you to the
entire adoption west team who have been fantastic.

The assessment process is clearly explained to prospective adopters (ibid) (NMS 10.3)

Agencies respond to requests for detailed information (following initial enquiries either to the National Gateway
for Adoption or directly to an adoption agency) within ten working days, through an information session, a visit,
pre-planned telephone call or similar arrangement with the prospective adopter. (NMS 10.4)

To implement an effective recruitment strategy, meeting the needs of children with a plan for adoption in the
AW region (NMS 10.1)

Adopter Preparation Training

All prospective adopters are offered and expected to attend the following training:

Adopting

Siblings

Stage 1 1 day
Stage 2 3 days
EP 1 day
Friends and Family 2 hours
Permanence Adopting Siblings % day

For those adopters who want to provide an Early Permanence placement, they are asked to
attend an additional 1-day training course during Stage 2 of their assessment. Those adopters

Page 1%08



wanting to be matched with siblings should complete the Adopting Siblings Workshop, prior
to matching panel.

"We like very much that training was made by people who have been adopt
children and have experience "

Applicants are given the opportunity to talk to approved adopters, adoptees and birth parents whose children were adopted. (NMS10.7)
Preparation courses are held and made available to all prospective adopters, including foster carers who wish to adopt the child (NMS10.8)

Prospective adopters are prepared to become adoptive parents in a sensitive way, which addresses and gives them skills knowledge and
practical techniques to manage the issues they are likely to encounter (NMS10.9)

The Adoption West Panel Chairs Report has been completed for this period, meeting National
Minimum Adoption Standards 17.2 and 25. This report includes full details of the panel’s
process, membership, appraisals, quality assurance, training and activity, with
recommendations to the agency.

L Panel business this year has
Panel Activity included:

2 relinquished children,
71 matches
90 approvals considered.

m Relinquished Children Matches Approvals

Feedback is requested from all those attending panel. Returns are low and further
consideration is required by the agency as to the most effective way to improve the level of
feedback provided. It is important that the panels understand how they are experienced by
those attending so that changes and improvements to practice can be made where
required.

Adoption West panels have continued to meet virtually and it is interesting to note that a
number of comments refer to this with mixed views but on balance most adopters and
professionals preferring this way of running panels.

“It was a really positive experience for us. We attended approval panel in person and
found the virtual panel a much better experience than the in-person panel. We felt

Page 109



that facing the panel in person was much more intimidating than joining a Teams
meeting. We were nervous before panel and the waiting is tough so the only
suggestion, we would have is to reduce the waiting time for adopters where
possible.”

“The pre-panel preparation with [our social worker and the panel administrator] was
helpful and reassuring and the panel itself went very smoothly and we both found it
to be a very positive experience. We were really impressed with [the chair]; his tone
and manner were warmly professional and we both felt at ease and reassured
immediately.”

“We feel that now Covid isn’t such a risk any more it would be good to do Panel in
person. We understand it’s more convenient to do it online but you get a much
better sense of who the Panel are, and what they are asking when you are in
person”.

“All panel members showing a real interest in the child we were discussing and plans
moving forwards”.

“Some technical issues for the Chair, but Vice Chair seamlessly stepped in and
progressed the meeting without any disruption.

Ideally panel would run on time but | understand why it doesn’t and why it’s difficult
to predict how long panel will take. However, communication with panel advisors
and admin is good so it helps to keep informed of delays.

When a child is placed for adoption and returns to into local authority care before an adoption order
this is considered a disruption and a Disruption meeting must be held do that any practice learning
can be shared with the agencies and adoption panel. There have been two children whose placements
disrupted during 2022-23. One disruption meeting has been held and the second is being planned as
this occurred at the end of March 2023.

The adoption Lead managers have a learning review planned for July 2023.

Page 1%10



Non-Agency Partner Adoption (referred to as Step-Parent Adoption)

Adoption West manages enquiries regarding partner adoptions via a triage process.
Applicants are required to submit their notice of intention to adopt to the local authority and
Adoption West then completes the checks, references and court report.

This work is completed by social workers in the Recruitment & Assessment Teams in each
hub, enabling the flow of this work to be managed at a regular pace and appropriately
balanced with the priorities of agency adoptions.

NAPA ACTIVITY 2022-23

Annex A reports-36 '

initial assessmnets
-42

Enquiries- 99

“Thanks for your help and support today, which made the hearing much less of a worry than it
might have been. As we told the judge, we are extremely grateful to you and all your
colleagues for the help, support and guidance we have received from you all from day one to
this very happy conclusion. It's very clear that you are not just doing your jobs. You have gone
far beyond that, and it has changed our family's lives beyond measure.”

"We never tire of telling people how amazing you and your colleagues have been.”

Page 111



Adoption Support

We provide service to children and families to meet different levels of need, these are some
of the services that have been available this year to either prospective adopters or adopted
families.

We have a commissioning arrangement with CCS Adoption that enables the provision of a
range of groups and events for adopters from both agencies. We have also worked closely
with Adoption UK as they have transitioned the TESSA service to the new Early Pathways
offer, which can now be accessed vis the Adoption Support Fund.

Adoption West have worked with Wiltshire Adopters Network for Development and Support
(WANDS) to put a proposal to the Adoption West Board for to develop peer to peer support
across all six local authorities and this was agreed in April 2023 and we have begun to progress
these plans for the coming year. To find about more about WANDS and the support available
from adopters to adopters please visit https://wearewands.org.uk)

The core activities of the service include, daily duty service, assessments of need,
management of applications to the Adoption Support Fund for individual children and/or
families, direct support to families and children and Letterbox and Direct Contact
arrangements. We also aim to run 3 therapeutic parenting courses each year facilitated by
experienced adoption support social workers along with events for adopters and children
where possible.

The level of need and demand for adoption support continues to grow. Even though enquiries have
been lower in 2022/23 than over the last four years , the number of families that have required an
assessment of need has increased and was 27% of all enquires compared with 17% in 21/22.

Page 1%12


https://wearewands.org.uk)/

Consequently, in the latter part of the year it hasn’t been possible to achieve the average timescale of
6 weeks from enquiry to assessment appointment. While families are waiting we provide ‘keepingin
touch’ calls from duty or the adoption support team.

ENQUIRES AND ASSESSMENT OF NEED
2019-2023

B AS enquiries M Assessments of need

783

3 =
~ ©
~
o
wn
3 & 8 &
2022-23 2021-22 2020 -21 2019-2020

Currently, 798 families across the region have an allocated social worker providing regular
support and or enabling them to access therapy via the ASF.

Maintaining Relationships

A significant amount of the support provided by the teams is in helping adopted children and young
people maintain connections with birth family either via letter box arrangements or face to face
contact. Adoption West manages 1,130 letterbox arrangements.

Letterbox Arrangements

M BANES -116

M Bristol -312

® Gloucestershire -242
N Somerset - 100

B Sth Glos - 84

m Wiltshire - 276

Across Adoption West we are seeing an increase in children and adopted families having some direct
contact with birth family members.

Page 113



Direct contact arrangements 2019 - 2023 - .
It is likely that we will see more

140 adoptions with face to face contact

120 )
100 in the future.
80
60 e

40 /

20

0 -
&) Q N Vv >
&y \% 3% 3% \%
\0'\ \Q'\r \Q\, \Q\ Q\
N N N N N
e BANES Bristol GCC N.Soms
= Sth Glos Wilts AW

The adoption support teams are working hard to embed Beth’s Neal Contact in Adoption Risk
Assessment Tool and have created a working Risk Assessment document for this purpose. The
principles that under pin this work are:

Every direct contact is unique and organised with the child’s emotional wellbeing
and best interests at the heart of it. It can be run independently, facilitated or
arranged and supported by Adoption West depending on who the contact is
between, especially if it is between siblings.

Preparation and planning is key to a successful meet up. Factors to consider include
are the time of year; weather; venue; photos; gifts; age appropriate activity for the
child(ren); travel arrangements.

Everyone is prepared prior to contact to ensure that expectations are managed and
so that the meeting is as successful and enjoyable as possible.

Review: After a contact feedback form is sent to all parties.

It is testament to the work of the

adoption support teams in
Adoption West that three
members of staff and an adopter
were asked to contribute to this
national webinar. Well done and
thank you to all those involved.

The Importance of Maintaining
Relationships for Children and
Families event

On Tuesday 21st March, the National Adoption Strategy
Team are hosting a webinar on The importance of
Maintaining Relationships for Children and Families. The
conference will include members of the NAST, Julie
Young from the UEA and speakers with lived experience
from the adoption triad. This event is to continue to
promote the importance of this area within the wider

Page 1Jé14



Adoption Support Fund

The Adoption Support Fund provides funds to pay for therapeutic services for adopted
children and young people. The Adoption support teams must complete an assessment of
need with the child and family to identify the appropriate support and provider. 1059
applications were approved for families in the Adoption West Region with 1210 recipients
accessing therapeutic support. This is a further year on year increase in the number of
families accessing the fund. We accessed £3,774,916.74 to provide therapeutic support to
children and families.

North

Bristol Somerset

£353,543.95 £209,811.90

Feedback and Compliments

Direct contact

You were both wonderful, i cant thank you enough. The day was perfect you both
were so caring and good with us and the kids , im just so pleased it went that well

Letterbox

Thank you for your letter enclosing a letter from my daughter's birth father. | am so
pleased that we have heard from him. It is going to be so important for my daughter to
have these....| am so pleased to be hearing from the birth families. We are so lucky that
they are at least starting to engage with the letterbox process. Anything extra would be
a bonus. Thank you for all the thought and effort that has gone into helping us with
communication.

Family Support

We're in an OK place at the moment- mostly thanks to your team!..Many thanks as
ever for all the help and support. I honestly don't know how we would have survived
the last few years without your team!

has always listened graclously and only ever offered support and for that we are so very
grateful. (truly wmean that,

Pa%e 115



You are a *marvel*. I’'m so pleased that you’re our social worker. You make such a
demonstrable difference to our lives and | can’t thank you enough.

Assessment of Need

Thank you so wmuch for this, We are very grateful and mpressed at how thorough and
accurate Your veport is

Events

| just wanted to send a big thank you for the Christmas party. It was so well organised and
my kids had an absolutely brilliant time.

Therapeutic Parenting Course

The course is run by social workers in Adoption West three times a year this is some of the
feedback:

e | often wonder if I’'m parenting in the right way. The course has confirmed | am, and
I've picked up tips and hints

e Being part of an adopter community and knowing you’re not on your own

e Hearing other’s experiences and knowing you’re not on your own and there is light
at the end of the tunnel; can sometimes feel like you’re on an island

e For the first time strategies that actually work. I've read books but none of it works

Was there anything we could have spent more time on/anything we didn’t cover?

e More on sibling rivalry and sibling relationships

e More on compassion fatigue, how to recognise it and deal with it

e More on parent mental health, post adoption depression. Can make therapeutic
parenting much harder

Online experience

e Our whole adopter experience started in Covid and we have never met anyone in
person, everything has been online. | do miss the connection of being in a room with
others and having a conversation.

e |t would have been impossible for me to travel and commit for 10 weeks if it had
been in person. Perhaps there could be one optional ‘real’ meeting at the end of the
course, to meet everyone in person?

Adoption National Minimum Standard 15

Adoption support

Children and adults affected by adoption receive an assessment of their adoption support needs.

Children and adults affected by adoption receive an assessment of their adoption support needs. Service users confirm that the adoption
support service provided met or are meeting their assessed needs. (NMS 15)

Contact with birth parents, siblings, other members of the birth family and significant others is arranged and maintained when it is
beneficial to the child. (NMS 8)

Page2%16



irth © Links

Provides counselling and access to records for adopted adults this also includes advise about
how to access intermediary services if people wish to trace birth family members.

User feedback rated the experience as 9.4/10

Adopted Adopted
Adopted Adult Adult/Support Intermediary Adult/Support
(Schedule 2) (Access to Records) Advice Zz:mencement
AW Total 39 75 35 1

Support provided to birth families has increased by 25% this year with 125 people accessing
the service, we are currently providing 1-1 support and Group work. In addition, we have been
collaborating across Adoption West and with Pause to raise the profile of birth parent voices

Talking and listening

Liaising with children’s social workers the regions

Liaising with letterbox support workers regarding contact plans
Supporting birth parents to write a later life letter for their child
Creating Memory boxes for the birth parent

Supporting birth parents to meet with adopters of their child

We have been running a regular monthly group in Bristol since September 2021 with five birth mum’s
who attend. It has been enormous step for the women to join the group and their commitment to it
demonstrates the import place it is for them. Development is in place to start another ‘pop-up’ group
in Gloucester in April 2023 and Wiltshire Pause are interested in co-running in the future.

Page 117




IS

I
SN
=

5]
7

Dwars On,
YOUR EMoTions

MARGOT syp
Pl

The Bristol Birth parents group took the
opportunity to work with a creative
writer to create this poem. It speaks for
itself.

The women were asked if they would
like to share any comments about the
group for the annual report. Here is
what they said:

“I reckon its brilliant. It should have come from the start when we first lost our kids. Should’ve come
ages ago.”

“It helps cause you’re not on your own, other people in the group are in a similar situation. We can
support each other.”

“It’s a space we can just open up and talk about what we’ve been through — the suffering and
pain. We understand each other because our children have been adopted. People who haven’t been
through it wouldn’t understand.”

“I've made good friends.”

“This should have been done ages ago. | wish | could have met someone who had my experience
years ago.”

Page 2%18



Twilight’ sessions where prospective adopters can meet with birth parents in person was run for the
first time this year with plans in place to run a further 3 in 2023-24

In the summer of 2023 Adoption West will be sharing “Brandon’s story — Stuck in a Cycle” an animated
story of a birth father who has worked with the service to produce it.

Adoption National Minimum Standards 12.3 Birth parents are given access to, and are actively encouraged to use, a support worker from
the time adoption is identified as the plan for the child. The support worker is independent of the child’s social worker. (NMS12.3)

Adoption National Minimum Standards 12.6 Birth parents are helped to work through their concerns through the counselling they receive
and understand what is proposed for their child and how the child will benefit if they take an active part in their child’s adoption. (NMS12.6)

Adoption National Minimum Standards 16 Intermediary services - Adopted adults and birth relatives are assisted to obtain information in
relation to the adoption, where appropriate, and contact is facilitated between an adopted adult and their birth relative if that is what both
parties want

Adoption National Minimum Standards 23.9 Birth records counselling and disclosure of adoption information

The National Adoption Team is led by the Strategic Adoption Lead Sarah Johal, allows for RAA
leaders to work collaboratively on developing and improving practice and delivering improved
outcomes for children and families as part of the government's national adoption strategy-
achieving excellence everywhere. The 3 year programme has 3 key priorities, recruitment of
adopters, the child's journey and adoption support.

Working with RAA’s across the South West, Adoption West has taken a lead role in submitting
successful bids for national adoption strategy monies for developing practice in early
permanence and matching.

One of the 2021-22 aims of the Department for Education 2021 Adoption strategy:
Achieving excellence everywhere is to increase the number of children put forward for Early
Permanence placements. The specific aims of the project cover four of the six overall
funding objectives, namely:

1. Toincrease the number of EP placements

2. Toimprove the quality of EP placement practice

3. To ensure that EP carers and placements receive the most appropriate support
before, during and after placement.

4. To identify areas for potential innovation in EPP

The project lead has been reviewing practice across the region including the preparation
and support of adopters/carers, what the data tells us about the children who are placed for
EP, what are the challenges in maintaining the practice knowledge in the system a to ensure
an EP placement is considered and available for children when needed. The project aims to
identify EP Champions across the south west who will continue to work together to further
develop and embed practice in the region across RAA’s, VAA’s and local authorities.

Page 119



Early Permanence Conference

The South West conference took place in Taunton on 19 April 2023, with 60 delegates
attending, including representatives from Cafcass, Local Authority Legal teams, IROs and EP
practitioners from RAAs and all but one Local Authority. The event commenced with a
keynote speech from Julie Selwyn, followed by a recording of an EP carer, taken at the
national conference in Leeds and then Alexandra Conroy Harris presenting on legal issues in

EP. Both speakers generated a lot of questions and discussions.

The afternoon workshops on the following subjects were very well
received:

Experiences of family time in Early Permanence
placements

Supporting Early Permanence Carers
Planning for the best outcomes for children
Early Permanence for older children

Maintaining a fostering focus in early permanence
placements

South West Matching project for children with disabilities —

The project is a partnership between the RAA’s in the south west and Julie Selwyn from Oxford
University Rees Centre. The challenges we will address:

Are we aspirational enough for children with complex health needs, in terms of their
plans for permanence or are we impacted by bias and belief that we won’t place
children.

Working across 13 Local Authorities to understand the relationship between children’s
disabilities teams and front line teams in permanence practice for children

Does mainstream recruitment identify adopters for children with complex health
needs.

What has worked in Bespoke family finding.

Timely development and commitment to a robust support plan by the LA’s
Combining the support plan with the EHCP from the outset —is there a potential pilot?

The project has recruited the staff who will come into post in June 2023. The Rees centre has
completed a review of literature and practice model which will further inform the scope of
the project.

Page 2%20



People

The Senior Management Team, as detailed below, remains stable.
o Alison Lewis, Service Director- Agency Decision Maker (Adopter Approvals)
o Stuart Babbage, Business Manager

o Sue White, Service Manager — Recruitment, Assessment & Adoption Support

o Alison Hall, Service Manager (30 hours) — Family Finding and Panels

Roles in Adoption West

= Senior Managers = Team Managers = DTM
Agency Adviosrs = Trainers = Marketing Officer
= Senior Business Support = Social workers = Support Workers

= Business Support

Our establishment is 83 staff, 61 FTE.

Adoption West moved to a temporary structure in June 2022, which created a single
Recruitment and Assessment Team for four local authority areas, the aim was to provide more
consistent management of these teams and review the impact it may have on performance.
We will be reviewing the progress and impact in coming months. In December 2022 the
Adoption West Board agreed to a new structure for the service:

Structure H
Service Director
Alison Lewis west
[ |
| Service Manager x0.8, Alison Hall | Service Manager x1fte ,Sue White | Business Manager
| Stuart Babbage
I

Marketing

Officer 0.5
enior
Agency ‘mation Business
Advisors Officer Support
X2.2fte Birth Links gs:5 Olff::;s
Deputy
Manager x0.8
Social Worker
1fte
Support Worker
1.2 fte
MR 2 N N I M
: Business Support Business Support |
! I
N F Panel Administrators | _____ U

Page 121



Finance

Adoption West will receive commissioned contract income of £3.629m in 2022/23 from its 6 local
authority partners to deliver adoption services. The breakdown of budget allocation is shown below:

Category 2022/23

Staff Salary, NI & Pensions 3,014
Other staff costs (Incl. Agency) 89
Travel, Accom, Training Subsistence 67
Commissioned Services, Subscriptions & other adopter

recruitment activity 153
Post Adoption Support 62
ICT & Office 164
Support services 79
Total 3,629

Adoption West has also received £3.780 m Adoption Support Fund grant income and manages
the related expenditure on behalf of the 6 local authority partners. As a Voluntary Adoption
Agency, Adoption West operates on a not-for-profit basis and any surpluses are returned to
the local authority partners that control the organisation.

Adoption West has managed its finances effectively to deliver services within budget under
the added pressures of inflationary increases and various other organisational challenges. The
financial processes and systems in place have proved effective and are being continuously
improved to meet requirements, increase efficiency and enable Adoption West to realise new
opportunities.

Financial viability and changes affecting business continuity. The Voluntary Adoption Agency/Adoption Support
Agency is financially sound. (NMS20)

Complaints & Data Breaches

In addition to the six complaints detailed in the six month report for April to September 2022, there
has been a further 2 complaints between October 2022 and March 2023. One complaint retailed to
the delay in progressing a Non Agency Partner Adoption which was upheld and an apology given. The
other to complaint related to approved adopters who had had a long wait to be matched with a child
and their concern about the transparency of the matching process. All eight complaints have been
dealt with within stage 1 of the complaints process.

There has been a total of three data breaches this year this is a significant reduction from the previous
year of 10. All incidents were reported to the Data Protection Officer, and none were reportable to
the I1CO.

Pagez%zz



With the new structure and investment from the local authorities, next year brings
opportunities to focus on our adoption support service. Whilst the service makes very good
use of the Adoption Support Fund, this cannot be relied on indefinitely and Adoption West
needs to develop its own in house services. We have done this with the Therapeutic Parenting
course and we have also invested in staff training and development with most social workers
and support workers having completed Dyadic Development Psychotherapy (DDP) level 1 and
or Theraplay level 1. We also have a small number of staff who are DDP level2 qualified and
we would like to grow this number this year. This will enable our own practitioners to provide

direct work to children and families

Adoption West wants to be more visible to adopters across this large region and working with
WANDS to develop peer to peer support we will be able to reach out to the communities of
adopters. As part of this work, we plan to develop our own Adopter Reference group so that
we can regularly communicate with adopters about how this service is developed. This will
also create more opportunities for participation with children and young adults.

The growth in the number of children placed in Early Permanence placements means we are
having a direct impact on the lives of children with their first placement being their only
placement. The excellent work of the Family Finding, Recruitment assessment teams and the
EP Project, should be part of Adoption West working to achieve the Coram Baaf kite mark for
Early permanence this year.

The Birth Links team have been instrumental in growing the offer of support to birth families
and next year we look forward to providing more groups across the region. Connecting birth
parents and adopters via the twilight sessions will create an opportunity to grow
understanding and break down barriers, which we hope will impact on connections being
maintained when possible. This year we aim to work with our partner authorities to develop
a more consistent understanding and practice when planning contact for children after the
adoption order.

It is challenging times for recruiting both adopters and foster carers. We are actively working
with the National Adopter Recruitment Campaigns and locally plan to promote adoption
across the region. Our recruitment strategy highlights the needs to maintain the level of
recruitment of Early Permanence carers and the progress in recruiting and supporting
adopters to provide a family for siblings. Each year we have seen more children who are
adopted, staying and growing up in the Adoption West region. This year we need to work
with our local authorities to encourage more Black Asian Minority Ethnic people to consider
adoption to meet the needs of children in the region.

As highlighted in the Ofsted ILCAS inspections Adoption West continues to work well with the

local authorities and together are continually seeking to improve the experience for children
and families.

Page 123



Finally, | want to take this opportunity to thank everyone who works for Adoption West for their
commitment and dedication often going above and beyond, to develop the practice of this agency,
which strives to ensure positive experiences and outcomes for all those whose lives are impacted by
adoption.

NS N

Alison Lewis
Service Director

Sue White: Service Manager

Alison Hall: Service Manager

Stuart Babbage: Business Manager

Anjali Gupta: Team Manager Bristol

Jane Priborsky: Team Manager Trowbridge

Jen Brennan: Interim Team Manager Family Finding
Kate Worthington: Team Manager Family Finding
Rebecca Myers: Marketing and Communications
Anita Huggins: DTM Adoption Support Bristol
Denise O’Connor, DTM Adoption Support Trowbridge
Rebecca Kay: DTM Adoption Support Gloucester
Claire Jarvis: DTM Birth Links

Hannah Walker: Support Worker Birth Links

Sallie Turnbull: Support Worker Birth Links

Page 2Jé24



As a local authority company, Adoption West is owned by the six partner local authorities
through the Joint Committee of Directors of Children’s Services. The management of
Adoption West is delegated to the Adoption West Board of Directors and to the Service

Director.

Andy Dempsey — Director of Partnerships and Strategy, Gloucestershire County
Council (Chair until November 2022)

Sheila Smith — Director of Children’s Services, North Somerset Council ( Chair from
November 2022)

Martin Davis — Director Children and Families, Wiltshire Council until August 2022 /

Jen Salter - Interim Director Families and Children’s Services, Wiltshire Council from
September 2022

Fiona Tudge — Director of Children, Families and Safer Communities, Bristol City
Council

Jo Cross — Head of Integrated Children Services, South Gloucestershire Council

Becky Hopkins — Assistant Director, North Somerset Council

Mary Kearney-Knowles — Director Children and Young Peoples Service, Bath and North
East Somerset Council

Mustafa Salih — Head of Financial Management and Business Support, South
Gloucestershire Council
Emma Simpson — CEO, CCS Adoption from September 2022

Adoption West is commissioned by the six local authorities to provide adoption services.
The Lead Managers group is responsible for oversight of the commissioning arrangement
and developing shared practice between Adoption West and the Local authority children’s
social care teams.

Rachael Ward — Head of Service: Care Outcomes, Bath & North East Somerset Council

Page 125



e Tara Parsons—Service Manager, Placements Team, Permanency and Specialist Services,
Bristol City Council

e Tammy Wheatley — Head of Service, Permanence, Gloucestershire County Council

e Shelley Caldwell — Service Leader Service Leader Resource Service, North Somerset
Council

e Aimee Williams — Service Manager, South Gloucestershire Council
e Pier Pritchard — Service Manager, Children in Care and Placement Service, Wiltshire
Council

As an adoption agency that is funded by public finances to provide statutory adoption
services it is crucial that there is effective scrutiny of Adoption West. The Joint Scrutiny
Panel has been established to provide this function. The panel meets quarterly, and each
meeting includes a briefing about adoption issues. In this period adopters have met with
councillors and shared their experience of support via the ASF and being an Early
Permanence carer.

e ClIr Michelle O’Doherty Bath and North East Somerset Council
e ClIr Christine Townsend Bristol City Council

o Cllr Dr Andrew Miller Gloucestershire County Council

e Cllr Wendy Griggs North Somerset Council

e ClIr Nic Labuschagne South Gloucestershire Council

e ClIr Jon Hubbard (Chairman) Wiltshire Council

e CllIr Carole King Wiltshire Council

Adoption West has commissioned Adoption UK to provide Adopter Voice services across
the region. An Adopter Advisory Board has been created which consists of a Chair and
Adopter Champions across the region. The Chair also attends the Adoption West Board to
ensure the voice of adopters is included in the governance and scrutiny of the work of
Adoption West.

The current Chair of the Advisory Board Vicky Reynolds until November 2022

Page3%26



Agenda Iltem 8

North Somerset Council

Report to the Children & Young People Policy & Scrutiny Panel

Date of Meeting: 19t October 2023

Subject of Report: Children’s Safeguarding Partnership Annual Report
Town or Parish: North Somerset

Officer/Member Presenting: Carolyn Fair

Key Decision: No

Reason: It is not a key decision because it does not result in incurring
expenditure or making savings of £500K+

It is not a key decision because of the effects of two or more wards
withing the local authority.

Recommendations
For the CYPS Panel to receive and comment on the Children’s Safeguarding Board annual
report.

1. Summary of Report

Key Strategic Business Priorities

Leadership - To provide strong governance to an effective strategic framework.

Learning — To ensure that practitioners have the knowledge and skills to be effective in their
safeguarding children’s roles.

Neglect - To identify and support the prevention of neglect by improving the safety and
wellbeing of children and young people in North Somerset through the effective early
identification and effective support.

Contextual Child Exploitation - To ensure child exploitation is recognised and responded to
effectively, including when young people transition into adulthood.

Recent challenges include the ongoing task of recruiting to key roles of business manager
and business support officers who provide such vital leadership and safeguarding direction.
We’ve shown resilience and commitment to improve following recent Ofsted Inspection
findings in March 2023 and reflect on national guidance including the Wood Review. During
our development day in March 2023, we focused on making our work evidence-based and
agreed the areas of focus for the coming year. We are also working to emphasise
independent scrutiny and oversight now more than ever.

Statutory partners have worked together to embed our core principals and move closer to
our Partnership’s goals. All subgroups working groups are fully operational, with clear work
objectives against the new three-year Safeguarding Business Plan, clear chairing
arrangements, and robust membership. The Communications and Engagement subgroup is

Page 127



currently being reviewed and consideration is now being given to join this subgroup with the
Safeguarding Adults Board.

Safeguarding Activity has accelerated considerably with a greater emphasis on audit and
embedding learning from local reviews into professional practice and cascading this
learning at multi-agency training events.

Independent Scrutiny is undertaken by our Independent Chair. We have adopted several
context-appropriate methods to achieve the scrutiny function. We also use multi-agency
audit tools (for neglect cases and child sexual exploitation) as well as the development of
action log trackers for recording safeguarding business activity.

Section 11 requirements as outlined in the children Act, 2004, were completed by the
University Hospital Bristol and Western (UHBW) as well as the 2 Fostering Agencies
Compass and Capstone.

The Child Exploitation Working Group conducted a preparatory JTAI in January 2023
examining multi-agency arrangements for dealing with criminal and sexual exploitation. We
have begun considerations for the partnership to undertake a LGA peer review is planned
for the coming financial year.

Following the national review of the murders of Arthur and Star, this partnership also held a
learning event for practitioners from across all organisations which was supported by the
Interim Designated Nurse for Safeguarding Children across the system.

Our Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy 2023- 2026 has been finalised, and as a result our
multi-agency responses to children at risk of criminal & sexual exploitation has been
strengthened.

2. Policy
There are no changes to policy as a result of this report.

3. Details

Our Vision
We want children and young people who reside in North Somerset grow up in a safe
environment, free from abuse and neglect. Children, young people, and their families will
receive the right level of support & intervention, at the right time, by skilled professionals to
ensure that children and young people have the best start to life.

Our Values
 Transparency and Respect — we will foster a culture of openness, respect and
transparency. NSSCP partners are required to work openly together, to learn from
collective and individual experience, and to seek and receive assurance on the overall
effectiveness of work to safeguard and protect children in North Somerset.

* Integrity and Honesty — we will be honest and open with each other on areas of
challenge, transformation and system change to inform decisions on future initiatives and
collaborative working.

Challenge and Innovation - we will respectfully and constructively challenge each other to
drive continuous improvement and deliver the best outcomes for North Somerset’s children.

* Collaboration and Partnership — The three safeguarding partners and all relevant agencies
will work proactively, effectively, and collaboratively together. We will value differences to
help drive improvements for children and young people.

+ Care and Listening to the voice and lived experience of the child - Everything we do will
benefit children and young people in North Somerset. We will ensure that our work is child-
centred, and we continually seek to care for, engage and involve our children and young
people and their families.

Page 128



Achievements

1. We have completed our 3-year Business Plan and agreed our 4 strategic priorities. The
voice of the child is a key thread throughout our business priorities.

2. We continue to embed neglect as a key area of learning throughout respective
partnership training requirements and develop learning briefings.

3. We have promoted learning opportunities from national and locally driven developments,
case reviews, and audits and assisted in the development of effective and appropriate
multi-agency courses.

4. Our Family Strengths and Needs Toolkit and documentation is now complete. We have
commenced multiagency audits in Neglect, making sure plans cover the area identified as a
concern — this will continue on a 3-monthly basis.

5. We have Improved the sharing of data relating to all our vulnerable children including
those vulnerable to exploitation across the Partnership and with other Local Authorities.

6. Following local case reviews or serious incidents relating to children. We continue to
quality assure NSSCP multi-agency training and professional development activities and
evaluate of the impact of this training.

Updates, achievements and future priorities are detailed from all subgroups and working
groups, ICB, Avon and Somerset Police and Children and Families Services.

Learning from CSPRs is outlined using case studies and the voice of the child is reported
on.

Author:
Zoe Gartland, Business Manager for the Childrens’ Partnership

Appendices:

North Somerset Safeguarding
Children Annual Report
January 2022 to March 2023

Background Papers:

None.

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



NSSCP %(fs,n“

NORTH SOMERSET Council
Safeguarding Children Partnership

North Somerset Safeguarding
Children Annual Report
January 2022 to March 2023

Bristol, North Somerset 7oY. Avon and Somerset Police

and South Gloucestershire SERVE.PROTECT.RESPECT.
Integrated Care Board

ol

-
N
g o

Page 131



Contents

North Somerset Safeguarding Children Annual Report January 2022 to March 2023...........cccecevveeenes 1
INEFOAUCTION .ttt sttt ettt e bt e s bt e s ae e st e st e e bt e b e e sbeesmeesmeeeneeeneean 4
Foreword from the NSSCP Safeguarding Children Partnership Executive..........cccocceeeviieeiecciieeeeennen. 4
North Somerset Safeguarding Children Partnership Structure ........cccceeeeeecciiiiieee e 5
TaTo =T oY aTe L=T oY d Yo (U A 1o 12U 6
What is Safeguarding Children?..........ooo it e e e e rrr e e s e eara e e e srte e e e srtaeeesanes 6
L0 18T VT[] o PP P PP PPPPROPTPTROR 7

OUE ValUBS ..ttt ettt ettt e st e s bt e e s ab e e sttt e sabeesabeeesabeesabeeesabeesabeeeseeesabeeenanes 7
Key StrategiC BUSINESS PriOFIiTIES ....uueeiiiieiiiieiiiiiieeee ettt e e e s s e e e e s s s satbeeeeeee s s s nannnes 8
A Snapshot of what North Somerset Safeguarding Children Partnership has achieved.................... 8
SPOLIIGT ON 202272023 ...ttt sttt sttt b e et s bt et e s beeat e besbe et e bt saeeneeeaeeneas 9

Multi-agency Training and Development: what we did Well............cooooiiiiiiiiiiiccie e, 9

FULUIE ODJECHIVES: ..eeiiiiiiiie ettt et e e st e e et b e e e e st b e e e ssnsseeeesasaeeesansreeesansseeeans 9

Child Safeguarding Practice Review Group Subgroup - what we did well...........ccccoeviincineeinnen. 10

[T VTR o] o JT<T ot o V7Y PP 10

Learning and Development Subgroup - what we did Well..........cccvveeriieiicciiee e, 10

[T (V=R o] o JT<T ot o V7T PP 11

Quality Assurance and Performance Management activities- what we did well........................ 11

T UL R o] o T =Tt o V7T PSP 11

Child Exploitation Working Group -what we did Well...........cccoviiiiiiiicee e, 12

[T U =R o] o JT<T ot V7T PP 12

Neglect Working Group —what we did Well.........cuuiiiiiiiiiee e 12

T UL R o] o T =Tt o V7T PSP 13
Dealing with risk & learning from Safeguarding Practice .......cccocvvviiiciee i, 13

What have we learnt from Child Safeguarding Practice ReViews?..........cccceeeeiiieeicciieee e 13
Integrated Care Board — input into North Somerset Safeguarding Children Partnership................. 14
AVON aNd SOMEISET POLICE .....eeeiiieiiiitieiteee ettt et ne e s 15

YT g Y= Y1 [o [ Yo VPRSP 16

Safety and ANLi-BUIIYiNG .......ooi i e et e e et e e e ebre e e e e rraeeeeanes 16
ChildrEN SEIVICES ...nneeiiiei ettt ettt s et e s e s b e s b e e s bt e s be e e smseesreresareesnreesaneeesaneeanns 17

Family SUpPOrt & SafegUardiNg ........coocuiiieecee ettt e et e e te e e e e aba e e e e eaneeas 17

Team SruCtUre and FEMIT.....ocuiiiieeieee ettt sttt e b e e sbeesane e 17

OUF INTEIATIVES ...etiii ittt ba e s s sba e s s arae s 18

Future challenges and developmMENTS.......uiii i e e e e e 18

L o]0 A D T o] TSP OTPPPT 19

2



Multi Agency Safeguarding HUD.........oooiiiii e e e e e 20

Family WellDEING HUD ......oiieeeeeeee et e e e et e e e e nre e e e enbaee e eenreeas 20
(O U] 1 AV XU T [ o ol PP 20
Family WElIDEING SEIVICE ....uveiiiiiiiee ettt e s st e e s s sbee e e st ee e e e sabeeeeesnbaeeaenareeas 21
Advanced PareNting OFfEr .....ooo i e e e e e et re e e e earre e e e earaeas 22
CRIlAIEN TN I .ttt et sttt et et e s bt e s ae e sat e st e e b e e bt e nbeesseesmeeeneeenteen 23
OUP Children’s VOICES .....eiiiieeetteeeiee ettt ettt ettt sat e st e s bee e sab e s abeeesabeesabeeesabeesabeesaneeesareeanns 26
Now let’s hear the voice of one young person: my personal Story. ......ccccceevvieeeericeeeesecieee e s, 26
How do you feel participation has changed and is your voice is being heard?............cccccuvvneeeen. 26
How do you feel about people at hOME? .........oo i e e 27
What is 80iNg WEll iN YOUT lif@? ....oeiiiiieeeee et e e et e e eare e e e s entae e e eanes 27
What is the best Way t0 help ME? ... et 27
Case Study- Child B’s experience: here is my personal journey. .......ccceccuveeeeiieeeeeicieee e esneeeens 27
Child Bis aged 17 years Old...............oooiiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e e e e sae e e s be e e esnaaeeeeas 27
POSITIVE OUTCOMIES ....iiiiiiiiiitee et e s e s s e s s 28
Education, Health, and SOCIAl NEEAS .........uuuuruueuiiiiiiiiii b asesesasesaaasesesasananes 28
OUr Mental health SEIVICE ....couiii ittt e e b e snee e sbee e 28
(01U Y [ole] oTo] B =T o s ISPV ROPTOPPRPRPP 28
What does our Data tell US?...........cooiiiiiiiiie et st 29
Local area Designated Officer (LADO) - ANNUal REPOIT .......vviiiieiiieicciee ettt e 29
Child Death Overview Panel (CDOP) — Annual REPOIt........ooeeciiiiieiiiiee ettt et 29
Section 11 Audit 2022-2023.......oooieeeeeeee ettt sttt e sttt e e re s 30
Y A=Y o TT o T ad o T L =SSR 30

Page 133



Introduction

Welcome to our third Safeguarding Children Annual Report from the North Somerset
Safeguarding Children Partnership.

As with many multi-agency safeguarding partnerships, 2022 to 2023 has been a challenging
year for us. The transition arrangements in North Somerset have taken longer than planned
due to recruitment challenges resulting in drift of key business priorities. This report covers
the period from January 2022 up until the end of March 2023. The Board has been chaired
throughout this period by our Independent Chair, Ivan Powell.

This annual report will be shared with:

o The Chief Executive, North Somerset Council

J The Chief Executive of BNSSG Integrated Care Board

J The Outcomes, Quality and Performance Committee and System Quality Groups
of the Bristol, North Somerset, South Gloucestershire Integrated Care Board
(BNSSG ICB)

J The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner

J The Safer and Stronger Communities Strategic Partnership

. Children and Young People’s Policy & Scrutiny Panel (NSC)

J Children and Young People’s Partnership Board

J The North Somerset Safeguarding Adults Board

) The National Safeguarding Practice Review Panel

J What Works for Early Intervention and Children's Social Care Centre

J This report is to be approved by the Executive of the North Somerset

Safeguarding Partnership in September 2023

Should you require the report in any other format to support accessibility please contact the
Safeguarding Children Business Manager NSSCP maggie.lilburn@n-somerset.gov.uk.

Foreword from the NSSCP Safeguarding Children Partnership

Executive

We have had a range of recent challenges. This includes the ongoing challenge of recruiting
to the key roles of business manager and business support officers who provide such vital
leadership and safeguarding direction. We've shown resilience and commitment to improve
in light of its recent Ofsted Inspection findings in March 2023. The fundamental aim of each
peer challenge is to help councils and their partners reflect on and improve the impact of
practices and services for children, young people, and families. We also reflect on national
guidance from a range of sources including the Wood Review. During our development day
in March 2023, we focused on making our work evidence-based and agreed the areas of
focus for the coming year. We are also working to emphasise independent scrutiny and
oversight now more than ever.

We acknowledge the extraordinary efforts made by our local community as well as all
voluntary and statutory partners. We feel very proud to live and work within North
Somerset in light of such hard work.

4

Page 134


mailto:maggie.lilburn@n-somerset.gov.uk

This report reflects some of those challenges we have worked to overcome and the great
results we have achieved. As this is the third year of the Partnership, we know that there are
several key initiatives we have needed to develop in 2022 and 2023. Statutory partners have
recognised there have been insufficient resources in the absence of sufficient chairing
capacity and a permanent business manager and administration support for the partnership
to flourish.

. Rosi Shepherd, Chief Nursing Officer, BNSSG ICB

. Adam O’Loughlin, Chief Inspector, Avon & Somerset Police

) Sheila Smith, Director of Children’s Services, North Somerset Council
J Ivan Powell, Independent Chair

North Somerset Safeguarding Children Partnership Structure
Following the recruitment of an Interim Business Manager in 2022 and February 2023,
we’ve worked together to embed our core principals and move closer to our Partnership’s
goals. All Subgroups are in place with a clear focus, chairing arrangements, and robust
membership. The Communications and Engagement Subgroup is currently being reviewed
and consideration is now being given to join this subgroup with the Safeguarding Adults
Board. This will add value to the current Partnership Arrangements.

All subgroups and working groups are fully operational, with clear work objectives against
the new three-year Safeguarding Business Plan. Safeguarding Activity has accelerated
considerably with a greater emphasis on audit and embedding learning from local reviews
into professional practice and cascading this learning at multi-agency training events.

Below the Executive is the Executive and Sub Group Chairs. These chairs oversee the Child
Safeguarding Practice Review Group, Learning and Development, Quality Assurance and
Performance Monitoring, Communication and Engagement, Exploitation/Contextual
Safeguarding (Working Group) and the Childhood Neglect (Working Group).

NB: The communications and Engagement group will now join with Safeguarding Adults
subgroup to strengthen partnership working.

(P

Executive

—

Executive & Sub
Group Chairs

| [ [
b A b A ) bl
. . - Exploitation/
child S_afegua_rdlng Learning and W AEEITET Communication Contextual Childhood Neglect
Practice Review and Performnce . N
Development I and Engagement Safeguarding (Working Group)
Group Monitoring {Working Group)

Page 135



Independent Scrutiny

Independent Scrutiny which is one of the key changes in the new partnership arrangements.
Currently this function is undertaken by our Independent Chair. There have been a number
of context-appropriate methods to achieve the scrutiny function which we have been
adopted. Challenges and responses raised between partners are noted in the partnership
minutes. We also use multi-agency audit tools (for Neglect cases and Child Sexual
exploitation) as well as the development of action log trackers for recording safeguarding
business activity. Section 11 requirements as outlined in the children Act, 2004, were
completed by the University Hospital Bristol and Western (UHBW) as well as the 2 Fostering
Agencies Compass and Capstone.

The Child Exploitation Working Group conducted a preparatory JTAl in January 2023
examining multi-agency arrangements for dealing with criminal and sexual exploitation. We
have begun considerations for the partnership to undertake a LGA peer review is planned
for the coming financial year.

What is Safeguarding Children?
Working Together 2018* defines the safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children as:

J protecting children from maltreatment.

J preventing impairment of children’s health or development.

J ensuring the children are growing up in circumstances consistent with the
provision of safe and effective care.

) taking action to enable all children to have the best outcomes.

Child protection is a part of safeguarding activity that protects specific children who are
suffering, or likely to suffer, significant harm.

North Somerset Safeguarding Partners, in accordance with Working Together 2018, have
drafted their new Multiagency Safeguarding Arrangements for Children and Young People.

Page 136



The North Somerset Safeguarding Children’s Partnership is a multi-agency partnership, with
responsibility for safeguarding children and young people throughout the North Somerset
locality.

Leadership comes from three statutory partners:

e North Somerset City Council
e Avon& Somerset Police
e BNSSG ICB

The Safeguarding Children Business Manager and Independent Chair coordinate this work.

The NSSCP works closely with other relevant groups to ensure a coordinated, borough wide,
approach to a range of issues which cross the boundaries of age, and are therefore, not the
specific remit of any one group. These include:

J The Safer and Stronger Communities Strategic Partnership
. Children and Young People’s Policy & Scrutiny Panel (NSC)
J Children and Young People’s Partnership Board

Our Vision

We want children and young people who reside in North Somerset grow up in a safe
environment, free from abuse and neglect. Children, young people, and their families will
receive the right level of support & intervention, at the right time, by skilled professionals to
ensure that children and young people have the best start to life.

Our Values

e Transparency and Respect —we will foster a culture of openness, respect and
transparency. NSSCP partners are required to work openly together, to learn from
collective and individual experience, and to seek and receive assurance on the
overall effectiveness of work to safeguard and protect children in North Somerset.

e Integrity and Honesty — we will be honest and open with each other on areas of
challenge, transformation and system change to inform decisions on future
initiatives and collaborative working.

e Challenge and Innovation - we will respectfully and constructively challenge each
other to drive continuous improvement and deliver the best outcomes for North
Somerset’s children.

e Collaboration and Partnership — The three Safeguarding Partners and all Relevant
Agencies will work proactively, effectively, and collaboratively together. We will
value differences to help drive improvements for children and young people.

Care and Listening to the voice and lived experience of the child - Everything we do will
benefit children and young people in North Somerset. We will ensure that our work is child
centred, and we continually seek to care and engage, and involve our children and young
people and their families.

Page 137



Key Strategic Business Priorities

The NSSCP Strategic Plan has been developed to focus on a set of agreed priorities that have
been agreed at the NSSCP Development event on 10th March 2023 These are:

e Leadership- To provide strong governance to an effective strategic framework.

e Learning Ensure- that practitioners have the knowledge and skills to be effective in
their safeguarding children’s roles.

e Neglect- To identify and support the prevention of neglect by improving the safety
and wellbeing of children and young people in North Somerset the effective early
identification help and effective support.

e Contextual Child Exploitation- Ensure child exploitation is recognised and responded
to effectively, including when young people transition into adulthood.

We've identified these priorities from themes arising from the Partnership’s existing
scrutiny, and quality assurance programs and key learning points arising from children’s
safeguarding practice reviews. The strategic objectives will remain the same for the three-
year period of the plan but we will often review the activities that sit underneath them.

The structure of the strategic plan allows the Board to focus on key strategic areas of
partnership activity but also remain flexible to respond to feedback. This will allow us to
refine existing programs in response to the needs of children and young people..

To support the delivery of the Business Plan, we make more detailed individual plans
aligned to the Board'’s strategic priorities with each Sub and Working Group. The NSSCP will
take a leadership role in the delivery and quality assurance of partnership work in these
areas. Progress against this plan will be reviewed and monitored by each individual
subgroup / Task and Finish Group in the first instance. Where necessary and appropriate,
the Execs Plus Group will highlight both areas of concern and areas of good practice and
success to the full NSSCP Executive Board meetings for further action.

A Snapshot of what North Somerset Safeguarding Children

Partnership has achieved

1. We have completed our 3-year Business Plan and agreed our 4 Strategic priorities.
The voice of the child is a key thread throughout our business priorities.

2. We continue to embed neglect as a key area of learning throughout respective
partnership training requirements and develop learning briefings.

3. We have promoted learning opportunities from national and locally driven
developments, case reviews, and audits and assisted in the development of effective
and appropriate multi-agency courses.

4. Our Family Strengths and Needs Toolkit and documentation is now complete. We
have commenced multiagency audits in Neglect, making sure plans cover the area
identified as a concern — this will continue on a 3 monthly basis.

5. We have Improved the sharing of data relating to all our vulnerable children
including those vulnerable to exploitation across the Partnership and with other
Local Authorities.

Page 138



6. Following local case reviews or serious incidents relating to children. We continue to

quality assure NSSCP multi-agency training and professional development activities
and evaluate of the impact of this training.

Following the national review of the murders of Arthur and Star, this partnership
also held a learning event for practitioners from across all organisations which was
supported by the Interim Designated Nurse for Safeguarding Children across the
system.

Our Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy 2023- 2026 has been finalised, and as a result
our multi-agency responses to children at risk of criminal & sexual exploitation has
been strengthened.

Spotlight On 2022/2023

oo, N,

This section of the Annual Report focusses on key areas of work undertaken during
2022/2023 However, these must be seen in the context of the very significant amount of
day-to-day work undertaken by staff throughout the year. We cannot overestimate the
amount of “routine” work that goes into keeping children and young people safe in North

Somerset.

Multi-agency Training and Development: what we did well

We have delivered 75 multi-agency courses to 1260 participants. (April 22 —
March 23

Multi-agency training has returned to a similar frequency as pre-pandemic, with
85% of the training courses now being delivered face to face Within the
safeguarding partnership, the key focus areas around childhood neglect and child
exploitation has driven considerations about the training offer

The current Child Sexual Exploitation course is now delivered by our Police
colleagues

The neglect agenda had been enhanced with two new courses: a full day course
considering the Cumulative impact of Neglect.

The new online Strengths and Needs (Neglect) Toolkit training has been
promoted

We have delivered training on the Effective Support course which is to explore
the use of the revised document for front line practitioners

A great deal of work has gone into the development of the above courses as well
as the ongoing delivery of the core offer of safeguarding courses

Future objectives:

Review the overarching management system for advertising/booking of courses
will need to be considered

The current system of North Somerset CPD Online, will be closed later this year
with no clear pathway for replacement. Review of high-quality event evaluation
to ensure the training offer is meeting its targets

Page 139



Ensure all partners can access the partnership multi-agency training offer.
Ensuring the courses are advertised to staff as widely as possible, this is an
essential action for the coming 12 months

To continue to ensure that the voice of the child remains a golden thread running
through all our multi-agency training courses

Develop a multiagency training program that spans over 12—15-month period so
partnership colleagues can time-table training courses well in advance

Child Safeguarding Practice Review Group Subgroup - what we did well

\'/

0

During the reporting period the case review group has met monthly

It also collates and creates an action plan for the Partnership resulting from key
findings of these reviews.

In the year March 2022-March 2023 one Rapid Review was held, two Child
Safeguarding Practice Reviews were completed (which had been initiated before
March

2022), and an appreciative enquiry undertaken following an earlier Rapid Review
The Subgroup has revised its Terms of Reference, referral form and Rapid Review
process, and has produced a standardised Terms of Reference for undertaking
Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews

Future objectives:

Consider and examine the findings from National and Regional Safeguarding
Practice Reviews and identify learning themes and actions for dissemination
Review and strengthen our local Policies and guidance in line with local practice
eg non mobile baby policies and guidance.

Continue to assess and manage new referrals for significant events, undertake
rapid reviews, and where appropriate commission Child Safeguarding practice
Reviews

We have reflected on local Rapid Review Cases and their respective action plans
relating to Neglect and will ensure that these are incorporated into multiagency
safeguarding training events

Learning and Development Subgroup - what we did well

10

\'/

0

We have promoted learning opportunities from national and locally driven
developments, case reviews, audits and assisted in the development of effective
and appropriate multi-agency courses

We continue to Quality assure NSSCP multi-agency training and professional
development activities and evaluate the impact of training

Page 140



We have reflected on local Rapid Review Cases and their respective action plans
relating to Neglect and will ensure that these are incorporated into multiagency
safeguarding training events

Future objectives:

Continue to support multi-agency arrangements on the delivery of the multi-
agency training program, which includes implementing any health specific
actions relating to the National, regional and local Child Safeguarding Practice
Reviews

We will ensure that learning briefings are completed and cascaded across
agencies so that learning from Rapid Review can shared and implemented

To support safeguarding partners to establish a learning assurance framework to
ensure that all training is well evaluated and the changes in professional practice
evidenced

Quality Assurance and Performance Management activities- what we did well

\'/

0

This group from inception has developed maturely, keeping to an outcome
focused agenda, ensuring that cross-working with the other sub-groups takes
place

We now have an effective group that reflects membership of colleagues from key
parts of the system who are committed to the functions and aims of the sub-
group

A safeguarding children Dashboard has been developed that reflects practice
performance against a RAG rating within the local authority and is reviewed at
each meeting. This assists in identifying areas of multi-agency practice or risks
that require further exploration

The dashboard is now reviewed at every Q&A subgroup meeting to determine
where future pieces of QA work require action or escalation to the partnership
executive team

Linked to the above, we have invited feedback from key leaders to share single
agency audits undertaken for assurance purposes. The key partners in the
subgroup take back the learning to their respective organisations for discussion
and action

Future objectives:

11

Establish a multi-agency auditing programme. This will ensure those multi agency
responsibilities such as quality of referrals, CP decision making, are undertaken
jointly and reflect multi agency accountability and perspective

Further develop our Dashboard to reflect the work across the partnership e.g.
incorporate health and police data

Page 141



Work closely with partners to identify key leads in each agency to co-produce the
required detail ensuring we have meaningful information to inform the
programme of work for the partnership

Ensure recent Inspection reports from each agency are considered through a
multi-agency lens and identify relevant QA activity that is required to drive up
practice standards across the partnership

To continue to evidence safeguarding strengths and good practice; identify gaps
and areas for development; drive learning and service improvement

Child Exploitation Working Group -what we did well

\'/

We have completed our 3-year Child Exploitation Strategy to include our risk
assessment tool

We have mapped children vulnerable to exploitation and geographical areas
where exploitation may be taking place across North Somerset

We have Improved the sharing of data relating to children vulnerable to
exploitation across the Partnership and with other Local Authorities
Preparatory activity in anticipation of a potential JTAI focusing on Child
exploitation has been put in place

Delivery of a Risk Outside the Home (ROTH) team within the Local Authority
Improved understanding and awareness of Exploitation in its wider context
including wider risks that lead to exploitation

Development of a task and finish group to focus on data and partnership wider
systems development

Future objectives:

Risks Outside The Home (ROTH) Forum to be developed considering local council
work streams

To prepare for our forthcoming JTAI

To continue to monitor the Number of Child Sexual Exploitation Crimes and
strengthen the sharing of Data

Ensure child exploitation is recognised and responded to effectively, including
when young people transition into adulthood

Neglect Working Group — what we did well

12

\'/

0

The working group has been meeting on a 6 weekly basis to drive forward the
neglect multiagency audits and respective toolkits including the neglect

strategy. We have worked closely with Somerset who have assisted us in our
development

Our The Family Strengths and Needs Toolkit and documentation is now complete

Page 142



J We have commenced multiagency audits in Neglect making sure plans cover the
area identified as a concern — this will continue on a 4 monthly basis

Future objectives:
J To encourage and support multi professional members in cases of neglect, to be
confident and vocal enough to ensure the right levels of discussion, and decision
making are completed and recorded

J To continue to monitor the referrals for physical/emotional/sexual abuse, given
that neglect is the highest category (82%)

J To finalise our neglect strategy by January 2024 and agree a launch date for
Feb/March 2024

J To support the delivery of the Business Plan’s more detailed work plans, aligned
to the Board’s strategic priorities, will be developed for each Sub and Working
Group

Dealing with risk & learning from Safeguarding Practice

This section explains how learning and improvements are embedded to make progress on
achieving better outcomes for children and young people.

What have we learnt from Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews?

The NSSCP collates the findings from local safeguarding practice reviews (LCSPRs), repeat
learning/findings are reviewed and further audit and scrutiny is undertaken to have a
broader view of the findings. This was undertaken following the National Review into the
murders of Arthur Labinjo-Hughes and Star Hobson. Work continues to be embedded into
professional practice and findings shared withing multi-agency training programmes.

In the year March 2022-March 2023 one Rapid Review was held, two Child Safeguarding
Practice Reviews were completed. Both these cases involved chronic neglect of a child.
Learning continues to be shared across agencies and the action plan is currently being
monitored by the Learning and Development Subgroup.

13



Integrated Care Board — input into North Somerset Safeguarding
Children Partnership

The ICB Safeguarding team has continued to contribute to our Partnership to deliver their
statutory duties for safeguarding during this reporting period. Colleagues from across the
health system have provided leadership to three of the five sub-groups of this partnership:
Learning and Development, Quality Assurance and Performance, Child Neglect and the Child
Safeguarding Practice Review subgroup.

There has been an investment in the Learning and Development of statutory safeguarding
health roles within the Partnership, following receipt of funding from the Regional NHS
England Safeguarding team. Two cohorts of Safeguarding Supervision training have been
commissioned and delivered with 32 delegates from across health providers and the ICB
now trained to deliver safeguarding supervision effectively to frontline health practitioners.

Bespoke Level 4 Safeguarding Children training has also been delivered to a cohort of 16
colleagues from across the health system which was extremely well received and is likely to
be recommissioned in Quarter 3 2023/24. As part of the ICB’s statutory duties, learning
briefs have been shared across the system as a result of these system audits and through
the One Care bulletin with Primary Care.

These key messages have also been reiterated and discussed at Safeguarding LINK GP
meetings to ensure changes to practice are embedded.

We've refined the ICB Safeguarding Team’s offer to Primary Care in terms of training,
supervision and support. This includes signposting to Multi Agency Level 3 Safeguarding
Children training, monthly Q&A drop ins, and quarterly Safeguarding LINK GP meeting. This
has been underpinned by the introduction of a new post within the ICB Safeguarding Team.
That is the Named Nurse for Primary Care (All Age) supported by two Named GPs for All-Age
Safeguarding. During 2022/23, four Level 3 Safeguarding courses were delivered to Primary
Care staff virtually.

The ICB Safeguarding Team has also been invested in during 2022/23 following a
comprehensive workforce review against the delivery of statutory duties and comparison
ICBs. A revised team structure was drafted and consulted upon and new posts have been
created to be recruited into.

A new Designated Nurse for Safeguarding Children was appointed to and this role will be
supported by three place- based Deputy Designated Professionals who will have an all-age
remit, adopting a ‘think family’ approach.

Throughout this reporting period, system discussions have been had across the footprint on
how the system could work more effectively at place

(6 x locality partnership), local authority (3) and system. The outcome of these discussions
was to commission a review of the arrangements with the support of a full adopted scoping
paper. The Local Government Association were commissioned by the system with Executive

14
Page 144



Sponsors from the ICB, Police and Local Authorities to undertake this piece of work which

began in March 2023.

The outcomes will be reported in next year annual report.

Avon and Somerset Police

The “Child Protection Crimes (excluding Domestic Abuse Crimes)” in the attached table are

recorded crimes where there are child protection concerns (Child Abuse, Child Sexual
Exploitation, Child Safeguarding), with this measure excluding Domestic Abuse Crimes

where there are child protection concerns. The measure also includes peer-on-peer crimes

where both the victim and suspect are children. The measure includes non-recent child
abuse allegations, regardless of whether the victim was a child or adult at the time of

reporting.

The data below shows that the volume of recorded “Child Protection” crimes in North
Somerset fell by 4.3%, or by 19 crimes, in the last 12 months compared with the previous 12

months, falling to 422 crimes. This fall should be viewed in the context of sustained

increases across the last decade. The rate of reduction is below the 7.3% fall recorded
across the force area. These falls are not the result of changes in recording practices and

represent an actual decline in identified offences.

Child Protection and Child Sexual Exploitation (12 month

Current | Previo Chg | % Ch
roIIing) urren revious g 0 g
. . . o D .

Nl,-lmber of Child Protection Crime (excluding Domestic Abuse 497 441 19 | -4.3%
Crimes)
Number of Child Protection Serious Sexual Offences 148 180 -32 | -17.8%
Number of Non-Familial Sexual Crimes - Child Victim 199 226 -27 | -11.9%
Number of Child Protection Crimes for Cruelty and Neglect of

. 106 108 -2 -1.9%
Children
Number of Child Sexual Exploitation Crimes 227 292 -65 | -22.3%

15

Page 145




Missing Children

154 children were reported missing in North Somerset in the last 12 months, rising by 17
children or by 12.4% compared with the previous 12 months. 69 of these children were
reported missing repeatedly, 6 fewer children than were reported missing repeatedly in the
previous 12 months. The number of missing children reports fell to 370 in the last 12
months compared with 389 in the previous 12 months, a fall of 4.9%, contrasting with the
23.5% rise recorded across the force area.

There were falls in both the number of children missing from care, falling to 26 children in
the last 12 months from 32 children in the previous 12 months, and the number of children

going missing from care repeatedly, falling to 16 children from 18 children.

Missing Children (12 month rolling) Current | Previous Chg | % Chg
Number of Missing Children 154 137 +17 | +12.4%
Number of Missing Children Reports 370 389 -19 | -4.9%
Number of Repeat Missing Children 69 75 -6 -8.0%
Number of Children Missing from Care 26 32 -6 -18.8%
Number of Repeat Children Missing from Care 16 18 -2 -11.1%

Safety and Anti-Bullying

The overall number of child victims of all crime types in North Somerset rose by 67 victims
to 1115 victims in the last 12 months, or by 6.4% compared with the previous 12 months.
This increase is above the 3.5% increase recorded across the force area as a whole. The
number of child suspects of all crime types in North Somerset in the last 12 months rose by
14.4% to 824 child suspects, an increase of 104 child suspects. This rise is significantly above
the 2.7% increase recorded across the force area.

The number of Domestic Abuse Crimes with a victim aged 16 or 17 recorded in North
Somerset fell by 37 crimes in the last 12 months compared with the previous 12 months.
This represents a fall of just over one third (33.9%) to 72 crimes. This fall is well above the
7.7% fall recorded across the force area as whole.

The number of child victims of recorded Race Hate Crimes rose to 26 victims in the last 12
months from 21 victims in the previous 12 months. Given the relatively small numbers
involved, care should be taken when comparing the percentage increase in North Somerset
with the percentage change recorded force wide. All forms of Hate Crime are subject to a
high degree of under-reporting, and it can reasonably be concluded that the actual levels

are greater than the levels reported.

Safety and Anti-Bullying (12 month rolling)

Current

Previous

Chg

% Chg

Number of Child Suspects of Crimes

824

720

+104

+14.4%

16

Page 146




Number of Domestic Abuse Incidents (Excluding

. 1475 1521 -46 -3.0%
Crimes)
Number of Domestic Abuse Crimes 2669 2985 -316 -10.6%
Number of Domestic Abuse Crimes - Victim Age 16 -

Y Ic AbUse LTI Ictim Ag 72 109 37 | -33.9%
17
Number of Child Victims of Crimes 1115 1048 +67 +6.4%
Number of Child Victims of Race Hate Crimes 26 21 +5 +23.8%

Initial Child Protection Conferences - The police attendance rate at ICPCs in North Somerset
in 2022/23 was 100% with all 78 ICPCs having been attended.

Children Services

Family Support & Safeguarding

Our service delivers the statutory social work assessments and support to all children who
are referred to Children’s Services, except those who are allocate to Children with Disability
team.

Team Structure and remit
There are 6 Teams based across North Somerset, 1 in Portishead, 2 in Worle and three in
Weston South.

Each team has a Team Manager, senior social workers, social workers and family support
workers within its structure. The service is locality based and works closely with colleagues
from Health, Education and Police, we also have close working relationships with
commissioned services such as WeAreWithYou and NextLink.

Family Support & Safeguarding (FS&S) support children who receive support as Children in
Need, Children supported by a Child Protection Plan and Children in our Care where the
decision regarding their permanence is being made and overseen by the Family Court. Care
Proceedings will determine if children can return home, remain in their family with
alternative carers to their parents, be provided with foster care for their childhood or
adoption outside of their family. If a child has a care plan for adoption, we work closely with
our colleagues in Adoption West as our Regional Adoption Agency, who assist us to find
families for our children. Social workers in FS&S remain allocated to the child until adoption
orders are secured, therefore, our work with some children and their families can span
several years. We work closely with colleagues in Corporate Parenting Service and children
who are in our care will be allocated a social worker form this service only when the
decision has been made that fostering is required for the duration of their childhood.

Ofsted ILACS Inspection 2023 — Practice that is working well.

17
Page 147




J Our approach to securing permanence for children who can benefit from
adoption and our progress and success for children who secure permanence
early through Early Permanence. Our Adoption work and effective work with our
Regional Adoption Agency was noted as a strength.

J Effective arrangements to track and monitor children’s plans for permanence,
specifically children supported through the Pre-Proceedings stage of the Public
Law Outline, the impact of this assisting effective progression of those plans.
Positive acknowledgement to the quality of the letters sent to parents before
PLO commences.

J Private fostering, it was noted our assessments are robust and completed by
social workers who understand children’s needs which inform their support
plans.

J Our assessments to support children ages 16 and 17 who are homeless or at risk

of being homeless were noted as strong with good multi agency working to
support them remaining at home or access appropriate housing, entry to care
and or support.

J Our Assessments that lead to decisions to bring children into care are well
matched to children’s levels of need and risk. Assessments shared with the
courts are generally strong and proceedings are increasingly timely.

We will drive improvement and monitor progress by ensuring that:

Our Quality Assurance & Performance Service meet monthly with all Team Managers
chaired by the Head of Service to identity the impact of

improvement activity and explore areas for safeguarding development.

Our Initiatives

J Dip reviews of children’s records against our focused plans for improvements.

J Monthly meetings to share our understanding of ‘good’ across all our work.

J Weekly Quality and Performance meetings to maintain team performance and
review our goals.

o Seek out, record and hear our children’s voices so we learn from these to
improve our safeguarding and social work practice.

) Quarterly development sessions for the service so our teams can share what has
worked well.

Future challenges and developments
It is clear we have much to do, however, Ofsted have confirmed that our strategic plan is
robust. we have a good understanding of our improvement priorities.

We have reviewed and revised the annual FS&S plan against the Ofsted findings. A draft for
2023/24 is out for consultation. This will be finalised and launched in September before our
Annual Conference, where key messages and further clarity will be offered on practice
standards and revised processes.

18

Page 148



Staffing capacity has been a major barrier to our improvement goals. Vacancy management
is critical and focused activity to enable and support recruitment and retention will
maximize all recruitment options and ensure our practitioners have the capacity to deliver
consistently good effective support.

In line with many other Local Authorities, retention of social workers within statutory social
work presents challenges. The current vacancy rate for FS&S is approx. 40%. By September
there will be a planned induction of 6 permanent social workers, 2 additional locum social
workers and recruitment of 3 permanent family support workers. Further recruitment
activity is continuing.

Our 6 priority areas include:

J Effectiveness of management oversight and supervision
J Identification and response to significant and chronic risk
J Reviewing the frequency and quality of our visits
J Exploring our timeliness and quality of assessments
. Reviewing our effectiveness of safeguarding children’s plans
J Evidencing progress and change for Children
Front Door

The Front Door is exactly what it says, a Front Door to ensuring the right outcomes for
support / assessment are considered when children’s needs moved beyond Universal (Tier
1) and Early Help (Tier 2). The Front Door is a multi-agency team and even though they do
not undertake assessments or hold children they maintain curiosity and measure any
potential for over optimism through judgement, professional supervision, management
oversight and audits.

Over the last 3 years the Front Door has changed and developed, although Ofsted observed
this was not fast enough in our Focused Visit in September 2022. The pace of change
between September 2022 and March 2023 (Inspection) was significant which included the
introduction of a Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH).

The Ofsted inspection in Marc 2023 found that:

‘Improved information-sharing arrangements are supporting the right decision making for
children. Most multi-agency checks are completed and returned in a timescale that is
appropriate to the urgency of children’s needs and the level of risk, typically within a
maximum of 24 hours.

For non-professionals contacts we have Care Connect, who work alongside the Front Door
to make sure contacts are past on swiftly without delay.

For professionals we have either Childrensfrrontdoor@n-somerset.gov.uk or Dutyintake@n-
somerset.gov.uk.

There is also a professionals’ consultation line (01275 888690) for professionals who need
guidance on next actions regarding a worry or concern they have and need Social Work
support in deciding if a request for support document needs to be completed. The

19

Page 149


mailto:Childrensfrrontdoor@n-somerset.gov.uk
mailto:Dutyintake@n-somerset.gov.uk
mailto:Dutyintake@n-somerset.gov.uk

consultation line was recognised in the March 2023 inspection: ‘A refreshed consultation
line has been successfully implemented to give professionals access to confidential support
and guidance when there are concerns for children. This service has been well received by
professionals and frequent manager oversight of the information is ensuring it is used
effectively.’

Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub

The MASH has been in place since January 2023, and now it is embedded in our practice.
We are reviewing the process to ensure that the partners are in the right place and
implement what needs to happen next to make any improvements needed. We have seen a
rise in contacts to Children Social care since MASH was in place which evidences the
increased information sharing and quality taking place. Currently we have physical
attendance from Education, Health, (Sirona Care and Health), Next Link (Domestic Abuse),
Police join remotely but there is a plan for a physical present for at least one day per week
from 1st July, however this may be limited.

A review of the MASH arrangements has commenced and fortnightly multi-professional
meetings are being put in place to assist in this. Our gold standard is for all our multi
professionals’ colleagues to be seated together, in the Front Door to enable high quality
discussion, ensuring curiosity and measure our balance for any over optimism. This is
directly due to having the right people with the right information in the right place at the
right time. Our update is that representation from the Youth Offending Service and Child
and Adolescent Mental Health Services who are keen to also join us our MASH team.

Worries and weakness, professionals such as Police and Health work across a number of
authorities around our area. From their perspective a standard process across those areas
would be beneficial, but this is not how we see North Somerset MASH working and does not
fit in with our vision jointly worked with North Tyneside who supported us in developing a
MASH, We want that face to face, local communication and commitment and believe this is
fundamental to our further development.

Family Wellbeing Hub

A recent change to the Family Wellbeing Hub is the Missing Return Home interviews are
now allocated directly from of the Risk Other Than at Home (ROTH) Team, to an identified
Family Wellbeing Support Worker, rather than going through the Family Wellbeing Hub.

Quality Assurance

Quality Assurance of decision making within the Front Door in September 2022 was
identified as an area in need of improvement in respect of Social Work Practice. Changes
have been implemented to the Quality Assurance Process within the Front Door, as follows:

) The Team Manager and Senior Social Worker complete nine-to-twelve audits in
any one calendar month. This is divided into fortnightly sessions
J MASH Multi-Agency Audits are undertaken every fortnight, to a total of twelve

per calendar month. This has been less well attended to date. The Police have
not attended to date due to capacity

20

Page 150



J The Head of Front Door undertakes three Dip audits monthly. Currently the dip
audits are covering re-referral

] The Team Manger feeds back outcomes and learning from audits to the Front
Door Team in staff meetings on a fortnightly basis and monthly in a specific audit
feedback learning session

] We have worked with the Effective Support document role, supporting training
for an agreed understanding of where concerns may sit on the continuum of
need which has replaced the Threshold Document

Family Wellbeing service

We work closely with our Front Door social work and multi-agency colleagues to ensure that
children and families are offered guidance, support and signposting to the services that can
give them the right support at the right time. We provide:

Intensive early help for families: 1:1 support with a Family Support Worker.

This is a non — statutory service and aims to help families who have already received Early
Help support within their community, whose needs have become more complex, and the
child or young person is at significant risk of not achieving expected outcomes. It is a service
that offers a holistic and coordinated approach with more intensive intervention and
support.

Return to Home Interviews:

We work closely with the ROTH team and complete the Return to home interviews with
children who have had a missing episode.

Children Centres and Family Hubs: We Provide and run 11 children centres and provide
outreach services to 3 other community buildings.

Children Centres provide a range of holistic universal and targeted services for families with
children primarily under five including:

J child and family health services, ranging from midwifery, health visitor services to
breastfeeding support.

J parent and toddler groups

J information on childcare and early learning and local support groups and help to
promote the Early Years Pupil Premium

) classes for parents, drop-in sessions, healthy eating advice

) help for you to find work or training opportunities.

Committed to develop 3 of our children centres to become Family Hubs, one in each of our
localities. They provide families with somewhere they can go if they need information,
advice or guidance about parenting, concerns about family breakdown, and other worries. A
Family Hub is a central access point for services and support and will provide a universal
front door to families, offering a one-stop shop of family support services across their social
care, education, mental health, and physical health needs.

21

Page 151



UK Re-Settlement programme:

We have three schemes in North Somerset which support families who have come to the UK
to seek refuge.

J Vulnerable persons resettlement scheme (VPRS)/ UK Resettlement Scheme
(UKRS) 2106 — a 5-year scheme and 5 years leave to remain. NS involved since
2016 and relates to the conflict in the Mina region. The pledge is to assist 20,000
individuals with NS resettling 14 families. We have 11 families settled through
the VPRS and 1 through UKRS

J Afghan Relocation and Assistance Policy — 3-year scheme and 3 years leave to
remain starting in July 2021. Scheme is to welcome Afghan Locally employed
staff who have worked for the UK and risked their lives alongside British forces in
Afghanistan to relocate to the UK with their families.

J Afghan Citizens Resettlement Scheme — 3 years scheme and 3 years to remain for
those who have assisted the UK efforts in Afghanistan and stood up for values,
women's rights freedom of speech and vulnerable groups. The government will
resettle more than 5,000 people in the first year and up to 20,000 over the
coming years. We have resettled 12 families in North somerset.

Advanced parenting offer
The advanced parenting offer in North somerset delivers evidenced based programmes for
parents of children from birth to 19 and 25yrs SEND

We have 14 parenting programmes which covers behaviour, domestic abuse, parent
conflict, parenting an adolescent, child on parent violence. Some of the facilitators are
specialist CYPIAT trained parenting practitioners. Robust quality assurance and supervision
is carried out to ensure fidelity to the programmes.

We also have a parenting village coffee morning once a month which provides drop in
professional and peer support for the families in our community needing extra support.

Let’s Cook group is delivered at Oldmixon Family Centre, which is situated in the South
locality. This group is for the whole community, aimed at children 0-5 and their parents and
carers.

Aim related outcomes for this group are as follows:

Attendees have been able to meet other parents with young babies and share parenting
experiences and cooking experiences:

) have increased their level of engagement with other local Children Centre
services during their attendance.

) an increase in their knowledge of understanding of what ingredients can be used
to make low-cost meals.

J that they are using activities and techniques learned in the sessions within their
own homes

22

Page 152



have increased levels of communication and increased the number of fresh
meals they cook at home.

What we achieved

100% of parents/carers said they are more aware of the services children’s
centres offer because of attending Let’s Cook

100% had attended or planned to attend other groups within the children’s
centres, most popular being ‘Let’s play’.

100% said that because of attending Let’s Cook, their knowledge on healthy
recipes/ cooking and supporting positive interactions

80% are more aware of what ingredients can be used to make low-cost meals.
90% report an increase in the number of fresh meals they cook at home

All parents and carers felt the venue and time of the group was suitable.

Comments from parents and carers, related to aim related outcomes:

We’ve absolutely loved it. Thank you.

| would be happy to pay more for this and pay up front. It’s been Fab. Would love
there to be more kids doing the course as it’s brilliant. Wish it was a longer
course. Thanks so much for accommodating my / our food tolerances. | this has
been amazing.

No, | think everything was done great. We absolutely loved our time here and my
toddler is more confident helping me in the kitchen.

Children in Care

To reflect statutory guidance, Children in Care should receive an initial health assessment to
evaluate the child’s physical health and any requirement for access to specialist behavioral,
mental, and emotional health assessment within 20 working days of becoming a child in
care. The performance against this metric has been challenging for some time owing to
timeliness of notifications from the local authority, capacity and availability of community
pediatricians within Sirona Care and Health to undertake the assessment and a proportion
of appointments where children were not brought.

23

Page 153



A systemwide Children in Care workshop took place on 9th November 2022 to discuss how
as an Integrated Care System- all system partners have a statutory responsibility for this
cohort of Children. It was the first meeting of its kind. There was representation from the
ICB- Safeguarding and Contracting, Sirona Care and Health- Strategic, Business Operations
and Delivery of service, and all three Local Authorities were represented. There was a
consensus from all system partners represented that an exploration of different options to
undertake IHAs and RHAs was now necessary owing to challenges and impact on this
vulnerable cohort. For example, the use of GPs to support the undertaking of IHAs instead
of Community Pediatrician’s.

In addition to the above, a pilot is underway to quality assure additional packages of care
commissioned by the ICB for Children who are in care and placed out of area. The purpose
of this exercise is to ensure that as Corporate Parents, the ICB is providing the best possible
care and protection for the child in the same way as a good parent/birth parent would, and
to quality assure the services being provided. In the same way, the ICB is exploring what
could be included in a Care Leavers Health Offer, for example pre-paid prescription
exemptions for those eligible.

Listening to children and young people is crucial, at times the most vulnerable young people
don’t always feel that they are heard or their opinions taken seriously.

Children’s Participation Group - what is it about? Let’s find out more....

J The Participation group captures the voice of our young people and children in
North Somerset. We have evolved our engagement over recent months, and this
is now led by what the children and young people want.

) We hold a monthly Care Leavers Forum, for our young people. We meet in the
Town Hall to listen to their thoughts, discuss upcoming events and sometimes
review documents to ensure they use language that cares and can be understood
by our young people. We also provide a hot meal, which ensure our young
people have eaten well that day. This is a lovely setting, where we have grown
great working relationships with our young people.

] A Children in Care Council is also held monthly. This takes the form of a quarterly
in person event at local venues, allowing us to provide food and games. The

24

Page 154



25

months in between are shared between events held at schools or in conjunction
with our Family Wellbeing Team.

Page 155



Our Children’s Voices
\ '/

02

Now let’s hear the voice of one young person: my personal story.

| became a child in care with North Somerset Council before transitioning to the Leaving
Care team. | was living in supported accommodation and talked regularly with my Leaving
Care Personal Advisor (LCPA) for support and access to opportunities for develop skills for
living. | was introduced to the Participation team by the LCPA, | was very passionate about
wanting to be involved with the various opportunities available at the local authority and to
“change things from the inside out”.

| remembered my experiences as a child in care, the transition to adulthood and as a care
experienced adult and spoke honestly, reflecting on what went well, what could have been
better and what needed to change. | am now a permanent member of the Care Leavers (CL)
Forum, attending monthly and am an active contributor to the many discussions. For
example, | have helped to:

. Design literature
) Commented on our mental health and education strategy.
J Regional and local care offer for care leavers

Most of all | have been able to forge new relationships and make new friends with many
other young people who attend the Forum. It’s nice to be with people who have the same
experiences as you, you know you’re not alone.” | even get the chance to be on the
interview panel for new staff in Children Services!

Overtime, my confidence has grown. And | am engaging in professional discussions with
candidates and considering the voice of children and young people in everything we do.

J “My confidence grew so much being on the panel, | knew what | wanted to hear
as a person doing the interview, so it helped me to answer the questions when it
was me doing it.”

J | never even used to ask the questions, now | can ask all of them.” | now have a
job but continue to be an active participator within the group and continue to
share my experiences with other young people.

) | know what it was like and what would have helped me.”

I am now living independently which is great news and looking forward to making plans for
the future. | will be developing my skills and further training to become an advocate/mentor
for children in care.

Quotes from children and young people when asked the following questions:

How do you feel participation has changed and is your voice is being heard?
) We have a voice.

26

Page 156



J You can see staff trying their hardest to change

J We feel listened to
J We're being heard.
J Feels like we're being more appreciated now than we used to

How do you feel about people at home?

o We get on well.

J They love me.

J We have fun together.

] | feel safe with them.

J They’re always there for me.
J They understand me.

What is going well in your life?

. My friends.

. My family.

. My hobbies/activities.
J Where | live.

. My care plans.

What is the best way to help me?

J Don’t embarrass me.

) Be respectful to me.

J Get to know me.

J Ask me what | need!

J Treat me as an individual.

J Help me understand what is expected.
. Listen to my views.

Public health — Our Substance Misuse Service

Case Study- Child B’s experience: here is my personal journey.
Child B is aged 17 years old

He was initially referred to the substance advice service when he was 16 for a Youth Alcohol
and Drugs Diversion (YADD) issued by Avon and Somerset Police. He had been found with a
small amount of an illegal drug during a stop and search.

Child B was vulnerable, had a diagnosis of dyslexia and clearly needed further assessment
around his learning needs. He also was a heavy cannabis user, smoking daily. His life was
complex, he had a difficult relationship with his mother, witnessed domestic violence and
was removed into Foster Care for one year. On his return home his mother withdrew him
from Education at the age of 11, preferring home education as an option. During this time,

27

Page 157



he continued to smoke cannabis. A full assessment was undertaken, and he completed his
drugs and engagements work, but subsequently did not respond to follow up calls.

A year later Child B has engaged with the Substance Advice Service following an unsettled
period when he was staying with inappropriate people and exposing himself to future risks.
He had started to deal in drugs. He had also started using MDMA in addition to cannabis.

Positive outcomes

Recently Child B’s mum agreed to attend a joint meeting with the service and agreed to a
further social care referral around his housing needs and contextual safeguarding risks. Child
B has now been assessed by children’s social care and has a Child in Need plan. He has met
with a housing officer who has previously housed his older siblings.

Education, Health, and Social Needs
Education, Health and Speech and Language difficulties are now being addressed.

Child B'’s relationship with his worker at SAS has strengthened significantly. He remains
engaged with his SAS program, now attending appointments regularly and face to face. He
has completed a psychosocial intervention related to his drug use and responds well to
motivational interviewing. He has also worked on harm reduction techniques. He is making
some very positive steps forward. His cannabis use has reduced, and he has stopped using
MDMA.

He has now received support to apply for benefits and no longer needs to sell drugs for
financial gain. He is on the waiting list for accommodation. Following intervention, Child B’s
mother is offering some more support now too.

Ongoing support will continue despite the challenges. He has made great progress from our
SAS interventions and his engagement is impressive.

Our Mental health Service

We have wellbeing practitioners in secondary schools running therapeutic interventions
online and in person, which improve resilience and mental health and contribute to their
safety and wellbeing for example Mind Aid, Shameless, Resilience Lab.

Our future developments for next year

) Our mental health training will be expanding this next year

J Promoting five-to-thrive training for early years professionals

J Including dedicated training about self-harm,

J Establishing workshops for parents and school staff to support young people’s

mental health.

Our Alcohol Team

A new alcohol liaison worker is now embedded in Weston General Hospital, providing early
intervention and referral to treatment services. Adults and our young people are also
included into this service and can access treatment, advice and support.

28

Page 158


https://otrnorthsomerset.org.uk/what-we-do/

What does our Data tell us?

From April 2022 to March 2023 the following data was collected:

North Somerset's children and young people (0-17) population was 42,848

9,293 contacts were received, of which 654 were domestic violence contacts and
549 progressed to referral

There were 1,024 referrals to Children's Support and Safeguarding of which 122
were re-referrals (new referral started within 12 months of a previous referral
starting)

There were 268 Children in Need (plans open at year end)

108 children with Child Protection Plans (open at year end) of whom the majority
were on a plan due to neglect

There was 36% of children on a child protection plan for a 2nd or subsequent
time (of CPPs open at year end

There were 226 children in care (open at year end) of which 87 children started
to be in care (during the year)

There were 35 children recorded as at risk of sexual exploitation or as having
been sexually exploited during the year

There were 27 children recorded as at risk of criminal exploitation or as having
been criminally exploited during the year

There were 164 children that went missing during the year across 495 missing
episodes

Local area Designated Officer (LADO) - Annual Report
This sets out the key findings from North Somerset’s Local Area Designated Officer for

Allegations (LADQ), and activity using both data analysis and commentary between April
2019 to March 2020. Read the LADO Annual report April 2022-2023 here.

Child Death Overview Panel (CDOP) — Annual Report
North Somerset Safeguarding Children’s Partnership remains a member of the West of
England CDOP as it did as an LSCB. Read the CDOP annual report 2022-2023 to learn more.

29

Page 159


https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms1/media/13037/lado-annual-report-2023-2024.pdf
https://www.n-somerset.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2021-06/CDOP%20annual%20report%202019-20.pdf

Section 11 Audit 2022-2023

Section 11 was issued under the Children Act (2004) and has been reinforced in Working
Together to Safeguard Children 2018. Section 11 places duties on a range of organisations
and individuals to ensure their functions, and any services that they contract out to others,
are discharged having regard to the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children.

The five children’s Partnerships across the Avon & Somerset Region worked together to
audit organisations working with children and families.

The audits took place via a series of peer review workshops and the findings and learning
were merged into one report across the children’s partnerships in Bristol, Somerset, North
Somerset, Bath & North-East Somerset and South Gloucestershire. North Somerset
undertook reviews with Sirona Care & YMCA.

Partnership Priorities

J Embed the learning from National and local Child Safeguarding Reviews across all
agencies

) Strengthen the Partnership governance and accountability and resourcing
arrangements

) Accelerate our work on updating our website

J Refresh and embed best practice on neglect across the Partnership

J Work in collaboration with our Safeguarding Adults Partner on joint key priorities

such as communication and engagement and transitional safeguarding.

30

Page 160



T9T abed

Children and Young People’s Services Policy and Scrutiny Panel Work
Programme October 2023

(to be updated following each Panel meeting)

Section One —

planned panel working groups.

The Panel will consider issues of significant public concern, areas of poor performance and areas where Members think the Council
could provide better value for money. This is a “live” document and is subject to change as priorities or circumstances change.

Topic Reason for scrutiny Method of scrutiny and Timeline Progress Contact
reporting process
School 1. In-depth investigations of Steering Group Varied, Last meeting: | Sally Varley
Organisation proposed school changes dependingon | 8SEP23
Steering Group 2. Pupil Projections — Corporate Aim: Promoting | work strand
methodology as applied lifelong learning
generally and in particular opportunities Ongoing - to
in respect of new builds, meet as
including affordable Key issues for the public required.
housing 3. Admission
Arrangements To include Education Regular
Transformation reporting to
Panel
Social Worker For assurance on the current Working group; Report to 4 meetings First meeting Matt
Recruitment position of the recruitment of 22 February 2024 CYPS end Feb24 250CT23 Greenhalgh
social workers for Children’s Panel.
Services
Home to School Examination of the issues Joint working with TCC 3-4 meetings, Gemma
Transport involved with Home to School | Panel, to start November to start NOV23 Dando
transport 2023
Children’s Mental | To examine some of the issues | Joint working with HOSP; Details TBC Georgie
Health involved in the increase of details TBC MacArthur
children’s poor mental health

Page 1 of 3

6 Wal epuaby



29T abed

Section Two - briefings, workshops, and informal panel meetings. Outcomes may, with Chairman’s agreement,
generate panel agenda items (for inclusion in S3 below) or, with panel agreement, be escalated to S1 above:

Topic Reason for scrutiny Date Outcome

Contact

Section Three - agenda reports to the Panel meetings as agreed by the Chairman. This section provides for the forward
planning of agendas and a record of panel meeting activity.

CYPS 29 June 2023
Report Title Purpose of Report Outcome Contact
(actions)
Role, Remit and Work Plan of the | To consider and agree the Panel’'s Work Plan. Working groups to
CYPS Policy and Scrutiny Panel be set up.
Performance Monitoring To note the performance information presented in this Members comments
report and to give comment on both areas for collected.
improvement and areas of good performance.
Ofsted Inspection Update To note the outcome of the Ofsted Inspection March Discussions around
2023 and the identified areas for improvement and plan. | the areas of
improvement.
SEND Improvement Plan and the | To note the Council’s progress and commitments. Members noted
Safety Valve progress and
provided comment
CYPS 19 October 2023
Report Title Purpose of Report Outcome Contact
(actions)

Page 2 of 3




€97 abed

SEND Self-Assessment

The Panel to note and comment on the SEND self-
assessment.

Adoption West Annual Report

To advise officers of any areas for further information.

Children’s Safeguarding Report

For the CYPS Panel to receive and comment on the
Children’s Safeguarding Board annual report

CYPS 22 February 2024

Report Title

Purpose of Report

Outcome
(actions)

Contact

Children’s Services Annual
Complaints and Compliments
Report

Children’s Services Performance
Monitor

Children’s Services Budget
Monitor

Section Five - Recommendations - Response from Executive Member

Area for investigation/
Recommendations

When were the
recommendations to the
Executive agreed?

Expect answer by (first panel meeting after
recommendations were submitted)

Section Six - Progress and follow-up on implementing Panel recommendations

Panel Recommendation

Date of response Actions — implementation progress

Page 3 of 3




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 SEND Self Evaluation
	1.	Summary of Report
	2.	Policy
	3.	Details
	4.	Consultation
	5.	Financial Implications
	6.	Legal Powers and Implications
	7.	Climate Change and Environmental Implications
	8.	Risk Management
	9.	Equality Implications
	10.	Corporate Implications
	11.	Options Considered
	5.1 North Somerset SEF

	7 Annual Report of Adoption West 2022-23
	1.	Summary of Report
	2.	Policy
	3.	Details
	4.	Consultation
	5.	Financial Implications
	6.	Legal Powers and Implications
	7.	Climate Change and Environmental Implications
	8.	Risk Management
	9.	Equality Implications
	10.	Corporate Implications
	11.	Options Considered
	6.1 Adoption West Annual report 2022-23

	8 Children's Safeguarding Partnership Annual Report
	1.	Summary of Report
	3. Details
	7.1 north-somerset-safeguarding-children-annual-report-january-2022-to-march-2023-final-accessible-track-changes (1)

	9 Panel's Work Plan
	Section Six - Progress and follow-up on implementing Panel recommendations


